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NOTICE
OF THE -

118 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING |




Reglstered Office :
R # 39-42, (3rd Floor H Block) Indra Palace,
Cennaught Circus Inner Circle,

BHARUCH DAHEJ New Delhi - 110 001.
RAILWAY COMPANY LTD. Tel. : 011-43586814/17
W oW Yord BRI T Fax: 011 - 43586813

CIN : U45203 DL2006 PLC155511

NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the Eleventh Annual General Meeting of members of
Bharuch Dahej Railway Company Limited will be held on Friday, the 22nd
September, 2017 at 16.00 hrs at Conference Room, Rail Vikas Nigam Limited at
1 Floor, August Kranti Bhawan, Bhikaji Cama Place, New Delhi 110066 to

transact the following business:

A  ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. Approval on Audited Accounts

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Balance Sheet as on 31 March,
2017, Profit and loss Account & Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on
that date, and the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors’ (both

Statutory and Secretarial) thereon and the comments of the Comptroller and
Auditor General of India thereon.

II. Reappointment of Retiring Directors

2. To appoint a Director in the place of Shri Sajal Mittra (DIN no. 02625510)
who is liable to retire by rotation and being eligible offers himself for re-

appointment.

Corporate Office : 304/305, Rubellite Building, 32, Ajitnagar Society, Nr. Urmi Char Rasta, Vadodara-390 020. (Gujarat)
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3. To appoint a Director in the place of Shri Amit Kumar Singh (DIN no.
07524253) who is liable to retire by rotation and being eligible offers

himself for re-appointment.

III Remuneration of Statutory Auditors

4. Remuneration of Statutory Auditors for the year 2017-18
As the Company comes under the purview of S. 139(5) of the Companies Act,
2013, the appomtment of auditors is being made by Comptroller & Auditor
General of India.

Section 142 of the Companies Act, 2013 provides that the remuneration of the
auditor of the Company shall be fixed by the Company in general meeting or in

such manner as the Company in general meeting may determine.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the

following resolution as Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT the Board of Directors of Bharuch Dahej Railway
Company Limited be and are hereby authorized to fix, the remuneration of the
auditors of the Company appointed by the office of the Comptroller & Auditor
General of India for audit of accounts of the Company for the year 2017-18.”




B SPECIAL BUSINESS:

IV Reappointment of Shri Rajendra Kashyap as Managing Director

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the

resolution as Ordinary Resolution:

“Resolved that pursuant to relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Rules made thereunder Shri Rajendra Kashyap, Managing Director be and is
hereby reappointed as Managing Director w.e.f. 12.08.2017 till 23.09.2017 at
consolidated payment of Rs. 2,35,000 p.m. Other terms and conditions would

remain unchanged from the conditions as on 11.08.2017.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in the event of loss or inadequacy of profits of
the Company during the tenure of Shri Rajendra Kashyap, Managing Director, the
above mentioned remuneration will be regarded as minimum remuneration in
accordance with Section197 and other applicable provisions of the said Act and the
Company be and is hereby authorized to take such approvals as may be required for

payment of such remuneration in case of such eventuality.”

V___ Alteration of Articles of Association of the Company

6. To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the

resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 5, 14 and other

applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules thereunder



(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time
being in force) and subject to the approval of Shareholders, and such apprdvals,
consents, sanctions and permissions of appropriate authorities, departments or
bodies as may be necessary, the Articles of Association of the Company, be and is

hereby altered in following manner:

Clause (125) (a) of Article be and is hereby inserted as a new Clause after existing

clause 125 of the Articles of Association:

“The Board may appoint any person as a director nominated by any institution in
pursuance of the provisions of any law for the time being in force or of any
agreement or by the Central Government or the State Government by virtue of its

shareholding in a Government company.”

By Order of Board of Directors
For Bharuch Dahej Railway Company Limited

Place: New Delhi (Beena R. Shah)
Date: 20.09.2017 Company Secretary



Notes:

1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a
proxy to attend and vote at the meeting instead of him/her and the proxy need not
be a member of the company.

2. Pursuant to Section 105 of the Companies Act, 2013, a person can act as a
proxy on behalf of not more than 50 members holding in aggregate, not more than
ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. A
member holding more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company
carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall
not act as proxy for any other person or shareholder.

3. The instrument appointing proxy, in order to be effective, must be deposited at
the Registered Office of the Company, duly completed and signed at least 48 hours
before the commencement of the meeting.

4, A proxy form is annexed to this Notice. Proxies submitted on behalf of the
companies, etc. Must be supported by an appropriate resolutions/authority,
whichever applicable.

5. Corporate Members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend
the AGM are requested to send a duly certified copy of their Board Resolution
authorizing their representatives to attend and vote at the AGM.

6. Explanatory Statement as required under Section - 102 of the Companies Act,
2013 for Special Businesses (Item No. 4 to 9) is annexed herewith and forms part
of this Notice.

Copies to:

A.  All the shareholders of the company

B. Statutory auditors of the company

C. Secretarial auditor of the eompany
D

All dircctors of the company



EXPLANATORY STATEMENT ON SPECIAL BUSINESS AS REQUIRED
UNDER SECTION - 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 |

Item No. 5
Shri Rajendra Kashyap was appointed as Managing Director on 12.08.2014 for

three years. His term came to an end on 11.08.2017.

Shri Rajendra Kashyap is a retired Financial Commissioner, Railway Board and
ex-officio Secretary to the Government of India with extensive experience in
various facets of Railway Management in India.

Shri Rajendra Kashyap, Managing Director expressed reluctance to continue as
Managing Director beyond the date of completion of his tenure due to personal
reason. The Board, in their meeting held on 25.07.2017, accordingly appointed
Shri Vinay Singh, Director as Acting Managing Director w.e.f. 12.08.2017.
However, in deference to the fact that Annual Accounts 2016-17 were yet to be
finalized, and that the process of Audit was still underway, a request was received
from Rail Vikas Nigam Ltd., the major shareholder, asking Shri Rajendra Kashyap
to continue for some more time, up until the date of Annual General Meeting. The
proposal was accordingly approved by the Board of Directors in their meeting held
on 11.08.2017.

The process of audit of the Accounts by Statutory Auditor was taking inordinately
long time, partly because this was the first year of audit by them. With likelihood
of completing the audit by Statutory Auditors, followed by Supplementary Audit
by CAG Office and holding of the Annual General Meeting on or before 30"
September 2017, as required, being remote, Sh. Rajendra Kashyap informed that

he had to travel to Canada where his daughter is a resident, to be with her during



an urgent medical intervention, and that he would be leaving the country on the
morning of 25™ September 2017. In the circumstances whereby Sh. Rajehdra
Kashyap was unable to continue in his position beyond 23.09.2017, his
appointment was curtailed by the Board of Directors till 23.09.2017.

The period of appointment beyond his original tenure up to 11.08.2017 was at the
same lump sum monthly payment as existed on 11" August 2017 i.e. Rs. 235000/-

p-m. Other terms remained unchanged.

None of the Directors, the Key Managerial Personnel and their relatives except the

appointee and his relatives, is interested in the proposed resolution.

The Board of Directors recommends passing of the proposed resolution as an

Ordinary Resolution.

Item No. 6

As per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Shareholders have power to
appoint the Directors in the General Meeting. The Board has very limited powers
with respect to appointment of Directors on the Board. As per section 161 of the
Companies Act, 2013, the Board has limited power to appoint only Additional
Directors (who will hold the position up to the next Annual General Meeting),
Alternate Director (who will hold the position up to the date of tenure of original
Director in whose vacancy Alternate Director has been appointed) and Nominee
Director nominated by any institution or any government, or pursuant to any
agreement, The Board has power to appoint nominee Director if the Articles of

Association empowers the Board.



At present, the Board is composed off total eight Directors. The composition of the
Board is governed by Shareholders Agreement of the Company which prox}ides
that the Composition of Board will be of six representative directors comprising of
three Directors nominated by Rail Vikas Nigam Limited, One Director nominated
by Adani Petronet Dahej Port Private Limited and two Directors nominated by two
entities of Government of Gujarat (Gujarat Industrial Development Corporation
and Gujarat Maritime Board) and a Chainnan nominated by Ministry of Railways

and a Managing Director to be appointed by the Board.

Thus, out of the Board of eight Directors, seven Directors are nominee Directors.
Since the Articles of Association of the Company have not empowered the Board
to appoint nominee Directors, the Board usually appoints {on receipt of
nomination) nominee directors as Additional Director pursuant to Sectionl161 (1)
of the Companies Act, 2013 who holds position up to next Annual General
Meeting. In the next Annual General Meeting, the Company has to again invite
nomination/proposal with deposit of Rs. 1 lakh pursuvant to Section-160 of the
Companies Act, 2013. This deposit has to be refunded after the appointment of the

concerned nominee director.

Many of our nominees Directors are from Government or Government entities.
Sometimes, it is very difficult for such shareholders to release the deposit. Hence it
is sensed that the Company should simplify the procedure by empowering Board
pursuant to section 161(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 for appointing nominee

directors by amending Articles of Association.



As per the provisions of section 14 of the Companies Act, 2013the amendment in
the Articles of Association can be made by shareholders by passing Spécial

Resolution in the General Meeting.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and their relatives is interested in

the proposed resolution.
Your Directors recommend passing the above resolution as a Special Resolution.

By Order of the Board of Directors
For Bharuch Dahej Railway Company Limited,

o

Place: New Delhi (Beena R. Shah)
Date: 20.09.2017 Company Secretary




Form No. MGT-11
Proxy form
[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companles
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]
CIN: U45203DL2006PLC155511
Name of the company: BHARUCH DAHEJ RAILWAY COMPANY LIMITED
Registered office: 39-42, 3™ Floor, Indra Palace, H Block, Middle Circle, Connaught Place, New
Delhi

Name of the member (s) :
Registered address :
E-mail Id:

Folio No/ Client 1d :
DPID:

I/We, being the member (s) of ............. shares of the above named company, hereby appoint
IL.Name : ..ol

Address :

E-mail Id :

Signature :................ , or failing him
22Name . ..ooviiieeeeeeee e
Address:

E-mail Id :

Signature:................ , or failing him
IName: ..o
Address:

E-mail Id:

Signature:................

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 11™ Annual general

meeting/ Extracrdinary—general-meeting of the company, to be held on the day,
2017 at hrs. at Conference Room, Rail Vikas Nigam Ltd, August Kranti Bhawan, Bhikaji Cama

Place, New Delhi(place) and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated
below :

Resolution No.
Lt e e e
7P
K F PP

. . Affix
Signed this day of......... 20.... Revenue

Stamp

Signature of shareholder

Signature of Proxy holder(s)
Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the
Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the eommencement of the Meeting.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT



. Reglstered Office :
k # 39-42, (3rd Floor H Block) Indra Palace,
Connaught Circus Inner Circle,

BHARUCH DAHEJ New Delhi - 110 001
RAILWAY l:ggl’ﬂ“ I.'I%l{. Tel. : 011-43586814/17
e IR Frat for. Fax : 011 - 43586813

CIN : U45203 DL2006 PLG155511
DIRECTORS’ REPORT

DISTINGUISHED SHAREHOLDERS,

Directors of your Company feel privileged to present the Eleventh Annual Report of the Company
containing salient features of operations and business of your Company, along with the Audited
Annual Accounts for the year ended 31% March, 2017.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Highlights of Finaneials of the Company as on 31.03.2017 are as under:

Particulars Amount (in Rs. crore) Amount (in Rs. crore)
(For year ended 31.03.2017) {For year ended 31.03.2016)

Revenue from Operation 52.24 115.63
Other Income 8.19 717
Total Revenne [A] 60.43 122.80
O&M Cost 49.356 53.52
Finance Cost 19.02 21.26
Depreciation 12.85 12.75
Other expenses 234 245
Total Expenses[B] 8357 89.98
Profit before Tax [A-B} Q319 32.82
Taxes including Current Tax and 4.30) 16.41
Deferred Tax

Profit After Taxes (18.84) 16.41

INDIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

Accounts of your Company have been prepared in accordance with requirements of Indian
Aceounting Standards (IndAS). It may be recalled that the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA)
vide its Gazette notification dated February 16, 2015, launched the IndAS to be applicable to certain

specified classes of Companies. Your Company attracts applicability of the new Accounting

Cry)
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Standards. IndAS has replaeed the earlier Indian GAAP prescribed under section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts} Rules, 2014. IndAS is
applicable w.e.f. April 2016, with a transition date of April 1, 2015 for the Company.

COMPANY’S OPERATIONS:

You are aware that Bharuch Dahej Railway line became commercially operational from March

2012. Year wise summary of volume of Traffic handled from 2012 to 2017 are as under:

S.No. | Financial Year | No. of Rakes No. of Wagons Loading in
L 1 tonnes 1
[ 1 2012-13 B 1368 L 7@ 53716867
2 2013-14 B 1689 [ 98660 W‘
3 2014-15 2691 157094 108456&
‘ 4 2015-16 1591 92895 6428047
5 2016-17 | 838 T 48916 3385747

Lower volumes of traffic have occurred mainly due to external factors, manifesting in the form of
reduction in loading of coal, which was earlier the mainstay of your Company’s business. Such
reduction has been occasioned by a combination of factors, which include slowdown in the import
of coal in the face of enhanced indigenous production, and subducd growth in the national economy
having adverse impact on power production. The position has not improved during the current year,
as indicated below:

Year 2017-18 2016-17
Month No of No of Loading No of No of Loading
L Rakes | Wagons Tonnes Rakes | Wagons Tonnes
April 16 896 61604.40 i 45 2628 182262.60
May 56 3169 | 21029130 | I 5314 368661.00
" June 69 4009 276819.02 95 5553 384550.40 .
[ July 104 5982 410748.79 109Jr5370 435137.40
Total | 245 14056 | 959463.51 | 340 19865 | 137061 1.4:

Loading during initial months of 2017-18 has reduced by further 30% as compared with the loading
in the eorresponding period of 2016-17. However, the mix of freight traffic is undergoing a subtlc
change, and a diversificd business base is emerging. Your Company has made efforts, with some
success, to attraet alternative streams of traffic.

(3



Break up of Loading from Dahej Terminal (Container):

Year 2017/2018 2016/2017
Container Container
Month Traffic GYPSUM | TOTAL Traffie GYPSUM | TOTAL
April 3 6 9 2 0 2
May 6 8 14 2 0 2
June 2 7 9 2 0 2
July 2 18 20 2 0 2
Total 13 39 52 8 0 8

Note: 11 rakes of conventional containers were loaded from August 2016-Mareh 2017,

From a negligible share of less than 3% of total rakes belonging to non-coal traffic last year during
the same period, the share of such traffic this year has been over 21%. Happily, the container traffie
offered at the Terminal originated in multiple customers ineluding Pure Terephthalic
Acid dispatched by M/s. Reliance & Copper by M/s. Birla Copper:

OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE

The Operation & Maintenance (O&M) Agreement to be signed with Western Railway is still
awaiting finalization. Pending its finalization, Western Railway had been releasing revenue to
BDRCL on a provisional basis till October 2016. Responsibility of carrying out maintenance of
assets on the line remained with BDRCL till December, 2015, under appropriate supervision and
inspection by officers and supervisors of Western Railway. However, in compliance of the
conditions put forth by Commissioner of Railway Safcty while according approval for running of
passenger scrvices on the linc, Western Railway has taken over most of the maintenance activities
on the line during the year from January 2016 onwards. Consequently, the cost of carrying out
Q&M has escalated during the current year. Pursuant to elaborate discussions with Westemn
Railway, your Company has evolved an arrangement whercby only activities that are essentially
required to be carricd out by Railway employees have been transferred to Western Railway, with
the balance remaining the direet responsibility of BDRCL. This is expccted to mitigate the cost

increase to some extent.



PHYSICAL PROGRESS:

Barring a few eonstruction activities intended at enhancing the capacity for freight hand'ling at
Dahej Terminal, physical work on the project stands completed. Looking to the relatively low
volumes materialising, the Company had decided earlier that the work related to providing two
additional lines and a shunting neck at Dahej for handling container and other traffie shouid be
staggered into two phases. During the year, the work of construction of Line no. 5 with electronie-
in-motion weighbridge was completed in phase-1 and the line made operational. Residual aetivities
sueh as top wiring of the line and carrying out signalling modifications for interlocked working are
in progress. Work on construetion of line no.6 with a shunting neek will be taken In hand at a later

stage, in keeping with the volumes emerging.

The Shareholders may recall that the Company had handled peak traffic of up to 9-10 loaded rakes
in a day during 2014-15. A eonsolidation plan had accordingly been prepared, to be implemented
in phases in a need based manner. As an initial step, the Company had decided to split the longest
block section of about 16 kilometres between Dahej and Pakhajan by constructing a new station at
Sambheti, almost mid-way. The Company has applied for allotment of land (30mtrs x 700mts) to
GIDC for this eonstruction activity. On getting confirmation from GIDC, the Company will
approach Railways for approval of Engineering, Signalling and other plans for Construetion of a
3-line station. However, keeping in view the traffic that is being offered at present, we do not
pereeive immediate need to undertake this work. The Company would time this work in line with

the business offering so that premature investment in additional infrastructure is avoided.

Project Augmentation:

The Company recognised need for augmenting freight handling eapaeity at Dahej Terminal in the
light of dwindling loading at the terminal of a principal customer, keeping in view the latent
capaeity in the local industry to offer significant volumes of eontainer traffie. Aeeordingly, it was
deeided to construet a full rake length rail level platform measuring 700m x 33m to facilitate
handling of container traffic together with adequate storage of empty and loaded containers, at an
approximate cost of Rs. 10.73 crore. The proposed augmentation would enable the Company to
stack two rows of containers in double layers equating to containers pertaining to four rakes,
besides handling loading/unloading of containers in another rake. The construction of Rail Level
platform is in full swing, with very substantial progress achieved, and the facility is expected to be
ready for use by October, 2017. The management expects that on resolution of a few outstanding

issucs like classification of terminal with Railways, handling one container a day would fetch net

L)



of expenses revenue of about Rs. 1.75 lakh resulting in yearly revenue of about Rs. 5.25 crore
(assuming 300 rakes in a year). With loading at 3 rakes in a day, the annual revenue would be Rs.
15.75 erore. Resultantly paybaek period will be at a little over two years in a pessimistie scenario

and a little under one year in an optimistic scenarto.

ISSUE OF LAND LICENSE FEE

BDRCL is a gauge conversion project, and a BG line was constructcd on existing land of Western
Railway used up for an NG line earlier. The Concession Agreement specifically provides that
Annual Lease Rental for original land of Western Railway shall be “as per extant poliey of Ministry
of Railways as revised from time to time”. According to a policy on participative models of rail
connectivity notified by the Ministry on 10" December, 2012, tand licensing for gauge conversion
JV projeets like BDRCL attraets only a token charge. According to this poliey, Railway Land as
available in case of Gauge conversion projects will be made available on lease license at a token
rental fee of Re. 1.00 per annum. Therefore, this letter read together with the Concession Agreement
implies that from 10" December 2012, Land License Fee to be charged from BDRCL must stand

at Re. | per annum.

Unfortunately, the Railways had taken a different interpretation, according to which recovery at
6% of market value of land is being demanded every year, and the market value is updated each
year by inflating it by 7% each year. The rate of reeovery has been recently revised upwards by
Westemn Railway by obtaining fresh circle rates for land prices from civil authorities, leading to
more than doubling of the claim. This had resulted in total accumulated land lease rental amount

of Rs. 175.26 crore up to March, 2017.

Railway Board had earlier, vide their letter No. 2010/Infra/18/6 Pt. I dated 29.11.2012, held in
abeyance recovery of Land Lease charges from BDRCL pending final decision in the matter.
However, they recently issued a letter no 2010/Infra/18/6/ Pt.I dated 28.11.2016 directing Westemn
Railway to effect recovery of land lease rentals in accordance with the extant rules along with

intercst liability thereon.

Since the decision conveyed clearly stands counter to the provisions of the Concession Agreement,
the mattcr was again represented by BDRCL to Railway Board. On the issuc of Land License fee,
besides the provisions of the Concession Agrecment referred to above, it had also been pointed out
that the Railway’s interpretation would create serious differences among various SPVs on charge

for land as other Companies are all being charged a token fixed charge on this account. We had
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also pointed out that there is apparently no rationale or justifiable basis for such differentiation as

BDRCL does not get any preferential treatment in any other matter.

Sceing merit in the contention of BDRCL, Railway Board had set up a Committee of Executive
Directors to examine about ten issues raised by BDRCL (including the issue of Land License Fee),
which impact the SPV adversely, and to make its recommendations. It is understood that the
Committee has objectively reviewed position in regard to each of the ten issues flagged and has
given its recommendations. The recommendations are under consideration of the Railway Board

for decision.

The Annual Accounts of the Company for the year 2016-17 have been prepared. As matters stand,
the demand of the Railways on account of land lease charges is not only exorbitant but is also not
in accordance with the provisions of the Concession Agreement. The matter is under examination
in the Ministry, and likelihood of a favourable decision for BDRCL is high. Your Directors had
accordingly considered the matter and felt that if the demand of WR 1s complied with, there would
be massive negative impact on the Company’s financials making the net worth of the Company
negative. Credit rating of the Company would be downgraded a few notches to junk grade from a
healthy investment grade at present, and the cost of funds would go up steeply. In the event of this
course being taken, and the Annual Accounts 2016-17 being prepared accordingly, even the happy
event of Railway Board finally taking a favourable view in the matter would also not be able to
reverse the adverse impact anytime soon. Both external agencies, viz. the Credit Rating Agency
and the lender Bank, would take possibly a couple of years to restore status quo ante, during which

period, the very existence of BDRCL as a viable entity would become virtually untenable.

Your Directors had accordingly endorsed the suggestion of the management of the Company that
the most pragmatic and least damaging course would be to take on record through an explicit
disclosure in the Annual Accounts 2016-17 of the Company the orders of the Railway contained in
their letter dated 28-11-2016. However, pending final decision of Railway Board, the Company
should not incorporate the impact of the additional demand for land lease license in the Accounts.
The Board of Directors also decided that onee Railway Board’s final decision in the matter is
received, the same would be taken cognizance of in the first Accounts of BDRCL to be prepared
and presented thereafter. It may be mentioned that vide letter dated 24.07.2017, Railway Board has
advised the Company the matter is under examination, implying that there is no finality in the

matter as yet.
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RESERVES AND DIVIDEND

The Loss after Tax for the year 2016-17 is Rs.18.84 Crore. This has condensed the Combany’s
accumulated profits to Rs. 9.31 Crore. In view of above, your Directors seek your indulgence in

endorsing their decision of not declaring any dividend for the year 2016-17.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE
The Company’s Authorized Share Capital is Rs. 165 Crore. The Company’s Paid up Share Capital
is Rs. 155.11 Crore. The Company has not issued any further Equity Shares during the year.

FUTURE BUSINESS OUTLOOK

Drop in traffic during recent months notwithstanding, it is the view of the management that going
forward, there will be demand for carrying significant volumes of freight traffic on the line not only
on a sustained but on a growing basis. While the traffic offered by our major customer may not
replicate the [evels of 2014-15 anytime soon, it is expected to be sustained at 3-4 rakes of muitiple
commodities including coal and gypsum in a day. Besides, the Company also expects that the
ongoing augmentation in handling container facility at Dahej will result in the traffie at Dahej
terminal to grow significantly. The total volume expeeted in the foreseeable future should suffice

for an above-breakeven performance of the Company.
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

During the year, the Company appointed Shri Ajay Bhadoo as Director on the Board of BDRCL
after he was nominated by Gujarat Maritime Board, in place of Shri A. K. Rakesh. Shri Ajay
Bhadoo is Vice Chairman & CEO in Gujarat Maritime Board. He was appointed as Additional
Director w.e.f. 13.10.2016 and will hold this position till the date of Annual General Meeting.

Based on a nomination received from the Ministry of Railways, the Company appointed Shri
Anirudh Jain, AMW (Works), as Chairman w.e.f. 17.01.2017. He eeased to be Director w.e.f
31.07.2017 eonsequent upon his retirement on superannuation on 31.07.2017. Smt. D. Thara,
Direetor (nominee Direetor GIDC) ceased to be Director w.e.f. 02.08.2017 pursuant to Section
167(1) (b) of the Companies Act, 2013. Smt. Bela Banerjee and Shri S. P. Chaturvedi, Independent

Direetors resigned from the position of Directors pursuant to amendment in Rule 4 of the
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Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors)Rules 2014 under which a Joint Venture

Company sueh as BDRCL is not required to appoint Independent Directors.

Based on a nomination reeeived from the Rail Vikas Nigam limited, the Company appointed Smt
Meenu Dang, GGM(Finance)/RVNL as Additional Director w.e.f20.09.2017 viee Smt. Chhavi JTha

who ceased to be Director pursuant to her transfer/repatriation from RVNL.

The Board of Directors appreciates the valuable contribution made by Shri Anirudh Jain, Smt.
Bela Banerjee, Shri S. P. Chaturvedi and Smt. Chhavi Jha during their tenure as Directors in the
Company. Their guidanee during a difficult macroeeconomic environment was indeed most

valuable.

During the period, the tenure of Shri Rajendra Kashyap, Managing Director came to an end on
11.08.2017. Even though he was reluctant to be reappointed as Managing Director, he accepted his
reappointment as MD from 12.08.2017 to 22.09.2017 for finalising the aceounts of the Company..

At present the Board of Directors of the Company consists of six Direetors liable to retire by
rotation. Qut of them, two Directors namely Shri Sajal Mittra and Shri Amit Kumar Singh will
retire by rotation in 11™ Annua! General Meeting and being eligible offer themselves for re-

appointment.

The present composition of Board of Directors is as under:
1. Shri Sajal Mittra, Director (from Adani Petronet Dahej Port Private Limited)
Shri Amit K. Singh, Director {from Rail Vikas Nigam Limited)
Shri Vinay Singh, Director (from Rail Vikas Nigam Limited)
Smt. Meenu Dang, Director (from Rail Vikas Nigam Limited)
Shri Rajendra Kashyap, Managing Director
Shri Ajay Bhadoo, Director (from Gujarat Maritime Board)

A i

Nominations are awaited from Ministry of Railways for the position of Chairman and from

Gujarat Industrial Development Corporation for the position of a Director.
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Attendance of Directors at Board Meeting:
During the year, the Board of Directors had five meetings on 25.05.2016, 22.08.2016, 27.09.2016
22.12.2016 and 29.03.2017.

S1

No.

Name of

Directors

Date of Board Meetings

25.05.2016

22.08.2016

27.09.2016

22.12.2016

29.03.2017

Shri Anirudh

Jain, Chairman

Present

Present

Shri Rajendra
Kashyap,
Managing

Director

Present

Present

Present

Present

Present

Smt. Bela
Banerjee,
Independent

Diirector

Present

Present

Present

Present

Present

Shri 8. P.
Chaturvedi,
Independent

Director

Present

Present

Present

Present

Present

Shri Vinay
Singh, Director

Present

Present

Present

Present

Present

Shri M. K.
Singh, Director

Ceased

Ceased

Ceased

Ceased

Ceased

Shri Ashutosh

Gangal, Director

Ceased

Ceased

Ceased

Ceased

Ceased

Shrt A. K.

Rakesh, Director

LOA

Ceased

Ceased

Ceased

Ceased
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Shri Manoj
Aggarwal,

Director

LOA

1 Ceased

Ceased

Ceased

| Ceased j

10

Shri A. K.
Singh, Director

LoA

Present

Present

LOA

Present

Shri Sajal
Mittra, Director

Present

Present

Present

Present

Present

12.

Smt. Chhavi

Jha, Director

LOA

Present

Present

Present

Present

13.

Smt. D. Thara,

Director

LOA

LOA

LOA

LOA

14.

Shri Ajay
Bhadoo,

Director

LOA

LOA

15.

Sh. Laj Kumar,

Chairman

Present

Ceased

Ceased

Ceased

Ceased

AUDIT COMMITTEE:

The Company had the following Key Managerial Personnel during the year:

1.
2. Smt. Beena R. Shah, Company Secretary, since 01.07.2013.
3.

Shri Rajendra Kashyap, Managing Director, appointed w.e.f. 12.08.2014

Shri Balkishan Sharma, Chief Financial Officer, designated w. e. f. 05.09.2014.

During the year the Company had a duly constituted Audit Committec for ensuring transparency

in the financial management of the Company. During the year, the composition of the Audit

Committec was as under:
1.

2. Smt. Bela Banerjee, Independent Director

Shri S. P. Chaturvedi, Independent Director

3. Smt. Chhavi Jha, Dircctor
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Attendance of Members at Audit Committee Meeting:

During the year, the Audit Committee had three meetings on 22.08.2016, 22.12.2016 and
29.03.2017.

81 Name of Directors Date of Meetings of Audit Committee
No.

22.08.201¢6 22.12.2016 29.03.2017

1. Shri S. P. | Present Present Present
Chaturvedi,
Director

2. Smt. Bela | Present Present Present

Banerjce, Director

3. Smt. Chhavi Jha, | Present Present Prcsent

Director

The Committce was dissolved w.e.f. 11.08.2017 pursuant to amendment in Rule 6 of the
Companies (meetings of the Board and its powers) Rules, 2014 under which Joint Venture
Companies are not required to eonstitute Audit Committee and Nomination & Remuneration

Committee.
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INTERNAL AUDITOR
M/s Sunil K Gupta & Associates, Chartered Aeeountants have been appointed as Internal Auditors
of the Company, and their appointment has been extended for the Financial Year 2017-18.

Internal Auditors have been discharging their role of carrying out various assigned functions,
including checking adequacy of intemal control systems in the organization. They have also been
presenting their Internal Audit Report in meeting of the Audit Committee, and participating in the

ensuing discussion.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
The Board of Directors of the Company in pursuancc of Section 134 (5) of the Companies Act,

2013 as amcnded hereby confirms that:

i) in the preparation of annual aecounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed

along with proper explanation rclating to material departurcs;

ii} the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit of the eompany
for that period;

iii) the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenanee of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company
and for preventing and dctecting fraud and other irregularities;

iv) the Direetors have prepared the annual aceounts on a going concern basis; and

v) the Direetors have devised proper systems to ensure complianee with the provisions of all

applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectivcly.
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AUDITOR’S REPORT

Auditor’s Report is enclosed as part of the Directors’ Report. Comments of the Management on the
qualifications/comments made by the Auditor in their Report are enclosed as Annexure-Al and
A2 to the Directors’ Report.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
Secretarial Audit Report is placed with the Direetors’ Report as Annexure B for consideration of
Shareholders. The Report finds the Secretarial praetices in line with the laid down requirements.

No qualification has been made by the Secretarial Auditor.

DISCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS RELATING TO CONSERVATION OF ENERGY,
TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS & OUTGO

Information under section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 8 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 and forming part of the Directors’ Report for the year ended 319 March,

2017 is given below:

i) Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo
The Company has neither earned nor expended any foreign cxchange during the financial year
2016-17.

ii) Conservation of Energy and Technology Absorption

The Company is conscious of the need to keep all the cost elements at the barest minimum level
including the energy cost. It is also aware of the responsibility to conserve energy in an overall
energy deficit seenario in the Country. The Company has made signifieant investment upfront to
eonstruct a Railway line which runs on electrie traetion, and is significantly more environment

friendly than the altemnative diesel traction.
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN:

The extraet of Annual Return in form MGT-9 enelosed at Annexure C forms a part of Board’s

report.
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STATEMENT ON DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENCE U/S 149 OF THE COMPANIES
ACT, 2013:
The Company has received Deelaration of Independenee pursuant to Seetion 149 of the Companies
Act, 2013 from each of the two Independent Directors namely Smt. Bela Banerjee and Shri S. P.
Chaturvedi.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE AND HR ISSUES

The Board of Directors had constituted a Nomination and Remuneration Committee as requircd
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The Board of Direetors had also approved a
Nomination and Remuneration Policy. The composition of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee during the year was as undcr:

1. Smt. Bela Banerjee, Independent Director

2. Sh. S. P. Chaturvedi, Independent Direetor

3. Sh. Sajal Mittra, Director

During the year, the Committee met twice on 22.08.2016 and 20.10.2016.

Attendanee of Members at Nomination and Remuneration Committee Meeting:

SL No | Name of the Directors Date of Board Meetings

22.08.2016 20.10.2016

Shri S.P. Chaturvedi,

| Director Present Present
2 Smt. Bela Banerjee, Director | Present Present
3 Shri Sajal Mittra, Director | Present LOA

The Committee was dissolved pursuant to amendment in Rule 6 of the Companies (meetings of the
Board and its powers) Rules, 2014 under which Joint Venture Companies are not required to

constitute Audit Committee and Nomination & Remuneration Committec.
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EMPLOYEES

As mentioned earlier, maintenanee of the assets on the line has been with the Company sinee 2012.
Apart from a very lean cadre of its own regular employees, the Company has engaged staff on
contractual basis for maintaining the engineering and signalling assets, and for carrying out other

essential aetivities.

At present, the Company had a total of 119 employees. Out of these, 7 are employed on regular
basis, and 112 engaged on contraetual basis. The contraetual employees had a mix of 17 retired

railway employees, and 95 fresh faees, deployed after suitable training,

REPORTING UNDER SECTION 21 OF THE SEXUAL HARASSEMENT OF WOMEN AT
WORK PLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013
The following is a summary of sexual harassment complaints received and disposed off during the

calendar year.

Number of Complaints received: NIL
Number of Complaints disposed of: NIL

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEE OR INVESTMENTS U/S 186

During the year, the Company has neither given loans, nor given any guarantee or security to any
person or Body Corporate, nor made any investment pursuant to Section 186 of the Companies
Act, 2013

PARTICULARS OF RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
During the year 2016-17, the Company had not entered into any Related Party Transaction.

STATEMENT ON RISK MANAGEMENT

The management of your Company is constantly engaged in the proeess of identifying risks,
asscssing risks and developing strategies to manage risks. While a risk management plan and a
business impact analysis are important parts of a business, early stages of a business should
combine optimal utilization of opportunities with effective risk management. Your Coinpany is in
the business of rail transportation. Cost advantages and environmental superiority associated with

rail transport make the business of your Company a promising proposition.
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Your Directors are aware that a business of this size and nature must be subjectcd to constant review
of various risks, and appropriate risk-mitigation measures 1nust be taken from time to tiine. The
major risks perceived for the Company include:

e Issues of control by Indian Railways — cost issues;

» Capacity constraints, and roadblocks in capacity enhancement;

o Constraints in financing the capacity augmentation activities;

» Need for diversifying customer base; and

e Possible damage/loss through acts of God.

In the assessment of the management, duly endorsed by your Directors, the risks identified are low
to moderate. Y our Company plans to approach capacity enhancement through diverse interventions
in a need based manner, consistent with the trend of offering traffic. Financing the capacity
enhancement will need to follow a mix of internal gencration and debt. The Company is already
gearing up to ineet the demand for rail transportation amongst diverse customers. As regards

possible impact of acts of God, the Company keeps its assets suitably insured.

In the view of your Directors, BDRCL’s approach to risk management is dynamic and proactive,

and reviews will be taken from time to time to bring about appropriate interventions.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
The information to be reported under the head of CSR is annexed as Annexure D forming part of

the Board of Directors’ Report.
FORMAL ANNUAL EVALUATION BY THE BOARD OF ITS OWN PERFORMANCE:

The Company has a Performance Evaluation Poliey in place, setting parameters relating to roles,
responsibilities and obligations of the Board, effeetiveness of its functioning, contribution of
Directors at meetings and the functioning of its Committees. Evaluation of performance has been
made at three levels — by the Independent Directors, by the Nomination and Remuneration

Committee and by the Board of Directors.

The Board of Directors has undertaken an evaluation of its own performance, the performance of

its Committees and of all the individual Directors and considered the same as satisfactory.
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STATEMENT OF ASSOCIATION:

Bharuch Dah¢j Railway Company Limited is a joint venture special purpose vehicle. Rail Vikas
Nigam Limited being shareholder holding 35.46% of paid up share capital is an associated
Company.

DETAILS OF FIXED DEPOSIT:
During the year, the Company has neither invited has nor accepted any deposits covering under
Chapter V of the Companies Act, 2013.

ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL WITH REFERENCE TO
FINANCIAL STATEMENT:

The Company had in place adequate Internal Financial Controls with referenee to finaneial
statements during the year under review. A four stage mechanism has been put in place in this
regard. Apart from the Finance department of the Company holding direct responsibility in the
matter, the Intermal Auditor of the Company also examines the systems in place for their adequaey.
Finally, the Statutory Auditor of the Company also includes comments on this aspect as part of
their Report. Such eontrols have been constantly tested and no reportable material weakness in the

design or operation was observed.
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DETAILS OF COURT CASES:

The Company is facing cases under Servicc Tax and Labour laws which are as under:

The Statement of cases under Service Tax:

i,r' Case No. Title of case Title Status of the
0. case

A Service Tax

i Show Cause | 1. Show causc notice in relation to No further
Notice no. services render by BDRCL to WR for the communieation
158/2014 FY 2011-12, 12-13 and 13-14 amounting has recetved till
dated Rs. 16,33,14,441 was recelved by date
21.10.2014 Company as on 03-11-2014.

2. In relation to above context the
Company submitted reply to notice on 02-
01-2015.

3. Thereafter personal hearing took place
on 22.09.2015 before Principal
Commissioner of Service Tax, Delhi
which resulted in an order being passed in
favor of Company (Order No.-C. No DL-
III/STAV/16/40/BDRCL 2015).

4. The department has gone into appeal
against above mentioned order vide
Appeal No. 8T/51763/2016-CU [DB].

2 Show Cause | 1. Show eause notice in relation to No further
Notice no. services render by BDRCL to WR for the communication
06/2016 FY 2014-15 amounting Rs. 16,37,96,945 has received till
dated was received by Company as on 04-04- date
31.03.2016 2016.

2. In relation to above context the
Company submitted reply to notice on 24-
05-2016.

A list of cases involving other labour issues is enclosed as Annexure-E.
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Addendum to Directors’ Report

Anrexane -Az

S.No.

1.

Auditors’ Qualification

Management Comment

| Basis for qualified opinion

(a) Reference is drawn to Note No.
12.2.1 of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements. Western Railways has raised a
claim towards recovery of Land License fees
in respect of land leased to the Company for
Rs. 14535.21 Lakh for the period 25th June
2008 to 31st March 2016 {consider the
impact up to 31st March, 2017, the amount
increases to Rs. 17526.6 Lakh) along with
interest thereon. Out of the aforesaid claim,
the company has accrued Rs. 5526.90
Lakhs (previous year Rs. 4,079.54 Lakhs)
and has classified the same under Financial
Liabilites — Non Current in the standalone
ind AS financial statements.
As per information and explanations
provided, the company has contested the
claim as violate of the provisions in the
Concession Agreement and the matier is
currently under consideration in the Railway
Board. Considering the pendency of matier
as on date of signing of this report, we
are unable to ascertain the actual liability
that may eventually crystalize in the case
and consequently the impact if any, of the
above on the standalone Ind AS financial
statements of the company is not
ascertainable. Further it is noted that
subsequent to raising the demand, Western
Railways has not appoertioned and remitted
the share of Revenue to the company till the
date of signing of this report. However, in
absence of any confirmation from Western
Railways on the recovery made so far, the

impact of same on the standalone Ind AS

The Company has disclosed the facts
regarding the Land lLease Charges in the
Financial Statement through Note No-
12.2.1 and Note No -35 (iii).

In the company's opinion, the Concession
Agreement signed with Ministry of Railways
mandates that annual lease rental payable
to Western Railway for Railway land made
available for the project should be Re. 1 per
annum from 10th December, 2012, and that
the position taken by Western Railway is not
tenable. Elaborating, it is the Company's
contention that according to the Concession
Agreement, the lease rental has to be
computed “as per the extant policy of the
Ministry of Railways as revised from time to
time". The policy contained in Railway Board
letter No. 2011/Infra/12/32 dated 10-12-
2012, is presently the extant policy in
operation and applicable to SPV's under JV
model. It envisages a token annual rental of
Re. 1 for Railway Land transferred to the
SPV for gauge conversion projects.

Further, for the period before Date of
Commercial Operation, Western Railway
has been charging license fee assuming
that the land was put to commercial usage.
As a matter of fact, during the period when
the line was under construction, there was
no question of commercial utilization of land
as no revenue was accruing to the
Company. It is therefore the position of
BDRCL that land license fee at commercial
rates cannot be charged for the period
before commencement of train operations.
As regards period from date of
commencement of operations to date of new
policy (i.e. March 2012 to Sth December
2012) also, land use cannot be construed as
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financial statements of the Company could
not be ascertained

for commercial purposes. Train operations
where major portion of revenue accrues to
Indian Railways cannot be treated as a
commercial activity attracting license fee at
rates reflecting commercial exploitation and
justifying 6% annual return on value of land.

Management have explained the matter to
top management in the Railway Board by
writing letters to Chairman Railway Board,
Financial Commissioner and Adviser Infra
and requesting that a decision on the
recommendations of a Committee of EDs
set up by the Ministry to examine this and
other issues be expedited.

Railway Board has informed the Company
that “the matter is under consideration and
the decision on the same, once finalized, will
be communicated in due course” vide letter
No.2017/Infra/12/20 Pt. dated 24.07.2017.

Since payment of Land License Fee
demanded by WR is at gross variance with
the amount payable as per Concession-
Agreement, there is no way the Company
can compromise on its position. Since the
matter is under consideration in Railway
Board office based on EDs Committee
recommendations, the Company expects a
favourable decision in the matter soon.
Company is confident that actual liability on
this account would be settled at a much
lower level than the amount demanded by
the railway, and the amount of contingent
fiability provided for needs no
argumentation.

(b) Reference is drawn to Note No. 19 and
Note No 8.1 to the standalone Ind AS
financial statements. The Income from
Railway Operations of Rs 5159.37 lakhs
(previous year 11136.90 lakhs) includes
revenue amounting to Rs. 418.98 lakhs
(previous year Rs. 2296.97 lakhs) pertaining
to Bharuch-Chavaj section computed on
provisional basis. The revenue recognized is

1. In connection with receivables of Rs
271595 Lakhs from the Western
Railway towards revenue pertaining
to Bharuch-Chavaj Section, Western
Railway has already adjusted an
amount of Rs 419.25 Lakhs vide
receipt for apportionment of Goods
Traffic earning for the m/o July 2016.
Hence the receivables in this
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outstanding as Trade Receivable of Rs.
2715.95 lakhs as on the balance sheet date.
As per information and explanations
provided, the revenue apportionment by
Western Railways does not include the
apportionments for share of revenue
towards the Bharuch - Chavaj section and
that there is no written confirmation on
account of Revenue from the Western
Railways for support the above claim.
Further, the company has also recognized
the 'Intangible assels’ pertaining to this
section as the freight sharing rights of the
company. However, the concession
agreement execuied with the Ministry of
Railways dated 25th June 2008 does not
include the said section as it was not
envisaged at the time of agreement. Based
on the audit procedures performed and
gueries made, we are unable to ascertain
whether the company should recognize the
corresponding revenue and Intangible asset
in accordance with Ind AS 18 — Revenue
and Ind AS 11- Construction Contracts
respectively. Accordingly, we are unable to
ascertain the amount of the consideration
that will be derived from the above claim, the
extent of recoverability of the same and
consequential impact of the same on the
standalone Ind AS financial statements

connection are Rs. 2296.7 Lakhs.

2. Originally, this SPV was expected to
provide rail connectivity between
Dahej and Bharuch only. Later, for
operational reasons, the Company
was asked by the Railway to
construct an extension by way of an
additional line parallel to the
corresponding segment of Mumbai-
New Delhi main line of Western
Railway between Bharuch and
Chavaj. The new line from Bharuch {o
Chavaj was accordingly consiructed
on Railway land by BDRCL.
However, the Concession Agreement
between the Ministry of Railways and
BDRCL does not make mention of
Chavaj for the simple reason that
connectivity with Chavaj was not
envisaged at the time the Agreement
was drafted and signed.

3. The present position is that the
additional connectivity over 5.52km of
distance between Bharuch and
Chavaj has been provided by BDRCL
and made operational from February
2014. For a line constructed at the
Railway's instance on Railway land at
BDRCL's  cost, it is plain
commonsense that the
apportionment of freight earnings
corresponding fo movement of traffic
on this segment should also be
calculated on the same basis i.e.
chargeable distance from Dahej to
Chavaj.

That the contention of BDRCL is not based
on mere surmise and conjecture is amply
and unambiguously borne out by the fact
that in terms of Westemn Railway's Advance
Rates Notification No. 15 (Goods) of 2012
— Para for Rate Advice 04 of 2012, issued
on 20/03/2012, it was clearly and explicitly
stated as under: |
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1.0)

2.0)

3.0)

Raifway Board vide their letfer
No. TCR/1099/2012/03 dated
28/02/2012 (Rates Circular No.
06 of 2012) had accorded
sanction of the Central
Govemnment fo inflate the
distance for charge by 50%
(Fifty Percent) for the purpose of
charging the freight on the
Chavaj-Bharuch-Dahej section
of Western Railway with effect
from 01.03.2012 and will remain
in force till further advice.

The matter was reviewed by
Board and further vide lefter No.
TCR/1099/2012/03 dated 29-02-
2012 (Comigendum No. 1 fo
Rafes Circufar No. 05 if 2012),
instructions were issued fo
inflate the distance for charge
by 50% (Fify Percent) in
kilometers for the purpose of
charging the freight for the
portion of the line under the
SPV conirol between Chavaj-
Bharuch-Dahej.

The matter has been further
reviewed by Board vide letter
no. TCR/1099/2012/03 dated
156/03/2012 (Comigendum No. 2
to Rates Circular No. 05 of
2012), it has been decided that
that in case of both Coaching
and Goods [fraffic, either
onginating or terminating on the
portion of the line under the
SPV's control, the distance may
be inflated by 50% (Fifty
Percent) in kilomefers on
Chavaj-Bharuch-Dahej section
for the purpose of charging fare
and freight. These instructions
will come into force with
immediate effect and will remain
in force till further advice.
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The three letters of Railway Board were all
issued even before the Bharuch-Chavaj
segment was  commissioned. Quite
obviously, there has been and remains a
clear commitment on the part of Ministry of
Railways and Western Railway to
compensate BDRCL for traffic run on the
extended section between Bharuch and
Chavaj. It is the management's contention
that the Railway taking time in transferring
the amount to BDRCL is only a matter of
administrative delay. The delay is entirely
procedural, awaiting amendment in the
Concession Agreement. The amendment is
in turn gefting delayed on account
interrelatedness of issues in the O&M
Agreement, which are awaiting policy
decision of the Railway Board. There cannot
be an iota of doubt that the revenue shall
ultimately flow to BDRCL, net of O&M costs.
Since the release of subject payment is
getting delayed merely on account of the
above factors, we do not find any
uncertainty whatsoever in recognizing
BDRCL's share in the revenue for traffic-
moved between Bharuch and Chavaj. As
explained above that the Western Railway
has deducted the amount of Rs 418.25
Lakhs towards the O&M cost pertained to
Bharuch-Chavaj section, which itself
confirmed that such section belongs to the
Company and the related income and
expenditure also pertained to the Company.

Accordingly, we are of the firm opinion that
the Company has recognized the
corresponding revenue entirely consistent
with Ind AS- 18.

( C) Reference is drawn to Note No. 47 of
the standalone Ind AS financial statements
on Obligation to Restore project assets to
specified level of serviceability. In terms of
Concession agreement, there is an
obligation on the Company to keep the
project assets in working condition, including

Ind-AS 37 defines a provision as a liability of
uncertain timing and amount and prescribes
conditions that have to be satisfied for
recognition of a provision.

A provision shall be recognised when:
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making replacement, as per laid down
standards of Ministry of Railways, of all
project assets whose lives expire during the
concession period. Accordingly, Company is
required to provide for in respect of
replacement obligations arising during the
remaining concession period as per
requirement of Appendix A of the Ind AS 11
at the best estimate of expenditure required
to settle the obligation. However, the
company has not estimated and provided for
the aforesaid obligation in the financial
statements. In the absence of information
we are unable to ascertain the impact of the
above on the standalone Ind AS financial
statements of the company

¢ an entity has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) that is a result of a past event;

e it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation; and

e a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision shalt
be the best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at
the end of the reporting period. In other
words, the amount that an entity would
rationally pay to settle the obligation at the
end of the reporting period or to transfer it to
a third party at that time. The estimates of
outcome and financial effects are
determined by the judgment of the
management of the entity, supplemented by
experience and in some cases, reports from
independent experts.

As per the concession agreement Company
is under an obligation to keep the project
assets in working condition, including
making replacement, as per laid down
standards of MOR. However, at present
reliable estimate for restoration obligation is
not available, therefore provision for same
has not been recognised in financial
statements, the same will be provided in the
year in which estimate becomes reliable.
The facts has been disclosed in note 47 of
financial statements.

(D) Reference is drawn fo Note No. 4 and
Note No. 48 to the standalone Ind AS
financial  statements. The financial
statements for the year ended March 31,
2017 are the first Ind AS compliant financial
statements of the Company. In preparing
these financial statements, the company's

Para 5 of IndAs 8 provides that application
of an accounting policy can be treated as
Impracticable when:
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opening balance sheet was prepared as at
1st April 2015 considered as date of
transition to Ind-AS. Appendix A to Ind AS
11 applies to the Company in respect of the
Project  Railway  service  concession
arrangement. The Company has opted to
apply this appendix from the transition date
prospectively as the management does not
find it practicable to apply this appendix
retrospectively. Based on audit procedures
and queries made, we are unable to obtajn
sufficient appropriate audit evidence to
ascertain that retrospective application of
Appendix A to Ind AS 11 is impracticable as
defined in Ind AS 8 to avail the exemption of
Ind AS 101. Consequently, we are unable to
ascertain the impact, of the above on the
standalone Ind AS financial statements of
the company.

(a) The effects of the retrospective
application or retrospective
restatement are not determinable;

{b) The
retrospective

retrospective application or
restatement requires
assumptions about what
management's intent would have
been in the period; or

(c) the retrospective application or
retrospective restatement requires
significant estimates of amounts and
it is impossible to distinguish
objectively information about those
estimates that: (i) provides evidence
of circumstances that existed on the
date(s) as at which those amounts
are to be recognised, measured or
disclosed; and (ii) would have been
available when the financial
statements for that prior period were
approved for issue from other
information.

Considering the impracticability as defined
in the para 5 of Ind AS -8 defined above
which includes requirement of what could be
management’'s intention at that time,
circumstances as on date transactions and
other relevant information since the date of
signing of concession agreement.

Accordingly, due to the facts given above
Management has decided to apply
requirement of this appendix prospectively

Further, exemption adopted by company is
in line with the exemption available in para
D 22 of Ind AS 101. Para D22 of IndAs
states as under:

|
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A first-time adopter may apply the following
provisions while applying the Appendix A to
Ind AS 11:

i) Subject to paragraph (ii), changes in
accounting policies are accounted for in
accordance with Ind AS 8, ie.
refrospectively, except for the policy
adopted for amortization of Intangible
Assets arising from Service Concession
Arrangement related to toll roads in financial
statement for the period ending immediately
before the beginning of ist Ind AS financial
reporting period as per previous GAAP.

i) If, for any particular service arrangement,
it is impracticable for an operator to apply
this Appendix retrospectively at the date of
transition, it shall:

a) recognise financial assets and
intangible assets that existed at the
date of transition to Ind AS.

b} use the previous carrying amounts of
those financial and intangible assets
(however previously classified) as
their carrying amounts as at that
date; and

¢) test financial and intangible assets
recognised at that date for
impairment, unless this is not
practicable, in which case the
amounts shall be tested for
impairment as at the start of the
current period.

i) There are two aspects to retrospective
determination: reclassification and re-
measurement. It will usually be practicable
to determine retrospectively the appropriate

3%




classification of all amounts previously
included in an operator's balance sheet, but
that retrospective re-measurement of
service arrangement assets might not
always be practicable. However, the fact
should be disclosed.

In terms of sub-para D22(iii), as reproduced
above, if in the management's view it is
found impracticable to give retrospective
effect, the fact should be disclosed. In the
view of BDRCL's management,
retrospective effect is impracticable and this
fact has been duly disclosed in Note No.
48.1.3 Service Concession Arrangement in
to the financia! statement of the Company.
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S.No.

Emphasis of Matter

Management Comment

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw
attention to Note No. 19 & Note No. 21 to
the standalone Ind AS financial statements,
The Operation and Maintenance Agreement
with the Western Railway that defines
among others, right & obligations, the share
of Income & Expenses to be apportioned to
the Company arising out of the operation of
the Bharuch Dahej Samni Railway Line by
the Company has not yet been signed. The
Company has however recognized the
operating income and expenses arising out
of this arrangement which is yet to be
formalized.

We further draw attention to Note No.19 and
Note No. 21 to the standalone Ind AS
financial statements. The Operating Income
& Operating Expenses accounted for by the
Company are based on provisional figures
made available by the Western Railway and
the final figures could vary. Our Opinion is
not qualified in respect of this matter

A few items in the O & M Agreement, where
there was difference of opinion with Western
Railway, are presently under examination
and discussion with the Ministry of Railways.
The Agreement has not been finalized as
with the existing difference of opinion on
important elements such as Land Lease
Charges, manpower levels, method of
computation of Fuel Costs, basis of OHE
Maintenance costs, overhead charges,
treatment of sidings, apportionment of
Terminal costs etc., interests of BDRCL
would get severely compromised if
Railway's views are accepted. The
management has flagged the issues to the
Railway Board, which are under
examination. The Agreement is expected to
be finalized once the matters get resolved
after Ministry's decision on
recommendations of EDs’ Committee.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
BHARUCH DAHEJ RAILWAY COMPANY LIMITED

sd/-

{Rajendra Kashyap)
Managing Director
DIN-00367378

Place:; New Delhi
Date: 20.09.2017

(3%

sd/-

(Vinay Singh)
Director
DIN-003324677




FORM NO. MGT 9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

as on financial year ended on 31.03.2017

{Management & Administration ) Rules, 2014.

Pursuant to Section 92 (3] of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1} of the Company

{REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

R R

e i e e .
{ i CIN U452032006PLC155511 N
i jii |Registration Date 15.11.2006 L
iii__|Name of the Company BHARUCH DAHEJ RAILWAY COMPANY T
iv  |Category/Sub-category of the Non Indian Government Company . !
Company _ ) ’;
v |Address of the Registered office  [39-42, 3rd Floor, Indra Palace, H Block, ;'
& contact details Connaught Circus, Middle, Circle, Connaught '
Place, New Delhi 110001 Pn No. 011-43586815 .
vi |Whether listed company Unlisted i
C i ame , Address & contact details [Not Applicable T o
| of the Registrar & Transfer Agent,
: if any. ) ;
1 |PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY o L
All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the
company shall be stated
SL No |Name & Description of main NIC % to total turnover _ B h;
' products/services Code lof the company |
of the
Produc ?
t I
/servic
e
1 Freight Rail transport 49120 100 ___ ___
2 ;
P 3
4 ) B
;"I |PARTICULARS OF HOLDING , SUBSIDIARY & ASSOCIATE COMPANIES B T
L s i l ah —— E— :
{ : !
‘SINo |Name & Address of the Company |CIN/GLIHOLDING/ % OF APPLICA |
, SUBSIDIARY/ SHARES |BLE
E ASSOCIATE HELD  |SECTION
{ |
1 |NIL |
> '
L. 3 —_ J— J— - - -




: N SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share capital Break up as % to total Equity) :
] -, . e e TSR b e
Category of Shareholders No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year No. of Shares held at the end of the year ; °i a“lﬁhe ]
urnn, 1]
: year ¢
Demat Physical Total % of Total Demat Physical Total % of
Shares Total
Shares
+A. Promoters
|
{1} Indian 0 ¥ D [ 0 g o
.a) Individual/HUF B 0 0 0 0 0 0
|
]b) Central Govt.or
'State Govt. {Including RVNL) 0 90720000 90720000 58.49 0 50720000 90720000 58.49 o
‘c} Badies Carporates Q 64390000 64350000 41,51 4] 54350000 4350000 41,51 o
\d) Bank/FI 0 0 0 [i] 0 0 0 0 jl
2] Any other a 0 0 0 0 Y 0 0 0
SUB TOTAL:(A} (1) 0| 155110000 155110000 100 155110000 155110000 100 0
{2} Forelgn
a} NRI- Individuals 0 0 0 0 ¥ 0 o
b} Other Individuals o 0 0 [} 0 [ 0
¢} Bodies Corp. ] 0 0 o 0 [ 0
d) Banks/Fl o 0 [’ [V 0 0 0
‘e} Any other... o [} o 0 0 [ 0
Q 0 Q 1) 0 a Y
1SUB TOTAL {A) {2)
i 0 D 0 0 0 0 0
Total Shareholding of
Promoter
{A)= (A} 1)+(A}2) o 155310000 1551 10000 100 155110000 155110000 100 0
[1] 0 [0 0 [ 0 o
] [i] 0 0 [ [1] 0 0
i8. PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING 0 0 [H a 1] 0 0
: 0 0 0 [i] [} [7 0
(1) Institutlons 0 0 [} [% [ 0 0
ia} Mutual Funds 0 0 [V [ 0 o 0
1b) Banks/Fl 0 o 0 [i] [i 0 [/
C) Cenntral govt 0 g 0 0 n 0 0
d} State Govt. 0 1] o 0 0 0 1]
|e} Venture Capital Fund 0 [} 0 0 0 [ [
1§} Insurance Companies 0 0 0 7 a 0 0
‘g FlIS 1] 1] 0 a Q ol 0
h] Forelgn Venture
Capial Funds 0 a 0 o o 0 0
i} Others {specify) 0 0 " a 0 0 0
o o] i) 0 0 0 ]
SUB TOTAL [B){1): ] L] 0 ) 0 0 [
i 0 0 0 [ 0 0 0
{2} Nan Institutlons o 0 [i i 0 7 [
a} Bodies corporates 0 [} 9 0 0 0 0
i} Indian 0 0 [} [F 0 1] 0
li} Qvarseas 0 0 [ 0 o o 0
b) Individuals 0 0 i o o 0 [
1} Individual shareholders
holding nominal share capital
fupto Rs.1 lakhs o 0 o 0 o 0 0
|ii} Individuals shareholders
holding nominal share capital
in excess of Rs. 1 lakhs 0 n i o o 0 0
|c} Others {specify) 0 [i i [] 0 [i 0
i 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
‘5UB TOTAL {B){2): 0 0 0 o 0 0 [}
i 0 0 7 0 0 0 o

()



[
.

[SHARE HOLDING OF PROMOTERS

: ' | ) .
Shareholders Name Shareholding at the Shareholding at the % change |
begglnning of the year end of the year In share }
51 No. holding 1
i durlng
i theyear |
i
! NO of shares |% of total % of shares  |NQ of shares |% of total |% of shares '
: shares pledped shares pledged
of the encumbered of the encumbere
. company to total company |d to total
shares shares
1 |RAILVIKAS NIGAMLTD. 55,000,000 35,46 of 55000000 35.45 ) o
2 ADANI PETRONET {DAHE)] PORT PRIVATE 17,330,000 i 117 17,330,000 ;
LIMITED i - o 111 o 0
I . .
| (i) ;CHANGE IN PROMOTERS' SHAREHOLDING { SPECIFY IF THERE IS NO CHANGE)
o
! Share holding at the Cumulative Share holding ’
Sl. No. beginning of the Year during the year
No. of Shares % of total No of shares |% of total
shares of the shares of the
. company company
i
At the beglaning of the year a g 0 o ~
Date wise Increase/decrease In
Promaters Share holding during the
year specifying the reascns for
increase/decrease {e.g. .
allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat :
elch 0 B . |
At the end of Lhe year 0 4°| . :
T S e . : | -
{lv) Shéfe_h_q!cjl_qg Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Direcors, Promoters & Holders of GDRs & ADRs) s
; § i ’ :
; Shareholding at the end of | Cumulative Shareholding
Sl Ho the year during the year i
For Each of the Top 10 Shareholders | Ne.ofshares | % oftotal | Noofshares| 9% of total
shares of the shares of the
company company .
At the beglnning of the year 0 a 0 o o
1 [GUJARAT MARITIME BOARD 17,860,000 115
2 |DAHEJ SEZ LIMITED 10,000,000 - 645 .=:
3 GUJARAT NARMADA VALLEY 13,530,000 :
FERTILISER COMPANY LIMITED B.72 B B :
4 |HINDALCO INDUSTRIES LTD 13,530,000 | B.72 ;
g [JINDAL RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LTD. 10,000,000 | 5.45 . '
§ |aulaRAT INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT 17,880,000 { "
L CORPORATION i 115 N
; Total Paid up capiral 155;_.1 10,000 5337 - _
Date wise Increasefdecrease In !
i Pramoters Share halding during the |
year specifying the reasons lor l
! Increasefdecrease {e.g. ;
| allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat i
i A 0 0 o 0 :
i At the end of the year {or on the date |S2meas at the begining of the year
: of separation, If separated during the .
| year) L 9 i
3 H . .
— . e - _
i’"“"' R _ I \
|_____(3}__ Shareholding of Directors &KMP e e ¥
Shareholding attheend of | Cumulative Shareholding | :
_ SL.No the year during the year !
f e

(L3)
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INDEBTEDNESS

3

!

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

Secured Loans | Unsecure| Deposits| Total
excluding d Indebted
deposits Loans ness

/Indebtness at the beginning of
ithe financial year
: 0 q
') Principal Amount ¢ 2049243836 0 q]
:1i} Interest due but not paid 0 of
i) Interest accrued but not due 2282267 0 0
! H ol ]
Total {i+ii+iii) 0 0
! H 0 ]|
:Change in Indebtedness during
the financial year j Y
;Additions 0 0 0
‘Reduction 161000000 0 of
Net Change -161000000 0 of
Indebtedness at the end of the
financial year 0 0
i) Principal Amount 1888243836 0 of
ii) Interest due but not paid 0 of
iii) Interest accrued but not due 15292434 of 0
I 9 0
Total {i+ii+iii) ol 0

é

s e e e e

i :

- _._.ﬂh__,—w.._._ JR—

Y ]REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
SRR _ b, S
- . . --.i JRPPR R e Y] '
i A zRemuneratu:m to Managlng Dlrector, Whole tlme dlrector and/or Manager
e ) e bt ! :
’- Name of the
MD/WTD/Manager
SL.No Particulars of Remuneration / / € _Total Amount
1 Gross salary
(a) Salary as per
provisions contained in
section 17(1) of the
Income Tax. 1961. Shri
Rajendra
H Kashyap 2689355
(b) Value of perquisites
u/s 17(2) of the
Income tax Act, 1961
28800 0

)



[Vl |PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPPOUNDING OF OFFENCES

Type Section of the
Companies Act

Brlef Description ‘Detalls of Authority Appeall
Penalty/Punishme |(RD/NCLT/Court) |madeifany
nt/Compounding {give

fees Imposed detalls)

NIL

A. COMPANY

Penalty

|Punishment

{Compounding

v
t

|B. DIRECTORS

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

!

{C. OTHER OFFICERS |

N DEFAULT

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

Place: New Dethi
Date: 20.09.2017

““Far and behalf of the Board of Directors of

BHARUCH DAHE] RAILWAY COMPANY

sd/-
(Rajendra Kashyap)
Managing Director
DIN- 00367378

sd/-
{Vinay Singh)
Director
DIN- 03324677




ANNEXURE-I}

FORMAT FOR THE ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES TO BE INCLUDED IN
TIIE BOARPD'S REPORT

1. A bricf outline of the company’s CSR policy, ineluding overview ol projects or programs
proposed to be nodertaken and a reference to the web-link to the CSR policy and
projucts.-

The Board of Directors in their meeting held on 26.03.2015 approved CSR policy as
recommended by the CSR Commiltee. The Policy has been prepared in accordance with
provisions of the Scction 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Corporate
Social Responsibility Policy} Rules, 2014, The same is availabic a1 the Company®s website
hturfwww. bdrajl.infesr.umi._ The policy contains inter alia the Objectives, framework.
focus of areas and key rules and guidelines for incurring CSR expenditure ete. The areqs
of activitics mentioned in the policy are as per Schedule V11 of the Companics Act, 2013

2. The Composition of the CSR Committee as on daie of report:-
The Committes presently consists of the lollowing Dircctars namely:
1. Shri Amit Kumar Singh, Dircctar
2. Smit. Chhavi Jha, Director
3. Shr Rajendra Kashyap. Managina Director

During the year under review, the Commitice met twice on 22.08.2016 and 29.03.2017. The
presense of Members is as under:

S Name of Direcrors Date of Meetings of CSR Committee
No
T T 0820t6 [ 29.032017

L. Sm. Bela Banerjee. Director Present Present
2. Shri Amit K. Singh, Dircctor | Presemt Present
3. Smt. Chhavi Jha, Dircctor Present [ Present
1, Shri Rajendra Kashyap, Munaging : Present Present

Director J

(us)




3. Average: net profit of the company for lasi three financial vears :

Average profit of the Company [or the last three vears i.e. 2013-14, 20)4-15 and 2015-16

was Rs.2300.92 lakh.

4, Prescribed CSR :Expcnditurc (tvo per cent. of the amount as in item 3 shove) during

2016-17 was Rs. 46.02 lakh

5. Detuils of CSR spent during the financial year

(a) Tatal amount to be spent for the fimancial year: Rs. 16,77.124/-

{bY Amount unspent, if any; Rs. 29.25 lakh

(c) Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below.

SN [Csr Sector in | Projects | Amou | Amount spent on (Cumulati | Amount |
Q achivity | which or nt project or ve spent:
identifi | the pragrams | outlay | Program during | expenditu | Direcl or
ed Project 1) Local | (budge | year e upto : through
is arca or 1} Reporting | implementi
covered | other With subtitle period ng agency
Project |
2 or (1) Direct
. Expendit
Specify | progra ure
the Stae | m wise (2} Overhea
' asd ds
districts
where
projects
or
programs
were
undertak :
en j
1. [ Mobile | Promoti | Local Rs. Rs. 1677124 Rs. 19.32 | Through
Health | ug Arca 16.89 ) lakh implementi
Unit Flealth | around takhs | (I}Dll‘(f(‘:.t:RS- ng Agoncy
Care Bharuch | pa. 1418155/
includin | Dahej M/s
g Railway Deepak
preventi | Line in (2)Overhead: Foundation
ve health | the state Rs. 258969/- basedat |
care of Vadodara ;
L Gujarat i




District
Bharuch

Details of Implementing Agency:

Decpak Foundation is a registered Trusl under Bombay Pobiic Trust Act, 1950. It is registered
on 22.11.1932. It is also registered under Section 12A of the Ineeme Tax Act. It works in the
area around the Company’s Projeet of Bharuch Dahej Railway Line. It conducis similar
activity for other clients since 2012,

6. In case the company has failed to spend the two per cent of the average net profit of the
[ast three finnncial years or any part thereof, the company shall provide 1he reasons for not
spending thc amount in its Board report.
The main reason for failing to comply with the requirement of spending 2% of 2verage nct profit
of the last three are as under;
The Company’s financial position has beeoine precarions due to following reasons.

1. Freight traffic carried by the Company dipped by 46% due to cxternal macroeconomie

factors. Consequently, revenue fell down sigrificantly,

Duc 10 take over of various activities for maintenance of assets by the WR, a signiftcant

12

growth in O & M Expenditure occurred:

WTR made a demand of Rs. 175 Crore twwards land lcase license fees, for the current year

LFF ]

and the past years. While this is heing disputed by the Company. Western Raithway bas
unilaterally stopped passing on BDRCL's share in revenue to it since October 2016,
resulting in a serious cash flow crisis, leaving the Company with no cash for underiaking
CSR activitics.

4. In view of above. dug Lo adverse fmangial position of the Company, the Compuny decided
lo keep on hold auginentation of scope of the CSR activities, as decided by the CSR
Commitice earlicr to facilitate more meaningful spending of higher amount up to Rs. 46.02
lakh.

7. The implementation and monitoring of CSK Policy, is in eompliance with CSR objectives
and Policy of the company.

—

-

- r L""\-

L\f (R (.
(Rajendra Kashyap) ¥ (Chhavi Jha)
{(Managing Director) (Chairperson of CSR Commilttee)
DIN: 00367378 DIN: 07524269
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L L 1 1 Annexure-E
BHARUCH DAHE! RAILWAY COMPANY
DETAILS OF COURT CASES
Sr. No. |Case No. [Title of case Title Status of the case
1 |Labour Court~ Bharuch
LC/263/13 Santosh Kanubhai vs BORCL Reply has been filed before
LC/79/14 Re-engagement in service SOYER Shekh Vs BORCL court and further action by
LC/52/14 Main Khan Vs BDRCL court is awaited
2z [Recovery Application befare Labour Court
Pradeepkumar Chandel vs Ubjection have been Tiled
29/15 Payment for the period of dis- | gpret befare court as our Misc.
continuation to till date Application no, 15/2015,
31/15 Farukkhan Vs BORCL 16/2015 are pending before
3 |Misc. Application '
15/2015 Challenging the orders of Pradeepkumar Chandel vs No reply has been filed by
labour court BH for taking the BDRCL oppaosite party {One applicant
16/2015 staff on duty Farukkhan Vs BDRCL of case no. 15/2015 expired)
4 |CAT/ADA
Sarfaraz Diwan & 101 others
Vs Union of Indla {CRB),
OA No.449/2015 | o iiway authoruty to absorb | GM/WR, DRM/BRC, .

", Written argumnets filed before
the petitioners as employees |MD/BDRCL & AGM/BDRCL CAT & nothing to do now. MA
of Railway who are working in (Sarfaraz Diwan & 101 others 435/15 dis o:ed off )

MANo. 3515 |PORCE Vs Unlon of India (CRB), P
© GM/WR, DRM/BRC,
MD/BDRCL & AGM/BORCL
5 [High Court of Gujarat - ADI
dish ilal V.
SCA 15200/2015 Jagdish Manilal Vasava vs
: BDACL Affidavit in reply on behalf of
SCA 1520172015 |Challenged the termination  |Shahrukh Khan Vs BDRCL Respondent filed on
and award of labour court's . .
i i 03, h
SCA 15202/2015 orders under article 226,227 Swapnil B. Malviya Vs BDRCL  (34.03.2016 and still n(.)l ing
of Constitution of India comes out. Next date is
SCA 15203/2015 Ferozkhan Pathan ¥s BDRCL  (27.06.2016
SCA 15204/2015 Imranall M. Shek Vs BDRCL
For and behalf of the Board of Directors of
BHARUCH DAHEJ RAILWAY COMPANY
sd/- sd/-
{Rajendra Kashyap} {vinay Singh)
Place: New Delhi Managlng Director Director

Date: 20.09.2017

DIN- 00367378

(ve)

DIN- 03324677
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CS ANIL ANAND

(Company Secretary in Practice)
102, G K House, 1st Floor, 187-A, Sant Nagar, New Delhi-110065
Ph.; +81-8873823827 E-mail: csanilanand96@gmail.com

To,

The Mcmbers, :
Bharuch Dahej Railway Company Limited

39-42, 37 Floor, Indra Palace, H- block

Middte Circle, Connaught Circus,

Connaught Place, New Delhi-110001

Qur Sccretarial Audit Reporl of even date is Lo be read along with this letter,

Management's Responsibility
1. It is the responsibility of the management of the company to maintain secretarial records,
devise proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and
regulations andl Lo ensure that the systems are adequate and aperate effectively.
Secretarial Auditor’s responsibility
2 Our responsibility is to cxpress an opinton on these sccretarial records, standards and
procedurces followed by the company with respect to secretarial compliances.
3 Woe believe that audit evidence and information obtained from the company’s management is
adequate and appropriate for us to provide a basis for our opinion.
4 wWherever require, we have obtained the management’s representation about the compliance
oflaws, rules, and repulation and happening of events ctc.
Disclaimer
5 “The secretarial audit report is ncither an assurance as to future viability of the company nor
of Lhe efficacy or elfectiveness with which the management has conducted the affair of the

company.
0

CS ANILWNAN
ACS: 10328
CPNO: 11295
Place: Mew Delhi
Date:

(u9)




CS ANIL ANAND

{Company Sccretary in Practice)
102, G K House, 1st Floor, 187-A, Sant Nagar, New Delhi-110065
Ph.: +81-9873925927 E-mail: csanilanand86@gmail.com

Date:01.07.2016

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 315TMARCH, 2016
{Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013and rule No. 9 of the Companies
{Appointment und Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]
To,
The Members,
Bharuch Dahej Railway Company Limited
39-42, 3 Floor, Indra Palace, I1 Block
Middle Circle, Connaught Circus,
Connaught Place, New Delhi-110001

We have conducted the sccretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory
provisions and the adherence Lo good corporate practices by M/s. Bharuch Dahej Railway
Company Limited (BDRCL) (hercinafter called the company). Sccretarial Audit was
conducted in @ manner that provide us a reasonable basis for cvaluating the corporate
conducls/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thercon.
Based on our verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns
filed and other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by
the Company, its officers and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial
audil, we hereby report that in our opinion, the company has, during the audit period
covering the linancial year cnded on 315t March, 2016 complicd with the statutory
provisions listed hercunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and
compliance-mechanism in place:
We have examined Lhe books, papers, minute books, forms and rcturns filed and other
records maintained by Company for the inancial year ended on 313t March, 2016 according
Lo the provisions ol:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

Wc have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
(i) Sccretarial Standard issued by Institute of Company Sccretaries of India.

During the period under review, the Company has complied with Lthe provisions of the Acts,
rules, regulations and guidelines mentioned above:

We further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the
composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were
carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

(50)



Adequate notice is given to all dircctors Lo schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and
detailed notes on agenda were senl at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for
sceking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items beferc the
mecting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

As per the minutes of the meeting duly recorded and signed by the Chairman, the decisions
of the Board were unanimously passed and no dissenting views have been recorded.

We further report that, there are adequate systems and processes in the Company
commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. ’:)

[

CS Anil Anand
ACS: 10328
CPNo.:11255

Place:New Delhi
Date:

(<
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BHARUCH DAHEJ RAILWAY COMPANY LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET
As at 31st March 2017

{INR In Lakhs)

Particulars hl\rl?:m As at 31st March 2017 | As at 31st March 2016 As at 1st April 2015
l. |ASSETS
{1) |Non-current assets
{2} Property. Plant and equipment 3 62.05 78.79 80.08
(b Other Inlanglble assels 4 31695.52 32,724,22 33.760.81
{¢) Inlangible assels under
development 5 4010 21373 887
(d} Financlal Assets B
{n Others 6.1 48.58 44,89 41.46
{e) Other non—cumrent assels 7 0.20 31,846.45 11.39  33.074.02 185.07 34.076.29
{2) |Current assets
{a) Financial Assels 8
{i} Trade Receivables 8.1 4,462.19 5,315.23 3.752.07
(il Cash and cash equivalenis 8.2 2,120.94 2,169.56 472.25
{ili) Bank Balances other ihan (i)
above 83 7.033.95 6,597.688 5.125.67
{iv) Others 8.4 878.80 g22.21 825,25
{b) Cument Tax Assels (Netl) 18 82.28 25.75 80.13
{c) Other current assels 9 6.44 14.584.60 7.37  14,838.00 27.68 10,083.05
Total Assats 46,431.05 48,013.02 44,159.34
i. [EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equlty
{a) Equily Share Capital 10 15,511.00 15.511.00 15,911.00
{b) Other Equity 1 931.07  16.442.07 2,814.81  18,325.81 1,173.74 16,684.74
Liabllitles
{1} (Non-current llabllities
{a} Financial Liabllilies 12
{} Borrowings 12.1 16,122.44 18,882.44 20,492.44
{ii) Trade Payables i2.2 6,799.45 4,842,711 3,24069
{b) Provisions 13 4.24 .15 1.83
{c} Deferred Tax Liabililies (Net) 14 204613 2,482.46 1.318.39
(d) Other Non-Current Liability 15.1 601.32 25573.98 51515 26,72591 357.08 25,410,423
{2) | Current llabllitles
(a} Financial Llabililies 16
(i) Trade payables 161 1,328.69 1,141.76 1659.32
{ii) Other financial liabililies 16.2 2,927.82 1,654.81 1,814.60
{b) Other current liabililies 15,2 158.79 112.38 66.19
(¢} Provisions 17 0.10 0.07 005
(d) Cument Tax liability (Net) 18 - 4,415.40 52.28 2,961.30 i8.05 208417
Total Equlty and Llabllitles 46,431.05 48,013.02 44,159.34

The accompanylng notes are Intagral part of financlal statements.
As per our Reporl of even date attached

For and on behalf of Board of Direclors of
Bharuch Dahej Rallway Company Limited

e G

R Singh & Co,
Rapered Accountants

)

* {New Delhil. 2t

¢! 7
) Rajendra Kashyap Vinay Singh
Rrer Managing Direclor Direclor
Membership No. 096841 DIN 00367370 DIN 003324677
Firm Regisiration No. 1351N ‘Jﬁ
L e S
Date : 20-09-2017 Balkishan Sharm§ Beena R, Shah
Place: New Delhi Chief Financial Officer Company Secrelary
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BHARUCH DAHE. RAILWAY COMPANY LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LDSS
For the year ended 31st March 2017

S

Ly
MLt
by

{INR In Lakhs)

Nole | Forthe year ended | Forthe year ended
Partlculars
articula No. | 31stMarch 2017 31st March 2016
Revenue :
. |Revenue from oparatons 19 5,223.70 11,583,20
Il. |Other incorne 20 819.32 7186.82
I Total Income [I +11) £,043.03 12,278.82
W. |Expanses:
Operalion & Malntenanca 21 4,935.57 535233
Empioyee benelits expanse 22 120.04 126,99
Finance casi 23 1.802.58 2,126.02
Deprecialion and amorlizalion 24 1,263.16 1,274.80
Other 25 114.05 118.15
Tolal Expenses {iV) 8,357.39 8,993.29
V. |Profitloss Before exceptional ltems and Tax (ill - IV} (2,314.38)} 3,281,53
Vi, |Exceptional temsa - -
Vil. |Profit/{Loas} before tax {V - Vi) {2,314.36) 3,281,583
VIil. |Tax expanse:
(1) Cument tax 26
- For the year - 468.82
- For earler years (net} 5.57 7.58
(2] Defened tax (nzl) {436.26) 1,164.07
(3) MAT Credit 28 - -
Tatal Tax Expense (VIII) {430.77) 1,640.47
IX |Profitf{loss} for the period from continuing operation (V1 - V) _[1,883.65 1,641.07
X |Profit{loas) fmom discontinued operations - -
XI |Tax Expense of disconlnued operations - -
Xl |Profitf{Tosa) from discontinued operationa {afier tax) (X-X1} - -
Xill |[ProfAtf{toas] for the paried {IX+XIl) _11,883.65) 1,641.07
XIV |Giher Comprehensive Income
A (i} llems that will not be reclassified to profit and [oss 2 -0.13 Q.00
{ii} Income Tax relating to ltems that will not be reclassifed to pmfil and loss 0.04 {0.00)
B. (i) lems that will be reclassified to profil and foss - -
{i1) Income Tax ralaling 1o Itama that will be reclassified to profit end loas - -
-0.08 0.00
Total Comprehenslve lncome for the period {Xill +X[V) (Comprehensive
xV. profit and other comprehensive income for the period) (1.883.74) 164107
*Vl. |Eamings Per Equity Share:
{For Centlinuing Operation}
{1) Baslc 28 {1.21) 1.08
(2) Diluted 28 (1.21} 1.06
XVl |Eaminga Per Equily Share;
{For dlscontinuing Operation)
{1) Basic - -
(2) Dliuted - -
XVl Eemings Per Equity Share:
{For discontinued end conlinuing Dperstion)
{1) Besic 28 {1.21) 1.08
{2) Dlluted 28 {1.21) 1.08

The accompanying notes are Inlegral pant of financlal atatements.
As par our Report of even date attached

For and on behalf of Board of Direclors of
Bharuch Dahej Reilway Compeny Limiled

e

Rajendra Keshyap

: Managing Direct
R tarshig No. 098641 DIN 003873
Fimm Regislration No. 1351N e
Date; 20-08-2017 Balkishan Shasha

Place; Mew Delhi

5

Chief Financlal Officer

Q—

Vinay Singh
Direclor

DIN 003324677
-~

Beena R, Shah
Company Saecrelary




BHARUGCH DAHEJ RAILWAY COMPANY LIMITED
Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended 3™ March, 2017

{INR In Lakhs)

For the year For the year
Particulars ended ended
31st March 2017 ¥st March 2016
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit before taxallon (2,314.36) 3,281.53
Adjustment for
Depreciation and amortization 1,285.16 1,274.80
Interest Income (FO7.74} {852.46)
Inlerest Expense 1.820.52 2,082.50
Other Comprehensive Income {0.13) 0.00
Operating Profit befare opersting capltal changes {1) 83.45 5,906,38
Adjustment for ;
Decrease f {Increase) In Other non cument financtal asset {3.69) {343}
Decrease / {Increase) in Other Non curreni Assels - .
Decrease / (Increase) in Trade receivable §53.04 {1,583.18)
Decrease { {increase) in Other gurment financial asset [56,59) (199.98)
Decrease / {Increase) In Other current Assets 093 20.M
{Decreass) / Increase In Trade Payables 1,958.74 1,802.02
{Decrease) f Increase in Long term Provisions 1.09 1.32
{Decrease) / Increase in Cument Trade Payables 166,93 976.44
{Decrease) { Increase in Other financial Llability 123,01 {15979}
{Decrease) f Ingrease in Other Liabililes 46.41 46.23
{Decrease) f Increase In Non Current Liabilities Liabililes 88.17 158.07
(Decrease) / Increase in Short term Provisions 0.03 002
{2} 3,184.07 881.07
Cash gensrated from operatlon {1+2) 3,277.52 G 867.45
Income Tax Pald {Neat of Refunds) [113.98) (388.79)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES {A) J,164.13 6.478.66
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Capilal Expenditura including Capital Advances {Nel of Tansfer i} }
of Capilal Assets) 5390 2691
Decrease / {Increase) In Bank Balance other than Lhose taken to 7
Cash and Cash Equivalent -438.0 1472
Interest Received T07.74 552,48
NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES {8) 7.7 11.088.85
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of Borowings {1.510.00) {1,510.00)
Interest paid {1,620.52) (2,052.50)
NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES {C) {3,430.52 {3,692.50)
NET INCREASE IN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENT {A+B+C) {48,652 1,697.31
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT (OPENING) {0} 2,169.58 q72.25
Cash
On Cument Accounls 919.58 q472.25
QOeposils with oniginal maturity of less than lhree months 1,250.00 -
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT (CLOSING) {E} 2,120.94 2,169.56
Cash .
On Current Accounts 310.04 918.56
Deposlls with original matusily of less lhan three months 1.810.00 1,250.00
NET INCREASE [N CASH & CASH EQUIVALENT {E-DY) _ {48.62 1,697.31

The Cash Flow Stalemen! has been prepared under the indirect method as set oul in Ind AS-7 on Cash Flow Statement nofified by the
Ministry of Corparale Affairs, Government of India under the Companies Act, 2013.
Prevlous year's figures are reclassifiedregraupad o confinm and make them comparable with those of the curtant year.

per our Report of even dale attached

Membershlp No. 096641
Firm Reglstration No. 151N

Dale ; 20.09.2017
Place: New Delhi

The accompanying notes are Intagral part of financlal statements.
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For and on behall of Board of Directors of
Bharuch Dahe] Rallway Company Limited

e G

Rajendra Kashyap
Managing Director

Vinay Singh
Direclor

DIN 00387376 gﬂ DIN 00332

Balkishan Sharm
Chief Financial Officer

Beena R. Shah
Company Secratary




BHARUCH DAHEJ RAILWAY COMPANY LIMITED

Statement of changes in equity for the period ended 31st March 2017

A. Equity share capital

({INR In Lakhs}

Number of Share In

Partlculars Lakhs Amount
Balance at April 1, 2015 1,551.10 15,511.00
Changes in equity share capital during the year

Issue of equity shares capital during the year - .
Balance at March 31, 2016 1,551.10 15,511.00
Changes in equity share capital during the year

issue of equity shares capital during the year - -
Balance at March 31, 2017 1,551.10 15,511.00

B. Other Equlty

(INR in Lakhs)

Reserve & Surplus
Partlculars Total

Retalned Earnings
Balance at April 1, 2015 1,173.74 1,173.74
Changes in accounting policy or prigr period errors - -
Restated Balance at April 1, 2015 - 1,173.74 1,173.74
Profit for the year 1,641.07 1,641.07
Other Comprehensive Income for the year {net of income lax) 0.00 0.00
Total Comprehenslve Income for the year 1,641.07 1,641.07
Dividends paid - -
Balance at March 31, 2016 2,814.81 2,814.81
Changes in actcounting policy or prior period emors - -
Restated Balance as at March 31, 2016 _2,814.81 2,814.81
Profit for the year -1.883.65 -1,883.65
Other Comprehensive Income for the year {net of income tax} -0.08 -0.08
Total Comprehensive Income for the year -1,883.74 -1,883.74
Dividends paid - -
Balance at March 31, 2017 931.07 931.07

The accompanylng notes are integral part of financial statements.
As par our Reporl of even date attached

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Bharuch Dahej Railway Company Limited

" 4

Rajendra Kashyap Vinay Singh

Managing Director Director

DIN 0036737 DIN Q03324677
" Membership No. 098641 @f""

Firm Registralion No. 1351N -
Balkishamtaia

Chief Financial Officer

Beena R. Shah
Company Secretary

Date ; 20-09-2017
Place: New Delhi
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BHARUCH DAHEJ RAILWAY COMPANY LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements

-

General Information

Bharuch Dahef Raiway Company Limited {(BDRCL) is a public limiled company domiciled and was incorporaied in India on November
15. 2006 as a Special Purpose Vehicle for the purpose af execuling the Bharuch-Samni-Dahej Gauge Converslon Project for Weslemn
Railway. The company is a Joint Venture between Rait Vikas Nigam Limited {RVNL), Gujarat Marilime Board (GMB), Adani Petronel
{Dahe]) Port Private Limited (APDPPL), Gujarat Narmada Valley Fertilizers Company Limited (GNFC), Dahej SEZ Limited (DSL), Jindal
Rail Infrastructure Umited (JRIL}, Hindalkco Indusiries Limited (HIL) and Gujaral Industrial Development Corporation (GIDC). The
registered office of ihe company is 38-42, 3rd Floor, H Block, Middle Circle, Connaughs Circus, Connaught Place, New Dalhi- 110001.

The Company has entered into a Concession Agreement with President of India. through Execulive Director Tratfic {PPP} of the Minisiry
of Raiways (MOR), Governmenl of India, Rail Bhawan, New Delhi on June 25, 2008 in terms of which the MOR (Concessioning
Authority) has aulhorized the company {Concessionaire) to develop, finance, construct, operate and mainlain the praject raitway and to
exarcise and/or enjoy the righl, power, benefils, privileges authorization and entittements vpon its completion. The concession period
shall be 30 years of operaiion or lill such Ume as Net Preseni Value {NPV) of payback on equity invesiment becomes 14% whichever is
earlier, In cese such NPV payback is reached earlier than 30 years, the concession agreemeni would stand terminated and the project
line would be re-possessed by railways.

The company has also executed a lease deed on the same day with the Presidani of India for the use of leased assels which forms part
of the concession agreemen! and is eltached as annexure-1 {hereto. In tarms of ihe laase agreemani il commences on ihe data of
execulion i.e, June 25, 2008 and term of lease shall be co-terminus wilh the Concession period with annual lease rental (2) for original
land of WR- as per ihe extant policy of MoR, (b} for new land acquired by WR- @ Rs, 1/- per annum, s payable in advance in one single
instalimenl in ficst week of January every year.

Upon expiry, lhe company is required to hand over tha project assets 1o MoR free from all encumbrances whaisoever. Upon lransfer the
company shall be enlilled 1o receive amount equal to book value of projact assels. Fresh land acquired by MoR and leased lo company
shall also revert back lo MoR on payment of an amouni equal to tha cost of acquisition.

Later, al the insfance of Westemn Railway the line was extended from Bharuch to Chavaj a dislance of 5.52 KM, This additional BG
goods line was cerifiad as il safe to run on 20.02,2014 and same was in operalional since 27th February 2014 for running of goods irain
parallel to DN line on Mumbai-Delhi Rajdhanl route of Vadodara Divislon.

The Concesslon agreement referred to above envisages slgning of an Operations and Malntenance Agreemenl {O8M Agreemenl) by
the company wilh Wesiermn Railway for operalion of ihe railway line. In lerms of the proposed O&M Agreement, the cempany is entitled to
a share of revenue from operalions of the Bharuch-Samni-Dahej railway line, As per communication received from the Wesltern Raifway.
revenue has been apportioned lo the company w.e.f March 6, 2012, the date of commencement of operations of the Bharuch-Dahej-
Samni railway line. Accordingly, March 8, 2012 has been treated as the date of cempletion of the Bharuch-Samni-Dabej Gauge
Conversion Project and the company has started to prepare the Profit & Loss Statement w.e.f March 8, 2012,

Process for signing an O&M Agreement by the Company with Wesiem Railway is underway. In the meanlime, the Company is receiving
ils share of revenue after adjusling cost of Operation & Maintenance based on in principle approval received from {he Minisiry of

Railways.
The financial stalemenls are authorised lor issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Direclors on 20.09.2017

2 Summary of slgnificant accounting policles
2.1 Basis of Praparation
The finansial slatements for {he year ended 31st March 2107 have been prepared in accordance wilh the Indlan Accounling Standards
{hereinefter refemed to as “Ind-AS") as nolified by the Minisiry of Corporate Affair. Governmant of India, pursuant to seclion 133 of tha
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 3 of tha Companies (Indian Accounling Slandards) Rules, 2015 and the Companies (Indian
accounting standards) Amendment Rules 2016.These financial stalements for the year ended 31st March 2017 are the first Ind AS
cemplian{ financial statemenis of the Company. The iransition fo Ind AS has been made in accordance wilh Ind AS 101-First Time
adoption of Indian Accounting Standards,

For all perods, up lo and inciuding the year ended 31 March 2016, the Company prepared its financial statements in accordance with
accouating standards nolified under section 133 of the Companies A¢l 2013 read wilh paragraph 7 of the Companies {Accounis) Rules,
2014 (herein afler referred to as “previous GAAP"). Accerdlngly, financial statements for the year 31sl March 2016 and the opening
Balanca sheet as at 1st April, 2015 have been resiated in accordance with Ind AS for comparative informalion purpose.

Refer to nole 48 for Information how the cempany adopled IND-AS at the date of {ransilion.

2.2 Besls of Measurament
The financial slatements have been prepared under the historicel cost convention and on an accrual basis. except for the following item
t{hat have been measured at fair value as required by relevant Ind-AS.
i. Defined benelil Plan and other long lerm employee benefit as per Ind AS 19.
ii. Certain financial assels and liabililies measured at fair value {Reler policy for financial instruments)
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2.3 Use of estimates and judgment

The preparation of financlal stalemants in conformity wilh Ind AS requires management 1o make judgments, eslimales and assumplions
thai affect the application of accounling policies and the reparted amounts of assats, llabllities, disciosure of conlingent assels and
liabllities at the date of financial statemenls and the reported amounl of income and expenses. Examples of such estimales Includas
fulure obligations under employee retiremeni benefit plans, estimated uselul life of propery, plant and equipment and Intangible Assels.
Atiual resulls may differ from these estimales.

Eslimates and undertying assumptions are reviewed on a pericdic basis. Future results could differ due 1o changes in these eslimates
and difference between the actual result and the eslimales are recggnised in ihe period in which lhe results are known /materalize.

All financial information presented in Indlan rupees and all valuas are rounded to the nearesl lakhs up to two decimals except where
olherwise stated.

2.4 Statement of cash flow
Cash flows are reported using the Indirect methed, whereby profit / (loss) before {ax is adjusied for lhe effects of fransactions of ngn-
cash naiure and any deferrals or accruals of past or fulure cash receipls or payments. The cash flows from operaling, investing and
financing activities of the Company are segregated as per Ind AS-7.

For the purpose of preseniation in the Slatemeni of Cash Flow, cash and cash equivalents include cash an hand. deposits held at call
wilh bank and financial institutions, olher short term, highly liquid investment with original malurity of three months or fess that are readily
convertible to the known amount of cash and which are subject to insignificant fisk of change in value,

2.8 Functlenal and presentatlon curmency
Items Included in the financial slatements are measured using ihe currency of Lhe primary economic envirenment in which the Company
operates. (i.e. Funclional Currency}. The financial slalemenis are presented in Indian rupees, which is company's funclional as well as
presenlalion curency of the company.

2.6 Proparty, plant and equipment

2.6.1 Property, plam and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreclation and impairment losses, if any. Cast of asset
includes the lollowing:

a) Cosi direclly attributable to the acqulsition of he assels.

b} Present valua of the eslimated costs of dismantling & removing tha items &rastering the site on which il is located if recognilion
criteria are mat.

2.6.2 Subsequant costs are ingluded in the assels camying amount or recognized as separata assel, as appropriate, only when il is
probable that fulure economic benefils associated with the item will flow 1o lhe Company and cost of the item can be measured reliably.
The carrying amount of any componen! accounted for as a separale assel is derecognized when such component is replacad. All other
expense in the nalure of repair and maintenance are charged to Statement of Profits and Loss during the reporting period in which they
are incurred as per Ind AS 18.

2.6.3 For transilion to IND-AS, The compeny has availed {he exemplion available under Ind AS 101, whereas the carrying value of
property, plant and equipmeni hes been camied forward at lhe amounl as delermined under previous GAAP. As per management
eslimate there is no decommissioning , restoration or similar liabililies on ils property, plant and equipment hence. no adjusiment in has
been made in this regard.

2.6.4 Depreclation

2.6.4.1 Depreciation on Property, plant and Equipment is provided on Stralght Line basis (SLM) over the usefu! life of the assels as
specified in Schedule 1) of tha Companies Acl, 2013.

{b) Each parl of an item of Property. Plant and Equipment is deprecialed sepacately if the cost of parl is significanl in relation to the latal
cast of the item end useful life of that parl [s diferent from the useful life of remaining esset.

2.6.4.2 The estimated useful life of essets for current and comparalive period of signilicant items of property plant and equipmentl
are as follows:

Partlculars Useful Life (Years)
Plant and Machinery 15
EDP Assets 3
Office Equipment’s 15
Fumniture and fixturas 10
Vehicles 8

2.6.4.3 Leasehold improvements ere depreciated over the period of lease from the year in which such improvements aré capitalised or
useful life as computed under schedu'e Il whichever is less,

2.6.4.4 Deprecialion metheds, useful-lives and residual values are reviewed al each reporting dale. In the case of revislon, the
unamortised depreciable amount is depreciated on a prospeclive basis.

2.6.4.5 Each part of an ilem of Propery, Plant and Equipment Is depreciated separately if ihe cost of lhat perl is significant in relation to
tha total cost of tha item and useful life of that par is different from the usaful life of assel.




s,

2.7 Intanglble Assots

2.7.1 Froight Sharing Right {Rellway Line under Service Concasslon Arrangameant}

The company recognizes an intengible assel arising from a service concession arrangement when il has a right lo charge for usage of
the concession infrastructure. An Intangible asset received as consideration for providing construction or upgrade services in a service
concesston amangement is measured al falr value on initial recognition by reference to the falr value of the services provided.
Subsequent lo Initial recognillon, 1he inlangible assel is stated at cost, which includes capitalized borrowing cosls, less accumulated
amorization and accumulaled impalrment l0s5es,

The eslimated wseful ife of an intangible assel in a service concession arrangement is lhe perod from when the company is able to
charge the public for the use of the infrastruciure to lhe end of the concession period (i.e. 30 year of operalion or Net preseni Value
(NPV} payback equal to equity investment @14% whichever is earier).

Freight sharing right is emorlised using the siraight line method on prorata basis from the date of addition or from the date when Ihe right
brought in to service to the expiry of 30 year of operalion or Net present Valug (NPV) payback equal to equily investment @14%
whichever Is earlier.

Amortisalion methods and useful lives are reviewed al each reporling date, with the effecl of change in estimale accounted for on a
prospeclive basis.

The carrying value of inlangible assel is reviewed for impainment annually or more often if evenls or changes in circumstances indicale
{hal ihe carrying value mey not be recoverable.

2.7.2 Other than Frelght Sharing Right
Inlangible assels are recognised when it is probable that the lulure economic benefits thai are allibulable to 1the assels will low to the
enterprise and the cost of the assel can be measured reliably. Intangible assels are slated al historical cosl less accumulaled
amorttzation and impalrment loss, if any.

Imangible assets other than fraighl sharing right are amortised in 3 years or accerding lo the useful life of the assels on pro reta basls.

2.7.3 Frelght sharing right under dsvelopment

Expenditure incemed on development of exisling and new assets {including revenue sharing rights in respecl of project railway) are
recognised as Intangibles under development ai cost incurred by company which is reckaned as fair value of services pravided including
cost directly atiribulable including fair value adjustment of land related 1o the service concession arangement.

The following amaunts are reduced fram 1he cosi:

a) Interest eamed on the Mabilizalion Advances given in respect of the project execution,

b) Amount received on sale of tender

2.7.4 Transitlan to Ind AS
Far transition to IND-AS, the company has opted to conlinue wilh the carrying value of Intangible Assels recognised as on Apnil 1, 2015
{transilion dale} measured as per the previous GAAP and use thal carrying value as its deemed cost as of the transition dale.

2.8 Investment properties
2.8.1 Investment property comprises completed property, properly under construclion and property held under financo lease ihal is held
ta eam rentals or for capital appreciation or balh, rather than for sale in the ordinary course af business ar for use in production ar
adminisirelive functians,
2.8.2 Investment Propedies are steled al cost, net of accumutated depreciation and accumulated impaiment losses, if any.
2.8.3 The cempany depreciates building companent of investmeni property over the life described in schedule Il of companies Act 2013
fram (he date of ariginal purchese.
2.8.4 Invesiment properlies are derecognised either when they have been disposed of or when they are permanently wilhdravm from use
and no fulure economic benefit is expected from their disposal. Dierence between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amounti of
the asset is recognised in profit ar 10ss in the period of de-recognition,

2.9 Provielona
Provislons are recognised when there is @ presenl obligalion as a resull of a past event, it is prabable thal an oulllow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to setile the abligation and there is a reliable eslimate af lhe amouni of the obligatian,
Provisions are measured at the besl estimale of the expendilure required 1o settle the present obligalion al the Balance sheet date.
Provislons are reviawed at each Balance Sheet date.
Provision which are expected 1o be setlled beyond 12 monlhs are measured al the preseni value by using prelax discount rate thal
reflects the risks specific to the [ability. The increase in the provision due 1o the passage of time is recegnised as finance cost.
In respect of Operation & Maintenance expenses through Weslem Railway {WR), same are accounted for on the basis of information
received (rom (WR). Whenaver such information is not received, sama is accounted for on pro-rata eslimated basis.

2.10 Revenua Racognltion
Revenue Is recognised 1o the extent that it is probable thal the economic benefits will flow lo the Company and lhe revenue can be
raliably measured.
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a) Revenue from Rallway Oparation
Apporlionment of freight as accrued 1o the company under {erms of the concession agreement for frelght operation on Ihe project assets
is recognised by ihe compeny as operaling revenue as per IndAS 18 (i.e. aclual freighi collecled by Railways).

b)_Construction Contract Revenus under SCA :
Revenue refaled to conslruclion or upgrade services under a service concession arrangement is recognized based on the stage of

completion of ihe work performed, when the outcome of construclion contracl can be measured reliably and where the oulcome of
consiruclion coniracl can not be measured reliably . revenue is recognised only to the extent of coniract cost incurred ihat ts probable
will be recoverable.

¢) Other Revenue Recognition

Inleres! income on Fixed Deposils with Bank is recognised on a lime proportion basis 1aking inlo account the amount outsianding and
the rate applicable using Effeclive Interesi Rate Melhod.

Leases
2.11.1 :Finance Lease

Finance leases, which effeclively transfer to the company subsiantially afl the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of ihe leased
assel, are capilalised at the lower of {he fair value and preseni value of the minimum lease payments at the inception of the lease lerm
and disclosed as leased assels. Lease paymanls are apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of ihe lease liability based
on lhe intarest rate implicil in the lease. FInance charges are recognised @s borrowing cesls in tha statement of profit and loss.

2.11.2 : Operating Lease

Leases are clessified as operalting lease whenever |he terms ol the lease doesn't transfer substantially all the risk and rewards of
ovmership 10 Lhe lesses.

Operaling lease paymenis ang recognized as an expense in lhe statement of profil and logs on a straight-line basis over the lease lerm
except where {ha rentals are siruclured to increase in fine with expecled general inflation 1o compensate lor the expected inflationary
cosl increase. Conlingent renlals ansing under operating lease are recognised as an expense in lhe period in which they arg incurred.

2.12 Impalmment of non-financlal assets

In accordance with Ind AS-36 on Impalment of Assels, the camying amounis of Company's assats are reviewed al each Balance Sheet
date lo delermine whelher there Is any indicalion of impaimmenl. If any such indicalion exists. lhe asset's recoverable amouni is
estimated es lhe higher of the Fair Value less cost 1o sell and (he value in use. An impairment loss is recognized in Statemenl of Profil
and Loss whenever the cenying amount of an assel or ils cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amouni. The impairmeni loss
recognized in prior accounting periods is reversed if lhare has been a change in the eslimate of recoverable amouni and such losses
either no longer exisls or has decreased. Reversal of Impalred loss is recognized in the Slaiement of Profit and Loss.

2.13 Borrowlng Cost

General and specific borrowing costs direclly atlibulable lo the acquisition, consiruction or produclion of qualifying assels, are
capitalised as part of ihe cost of such essets lill such lime the assels are substantially ready for their intended use. A qualifying assel is
an assel that necessarily requires a substanlial period of time 1o get ready for ils intended use. All other borrowing cosls are recognised
in the Stalement of Profil and Loss in the period in which ihey are incurred.

214 Employee Benefits

a) Short Term Employee Benefits:
The undiscounted amount of short lerm employee benefils expecled 1o be pald for he services rendered are recognised as an expense
during the period when 1he employees render ihe services.

b} Post-employment benefits & other Long Term Employss Bonofits:

{I} Retirement benefils in the form of providenl fund are defined contribulion schemes. The contribulions to the provident fund are
charged to the statement to the Profil and loss for the year when the contributions are due.

{1} Under the defined refiament plan, ihe company provides relirement obligation in the form of Gratuily. For defined retirement plans,
{he difflerence between the fair vafue of plan assets and the preseni value of plan liabifiies is recognised es an assels and liabilities in
{he slatement of finenclal posilion. The cost of providing beneft is determined on the basis of actuarial valualion using 1he projected unit
credit mathod at each year-end end Is charged 1o the Slalement of Profil & Loss,

{l) Provislon for long term Leave Encashment is made based on acluanial valualion at lhe year end.

{iv) Acluarial galns or losses are recognised In other comprehensive income

{v} Re-meesurements recognised in olher comprehensive income comprise of actuerial gains or losses that are nol reclassified to profit
or loss kom olher comprehensive income in subsequenl perods. Retirement Benelfils Uability in respect of Graluify and leave

encashment is provided on the basis of acivanal valuation. M
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215 Taxes

Cumant Income tax

a}i. Cumeni income tax is delermined as per the provisions of lha Income Tax Act in respect of taxable income for ihe year.

b} Current income tax assels and liabilities for curren] and prior periods are measured at the amount expecled to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities. Liability for addilional taxes, if any. is provided / paid as and when assessments are compleled.

c) Cuirent tax related to OCI Item are recognised in Olher Comprehensive Income (OCI).

Defermad tax

e) Deferred income tax assels and liabilities are recognised lor lemporary differences which s computed using the tax rales and tax laws
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reperting date.

b) Deferred income tax asset is recognised to the exieni lhal il is probable that taxable profit will be evailable against which the
deduclible iemporary diierences, and the cemy forward of unused lax credils and unused tex losses can be ulilized.

c} The camying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed al each reporting date and reduced to Lhe exient that it is no longer
probable that suffictent texable profit will be available 1o allow all or part of the defemred income tax assel to be ulilized.

d) Deferred lax related to OCI Item is recognised in Olher Comprehensive Income (OCI).

Minlmum Alternative Tax credIt is recegnised as an assel only when and 1o the extent there is convincing evidence that the company
will pay normal income lax during the specified peniod, Such esset is reviewed at eech Balance Sheel dale and the camying amount of
the MAT credit assel is written down to the extent there is no longer a convinging evidence lo the eMect Lhal the Company will pay normal
income tax during (he specified period.

2,16 Eamings Per Share

In determining basic eamings per share, lhe company considers the nel profil attributable to equily shareholders. The number of shares
used in compuling basic eamings per share is the weighted average number of shares oulstanding during the perod. In determining
diluted eamings per share, the nel profil altributable 1o equity shareholders and welghted average number of sharas outsianding during
lhe period are adjusted for the eHect of all dilutive polential equity shares.

2.17 Conlingent Liabliities and contingent Assets

(a) Conlingeni Liabililies are disclosed in ailher of 1he following cases:

{iy A presenl obligation arising from a past evenl, when it is not probable thet an ouiflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation; or

{ii) A relfable estimate of the presen! obligation cannoi be made; or

{liiy A possible obligation, unless the probability of oulflow of resource is remote.

{b) Contingent Llability is net of eslimated provisions considering possible outflow on setlilement.

{c) Conlingeni Liability and Provisions needed agains| Conlingent Liability and Conlingent Assets are reviewed at each Reporting date

{d) Conlingent assels are disclosed where an inflow of economlc benefits is probable.

2.18 Falr Value Maasureament

Company measures certain financial instruments at fair velue at each reporting date. Fair value is the price thal would be received 1o sell
an assel or paid to transfer a liabilily in an orderly transacllon between market paricipanis al lhe measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumplion thal the transaction 1o sell the astel or transler lhe liabllity takes place either:

» in the principal market for the assel or liebility, or

= In Ihe ebsence of a principal market, in the most advanlageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the mosi advantageous marke! must be accessible Lo the company. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured
using lhe assumplions Ihal market participants would use when pricing the asset or liabllily, assuming lhat market participanls act in lheir
economic best inlerest. The company uses valualion techniques thal are appropriale in the circumslances and for which sufficient data
are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inpuls and minmizing the use of uncbservable inpuls.

Assets and liabilitles for which fair value is measured or disclosed in lhe financial stalements are calegorized wilhin the fair value
hiererchy, described as follows, besed on lhe lowest level input that [s significan! 1o the falr value measurement as a who'e:

- Level 1 — Quoted {unadjusted)} market prices in aclive markels for Identical assels or Fabililies

- Level 2 — Valualion lechniques for which the towest leval inpul Lhat is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or Indireclly
observable.

- Level 3 — Valuation technlques for which the lowest level inpul thal is significant 1o the fair value measurement Is unobservable.

For aszels and liabiliies Ihat are recognlsed in the financial stalemen!s on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether translers
have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categonizalion {based on lhe lowest level inpul lhal is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Al the reporting dale, the Company analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabililies which are required to be re-measured
or re-assessed as per the accounling policies. For this analysis, the Company venfies the major inpuls applied in lhe latest valuation by
agreeing the information in the valuelion computation to contracis and olher relevanl documents.

The Company also compares the change in lhe fair value of each assel and liability wilh refavant extemal sources to determine whelher
the change is reasonable.

For the pumpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assels and liabililies on lhe basis of the nature,
characleristics and risks of (he asset or liability and el of the feir value hierarchy as explained above.




2.19 Divldend to equlty holders
Dividend pald/payable shall be recognised in the year in which the relzied dividends are approved by shareholders or board of directors
as appropriates.

2.2 Financlal Instruments: -
Inittal recognition and measurement
Financial assets and liabilites are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the inslrumenl, All
financial assets and liabilities are initially recognized at falr value. Transaclion costs that are direclly aitributable 1o the acquisition or
issue of financlal assets and financial liabilities, thal are nol at fair value lhrough profit or loss, are added to or deducted from the lair
value measured on inilial recognition of financial asse! or financial liability.

a. Subsequent measurament

Financial Assets

Financial assetfs ara classified in lollowing calegories:

a} At Amortized Cost

A financial asse! shall be measured al amortised cost il bolh of the following condilions are met:

(i) the financlal asset is held wilhin a business model whose objeclive Js to hold financial assels In order to collect contractual cash flows
and

{i) The coniractual terms of the financial assel give rise on specified dales to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
inieresl on lhe principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets measured at amortised cost using effeclive interest rale method less impairmenl if any. The EIR amortisation is
included in finance income in the statement of profit and loss.

b} At falr value through Other Comprehensive Income

A debt Inslrument' is ¢classified as al the FYTOCI if both of the following crileria are met:

= The objective of the business model is achieved both by coliecling contractual cash fiows and selling the financial assels, and

+ The assel’s contraciual cash flows represent SPPI,

Debt instruments included wilhin the FYTQOCI category are measured inillally as well as at each reporting date at fair vafue. Fair value
movements are recognised in the other comprehensive income {OCI). However, the company recognizes interest income, impairment
losses & reversals and forelgn exchange galn or loss in the P&L. On de-recognilion of the assel, cumulative gain or loss previously
recognlsed In QCl Is reclassified from the equily to P&L. Interast eamed is recognised using the EIR method.

¢) At Falr Value Through Profit and Loss

FVTPL is a residual category for financial Assels. Any financial assets, which does not meel lhe criteria for categorizalion as al
amortized cosi or as FVTQCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the company may elect 1o deslgnale Enancial assel, which olherwise meets amortized cosl or FVTOCI criteria, as al FYTPL.
If dolng so reduces or eliminales a measurement or recognition inconsislency. The company has not designated any finrancial asset as
at FVTPL.

Financial assets included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with ali changes recognised in the P&L.

Financlal llabllitles

a) Flnanclal llebllities at Amortized Cost

Financlal liabilities at amontised cost represented by lrade and olher payables, security deposits and retenlion money are inilially
recognised at fair value, and subsequenlly carried at amortized cost using the effeclive inferest rate melhod.

b} Financlal lfabllities at FVTPL

The company has nol designated any financial liabililies at FVTPL,

¢, Deracognition

Flnanclal Asset

A financlal asset {or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised only when
the contractual rights lo the cash flows from the asset expires or it transfers the financial assets and substantially alf risks 5 and rewards
of the ownershlp of the asset.

Financlal Liabllity

A financial Fabllity is derecognised when the obligation under {he liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an exisling financial
liability is replaced by anoiher from ihe same lender on substantially different lerms, or the lems of an existing liabilily are substanfially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a de-recognition of (he original liabilily and the recognition of a new liability, and
the difference in the respeclive camying amounts is recognised in the mcome statement.

d} Impalrment of flnanclal assets:

Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impaiment loss. The Company follows'
simplified approach’ for recegnition of Impairment loss allowance on trade receivable. The application of simplified approach does nol
require the Company to (rack changes in credit risk. Ralher, it recognises impairmenl loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each
reporting date, right from its initial recognilion.

Company assesses on a forward-looking basis lhe expected credit losses associaled wilh ils assels caried at amortised cosl and
FVTQCI debl instruments. The impairment methodology applies on whether there has been significant increase in credil nsk.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognised during the peried is recognised as income/gxpense in Ihe statement of profit
and loss.




.,,b_
i

&

.

3!

2.21 Non-current Aseets held for Sale
Non-current assets are classified as assets held for sale when their carmying amount is to be recovered princIpally through a sale
transaclion and a sale Is conslderad highly probable. The sale is considered highly probable only when the asset or disposal group is
available for immediale sale in its present condilion, it is unlikely that the sale will be wilhdrawn and sale is expected within one year from
iha dale of the classification. Disposal groups classified as held for sale are staied at the lower of carrying amount and fair value tess
costs to sell. Property, plant and equipment and intangible assels are not depreciated or amorlised once ¢lassified as held for sale,
Assets and fliabililies classified as held for sale are presented separately in the statement of financial posilion.

If the criteria stated by IND AS 5 "Non-curreni Assels Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations™ are no longer mel, ihe disposal group
ceases to ba classified as held for sale. Non-curent assel that caases lo be classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of {I) ils
carrying amouni before the asset was classified as held for sale, adjusied for depreciation thal would have been recognised had (hat
asset not been classified as held for sale, and (ji) its recoverable amount at the dale when the disposal group ceases lo be classified as
held for sale,

2 22 Events occurring after Balance Sheat Date

Evenls occurring after Balance Sheet dale are considered in the preparation of linancial slatements in accordance with ind AS 10
{Contingencies and Events Occuring Afier Balance Sheet Date).

2.23 Standard Issued but not yet effactive for tha FY 2016-17

The amendmanls to standards that ere issved, but nol yel effectiva, up to lhe date of issvanco of lhe Company's financial Slatemenis
are disclosed below. Tha Company inlends io adopt (hese slandards. if applicable, when they become effective. Minlstry of Corporate
Affairs {MCA) has issued the Companles (indian Accounling Standards} Amendmeni Rules, 2017 and has emended the following
standard:

2.23.1. Amandmant to Ind AS 7 Statement of Cash Flows

The amendmenis to Ind AS 7 require an enbty lo provide disclosures that enabla users of financial stalemenls to evaluate change in
liabilities arising from financing aclivilies, including bolh changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes.

©On initial applicalion of the amendment, enlities are nol required to provide comparalive information for preceding periods. These
amendments are effectiva for annual periods beginning on or aiter 1st April 2017. Application of this amendmen!s will not havae any
fecognition and measurament impact. However, it will require additlonal disclosure in the financial statements.

2.23.2. Amandmeant to Ind AS 102 Share-basad Paymant

Minlsiry of Corporata Afairs (MCA) has issued amendments to Ind AS 102 that address three main areas. The efecl of vesling
condilions on lha measurement of a cash-seltled share-based paymenl trensaclion the classificalion of a share-based paymeni
fransaclion wilh net seltlement featwes for withholding fax obligations, and accounting where a modificaiion o the {erms and conditions
of a share-based payment fransaction changes its classification from cash setiled to equily setlfed. The amendmenls are efactive for
annual periods beginning on or afler 1s1 April 2017, Application of this amendments will not have any recognition and measuramenl
impact.
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Note: -3

Property, Plant and Equipment

{INR In Lakhs}
EDP Office Furnliure & Plant & Leasehold . Total Tanglble

Particufars Assets  Equipment Fixiurss Machinery Improvement Vehicle A.ssetsg
Cost or Deemed Cost

At {1 Aprll 2015 9.70 12.37 17.38 19.71 16.42 16.58 92,16
Additions 5.32 245 0.34 8.36 . - 16.47
Disposals/Adjustmenls = - - - - - -
At 31 March 2016 15.02 14.82 17.72 28.07 16.42 16.58 108.63
Additions 0.74 - 1.52 - - . 2.26
Disposals 162 - 0.30 - - - 1.92
At 31 March 2017 14.14 14.82 18.94 28.07 16.42 16.58 108.97
Depreclation and Impatrment

At 1 April 2015 3.39 1.88 210 1.55 D.6B 239 12.07
Depreciation ¢harge for the year 351 2.91 1.83 1.34 5.20 1.98 16.77
fmpairment - - - . - - -
DisposalsiAdjustments . - - - - - .
At 31 March 2016 6.90 4.89 3.93 2.89 5.86 4.37 29.84
Depreciation charge for Lhe year 447 3.05 2.01 1739 5.20 1.98 1850
Disposals 0.38 - 0.03 - - - 0,42
At 31 March 2047 10.98 794 591 4.68 11.06 6.35 46.92
Net book value

At 31 March 2017 3.16 6.88 13.03 23.39 5.36 10.23 62.05
At 31 March 2016 B.12 .93 13.79 25.18 10.56 12.21 79.79
At 1 April 2015 6.31 10.39 15.28 18.16 15.76 14.18 80.08

Note 3.1 Property, Plant and equipment are subjec to firsl ¢harge fo secure Lhe Company's Bank Ioans. For delail refer Nele 12.1
MNota 3.2 [nd AS 101 Exemptions ; The company has availed the exemption available under Ind AS 101, whereas the carrying value of property.
plant and equipment has been camied forward at the amouni as determined under previous GAAP. As per management estimate there is no
decommissioning , restoration or simifar liabiliies on its property, plant and equipmeni hence, no adjustment in has been made in this regard,

MNote: -4
Other Intangible Assets
{{NR In Lakhs)
Parllculars Sh?::enl:fth Software Total
At Cost or Deemed cost
At 1 Aprit 2015 39,107.23 6.58 39,113.81
Addilion 221.44 - 221.44
DisposallAdjustments - - -
At 31 March 2016 39,328.67 658 39,335.25
Addilion during the year 237.98 - 237.98
Adjustmenl - - -
At 31 March 2017 39,566.63 6.58 39,573.21
Amprtisation and Impainment
At 1 April 2015 5.347.73 5.27 5,353.00
Amortisation lor the year 1,257.12 0.91 1,258.03
Impairment - - -
Disposals/ Adjustments - - -
At 3 Mareh 2016 6,604.85 6.18 6,611.03
Amortisalion 1.265.58 0.08 1,266,66
Impairment - . -
At 31 March 2017 7,871.43 6.26 _T677.69
Net bock value
At 31st March 2017 31,695.20 0.32 31,695.52
At 31st March 2016 32,723.82 0.40 __32,724.22
Al 1st April 2015 33,759.50 1.31 33,760.81

Nole 4.1: Amortisalion on other inlangible assels included in Nole 24 "Depreciation & Amodisation™,
Note 4.2: Inlangible assets are subjec o first charge to secure the company's bank loans. For detail refer Nole 12.1

Note 4.3 : Ind AS 101 Exemnplions : Appendix A to Ind AS 11 applies to the Company in respect of the Project Railway. The Company has opled 1o

cany previcus GAAP carrying amount as al dalg

retrospectively.

of iransition 1o Ind AS as the management does not find it

praclicable to apply this appendix
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Note: - &
Intanglble Assets Under Development
{INR I Lakhs)
Gross Amount
Particulars As atist| Additionss | 720 | aceratst |  Addilonst | NSl [ 4o aiatst
April 2015 | {Disposals) | De9UCUo | et 2016 | (Dlsposals) | 2edUetion |y reh 2017
pri sP AdJusiments P Ad]ustments are
Revenue sharing right under
development
Project Line No. 5 B.B7 204.86 - 213.73 59.80 233.23 40,10
Other Project Assels . - - - 473 4.73 -
Total 8.87 204.86 - 21273 £4.33 27.96 40.10
——

Hote 5.1: The Inlangible under develspment includes expenditure incurred by the Company on the upgradation of ihe project railvray or {o create
additional facifity (Construction of Line Mo-5 at Dahej) thereon which give rise to fulure economic benefils.

Note 5.2 : During lhe year, the Company has recognized Rs. 237.96 [akhs (Previous Year Mil} as intangibles on completion of the works and
accordingly. intangibles under develepment has been reduced by same amount. During the current year, Rs. 64.33 lakhs (Pravious Year 204,86
Lakhs) has been recognised as intangible under development in respecl of the expenditure incurred on development of the project raitway, out of
which Rs. 24.23 Lakh provided in the inlangible Assets.

(6y4)
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Note: -6
Financlal Assets- Non Current

6.1 Other Financlal Assals
(INR [n Lakhs)

Particulars Asatdist AsatIist Asat1st April

March 2017 March 2016 205
Receivable from Western Railways under SCA (Refer Note 29) 38.03 34.34 31.01
Security Deposils
Considered good 10.55 10.55 10.45
Considered doubtful - - -
Total 48.58 44.89 41.46
Note: -7
QOlher Non Current Assets
{INR in Lakhs)
Asat31st Asat3ist Asat1stApril
Particulars March 2017 March 2016 2015
Capital Advances
Unsecured, considered good - Advances to related party
Advance for various Construction works 0.20 11.39 185.07
Total 0.20 11.39 185.07

MNote 7.1; The Capital Advance amount tg¢ Rs, 0.20 Lakhs (31-03-2016:11.39 Lakhs ) (1sl Aprl, 2015 Rs, 185.07 Lakhs)
representing the amount paid to M/s Rail Vikas Nigam Limited as project advance as per the Terms of Consiruction Agreement,
Amount of Rs. 0.20 Lakbs represents to old amount paid to RVNL towards Advance for Electrcal Work pending for adjustment.

Note:- 8
Financlal Assels- Current
8.1 Trade Recelvables {INR in Lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st  As at 31st  As at 1st April
articu’a March 2017 March 2016 2015
Unsecured, Considered good
Receivable from related party - - -
Receivable from others 446219 5315.23 3,752.07
Total Trede Receivable 4,462.19 5,315.23 3,752.07

Note 8.1.1 The Trade Recaivables represent the amount receivable from lhe Western Railway being the revenue apportioned,
after adjusting amounl of O&M expenses payable.

Note 8.1.2 The revenue and expenses apporligned as above by the Weslern Railway are on provisional basis and the final
figures may vary, Further the ameunt of nel receivable being Rs, 4,462.19 Lakhs [31st March 2016- Rs. 5,315.23 Lakhs (1sl
April, 2015 Rs. 3,752.07 Lakhs)] is subject to confimnation by the Western Railway.

Note 8.1.3 'Trade Receivables' represent apportioned eamings of BDRCL for chargeable distance of 100.88 KM. However,
such earmings have been made available by Weslern Railway to BDRCL only for chargeable distance of 92 Km between
Bharuch and Dahej. Addilional chargeable distance of 8.68 KM for section between Bharuch and Chavaj is not being ceunled for
apportioned eamings by Western Raiway because its censtruction was a post-Concession Agreement development. Since the
construction took place at MORANR's instance, the Company has represented to the Ministry of Railways and expecls a
favarable decision soon. -




Note 8.1.4 No rade or olher receivable are due from directors or olher officers of the Company either severally or jointly wilh any
other persan. No any frade or other receivable are due from firm or privale companies respectively in which any direclor is a
pariner, a director or member other than stated above.

Note 8.1.5 Trade Receivable® includes a sum of Rs. 0.87 Lakhs due lowards ODC Income from Western Railways,

Note:- 8.2 Cash and Cash equlvalent

{INR in Lakhs)
. Asat3ist Asat3ist Asatqst April
Particulars March 2017 March 2016 2015
Balances wilh banks:
On Cumrent Accounis 310.94 919.56 472.25
Deposits with original malurity of [ess than three monihs 1,810.00 1,250.00 -
Total Cash and Cash Equivalent 2,120.94 2,169.56 472.25

Note 8.2.1: Balance in current accounts under cash and cash equivalents above includes liquid flexi term deposils Rs, 264.5
Lakhs [31st March 2016 Rs. 861.35 Lakhs (1 April 2015 Rs. 443.51 Lakhs)).

Note 8.3 : Bank Balances other than cash and cash equivalent

{INR in Lakhs)
As at 31st As at 31st  As at 1st April

Particulars March 2017 _March 2016 2015
aiﬂ?::s with original matunty of more than 3 months but less than 12 7.033.00 6.587.00 5,124.87
Deposils with original maturity for more than 3 menihs but less than 12
months (VAT Guaranlee) 085 0.88 0.60

Total 7.033.85 _§,597.88 9,125.67

MNole 6.3.1 Rs. 0.95 Lakhs [31st March 2016 Rs. 0.88 Lakhs (1 April 2015 Rs. 0.80 Lakhs}] represents fixed deposit placed as
VAT guaraniee with {he Sales Tax Department of Vadodara, Gujarat pledged wilh Govt Authorilies.

Note 8.4 : Other Financial Assets-Current

{INR In Lakhs)
As at 31st As at 31st  As at st April

Particufars

March 2017 March 2016 2015

Unsecured, Considered Good
(a) Other Receivables

RUB Sharing Amount from Weslern Railway and Industries Commissioner

{Refer Nole 8.4.1} 518.51 516.51 516.51

Insurance Claim Receivable - 28.36 349
(b} Interest Accrued on Fixed Deposils 35522 27134 101.46
(c ) Security deposils 5.80 5.87 343
{d ) Advance to employees 1.20 0.33 0.36
{e ) Receivable from Dihers 0.07 - -
Total 878.80 822.21 625.25
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Note 8.4.1 'Other Receivables’ represent recoverable towards the cost of 02 road bridges (constructed at Shaktinath Junction &
Haospilal Road, both in Bharuch). Even though the Concession Agreement specifically quantified BDRCL's respaonsibility for
construction of such bridges as 'Nif', lhese bridges had to be consiructed based on orders of Ministry of Railway, wilh explicit
undertaking of cost sharing between Westemn Railway & the Government of Gujarat in the usual manner of construction of such
bridges over Indian Railway network. The cost of lhese bridges was Rs. 916.51. lakhs, to be borne by the two parties i.e.
Weslem Railway & Government of Gujarat, An amount of Rs. 916.51 lakhs has accordingly been reduced [rom the value of
Assels in the books of BDRCL. However, out of the total amount of Rs. 816,51 1akh, only an amount of Rs. 4 Crores has been
received from the Government of Gujarat on 06.04.2011 and the balance amount of Rs. 516.51 Lakh is slill recoverable from the
Govemment of Gujarat and Waslern Railway.

Since the liability of BORCL in this regard is clearly defined as zero in the Concession Agreement, end lhe constructian of the
bridges look place on explicit orders of the Railways wilh clear underiaking of sharing the cost with the Slale Government,
expenditure on these bridges has necessarily 1o be bome by lhese two parties onfy. The matter is being pursued wilh the
Weslern Railway and the State Government vigorously.

MNote 9: Other current assets

(INR in Lakhs}
Parliculars As at 31st As at 31st  As at 1st April
March 2017 March 2016 2015
Advance for expenses 0.12 217 4.21
Prepaid Expenses 632 5.20 23.47
Total 6.44 7.37 27.68
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Note:- 10
Equity Share capital

{IHR In Lakhs)
Partlculars As at 315t Asat31st  As at Tst April

March 2017 March 2015 2015

Authorlsed share capital

16,50,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each

(March 31, 2016: 16.50,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each) 18.500.00 16,500.00 16,500.00
{April 1, 2015; 18,50,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each)

16,600.00 16,500.00 16,500.00

Issued, Subscribed & Fully Pald up Shara Capltal with voting rights

15,51,10,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each with Voling Rights

{March 31, 2016: 15,51,10,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each Fully paid up) 15.511.00 15,511.00 15.511.00
{Apsil 1, 2015: 15,51,10,000 Equity Shares ol Rs. 10 each Fully paid up)

15,511.00 15,611.00 15,511.00

{a) Reconclilation of the number of aguity shares and share capltal
As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016 As at1 April 2015
Particulars No. ol shares Amount No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
__{In Lakhs) {In Lakhs) {In Lakhs) {in Lakhs) [in Lakhs) {In Lakhs}

Issued/Subscribed and Paid up equity Capital
oulstanding al the beginning of e year 1.551.10 15,511.00 1,551.10 15,511.00 1,551.10 15,511.00
Add: Shares Issued during lhe year - - . - - .
Shares boughl back during tha Year . - - -
IssuediSubscribad and Pald up equity Caphal 1,661.10 16,511.00 156110 16,511.00 1,651.10 15,511.00

outstanding at the end of the year

{b} Terms/Rights attached to Equlty Shsres

The cempany has only ona class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 10/- per shara. Each holder of equity shares is entitled lo one vote per share.

In the event of liquidalion of the Company. lhe holders of equity shares will be entilled lo receiva remaining assels of tha company afler distributing all p:e[erenual
amounis. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by lhe shareholders.

{c) Detalls of Shares held hy e¢ach shareholder holding more than 5% shares In the company

As at 31 March 2017 As at 31st March 2015 Ag at 1t Aprll 2015
Namg of the shareholder No. of Shares % holding [n No. of Shares % heoldingIn  No. of Shares % helding In
__{In Lakhs) the class {In Lakhs) the class {in Lakhs} the class

Rait Vikas Nigamn Ltd 550.00 35.46 550.00 asda 550.00 35.46
Gujarat Industrial Developmani Corp. i78.60 11.51% 179.50 11.5¢% 178.60 11,51
Gujarat Maritime Board 178.60 11.51 178.60 11.51 176.60 11.51
Adani Pelronat {Dahej) Part Privaie Lid 173.30 11.17 173.30 11.17 173.30 11.17
Gujaral Narmada Vallay Fertilizers Company Lid 13530 6.72 135.30 6.72 135.30 672
Hindalce Induslries Limited 135.30 8.12 135.30 8.72 135.30 8.72
Dahej SEZ Lid 100.00 6.45 100.00 6.45 100.00 G.45
Jindal Rall Infrastructura Lid 100,00 645 100.00 6.45 100.00 6.45
Total 1.551.10 100.00 _1,551.10 100.00 1,551.10 100.00

{d} Aggregate no. of equity shares Issuad as fully pald by way of bonus, olher than cash & shares bought back during the period of five years
Immediately preceding the reporting date

As at 31 March  As at 31 March Ag at 31 As at 31 March As at 31T March

Particulare 2017 2016 March 2015 2014 2013

No Irt lakhs Mg in lakhs Mo In [akhs Na In lakhs No In lakhs

Equity Shares issued for consideration other than cash - - - -
Equity Shares Issued as fully paid up bonus shares - - - - -
Equity Shares bought back - - - - -

Total - - - - -
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Note 14 Other Equity

{INR In Lakhs}

As at MstMarch As at 31st  As at Tst Aprll
Partlculars 2007 March 2016 2015
Retalned Eamings 531.07 2.814.81 1,173.74
Total 931.07 2,814.31 1,173.74
Note 11.1 Retained Earnings
{INR In Lakha)
As at 31st As at 31st
Partlcul
articuars March 2017 March 2016
Balance as per last financial statement 2,814.81 1.173.74
Add: Net profit for Current Year {1,883.85} 1,641.07
Add: Other camprehensive income arising from Remeasurements af defined benefil -0.08 0.00
obligalion net of income tax ' ’
Closing Balance 931.07 2,814.81
Note 12 : Financial Liabilities-Non Current
12,1 Borrowings {INR In Lakha)
Particulars Asat31st As at 31st AsatistApril As at 31stMarch As at31st  As at 1st April
March 2017 March 2016 2015 2017 March 2016 2015
Non Currant Currant
Secured, Long Term Borrowlngs
Term Loans
From Canara Bank 13,842.44 1639244 17,792.44 2,520.00 1,400,00 1,400,00
From Canara Bank 2,280.00 2.490.00 2,700.00 240.00 210.00 210.00
Less : Current Maturities of long lerm debl
{Reler Note 16.2) - - - -2.760.00 -1,610.00 -1,610.00
Total 16122.44 1888244 20,492.44 - - -
Summary of Borrowing Ammangement
12.1.1 Datalls of Repayment Made during the year {INR In Lakha)
Partlculars March 2017  March 2016
Secured
Term Loan
From Canara Bank 1,400.00 1,400.00
From Canara Bank 210.00 210.00
Total 1,610.00 1,610.00

12.1.2 Rata of Intarest

Inlerest rate for F Y 2016-17 was Canara Bank's base rete {3151 March 2016 : The interest rate for F Y 2015-16 was Canara Bank's base rate
+0,30% p.2 ) (1st April 2015 : The Interest rate for F Y 2014-15 was fixed by bank @ 10.75% p.a.)

12.1.3 Securlty

Secured by way of first charge on all present and luture Immovable and movable fixed assets of the company excluding those assels lhal
have been leased by Minisiry of Rallways as per the Concession Agreement.
Secured by way ol first charge on all the langible movable property and plani of the company 1ogelher with spares, lools, accessories and olher

movables both present and fulure,
12.1.4 Repayment tarms:

The annual repayment to be sub-givided into four equal quarierly instaliments. Inlerest to be served at monthly rests. Door {o door lenor ol 15
year for Term Loan of Rs. 20,000.00 Lakhs and Door to door fanor of 13 year for Term Loan of Rs. 3,000.00 Lakhs. Repayment due for nexl
one year @ 12% [31st March 2016 - 7% (1s1 April 2015 - 7%])] of Tolal debt of Rs. 23.000.00 Lakhs.

12.2 Trade Payables {INR In Lakhs)
Particul As at 31st As at 31st  As at 1st April
articulars March 2017 March 2016 2015
(D Quistanding dues of micro and small enterprises
{ii) Ouislanding dues of oiher than micre and small enterprises
Land Lease Rental Charges (Refer Nole 12.2.1) 5,526.90 4,079.54 2,83585
General Overhead Charges 1.261.21 758.69 402.50
Central Charges : 11.34 4.48 234
Total 6,799.45 4,842.71 3,240.69
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Hote 12.2.1 The abave amount of Rs. 5526.90 Lakhs [March 31si 2016 Rs. 4,079.54 Lakhs (1st April 2015 Rs. 2,835.85 Lakhs)) represenls
the amount payable io Westem Railway from the date of operailon {i.e. 06ih March 2012 to 31st March 2017) towards Land License fees in
respect of land leased lo BDRCL. The Raitway has been compuling lhe Land License fees al 6% of the markel value of land. The market value
of land is inflated 7% each year. However, hls is being contested by BDRCL as conirery to provision in the Concession Agreement.

Furher, the rate of recovery has been recently revised upwards by Westem Railway by oblaining fresh circle rates for land prices from civil
authodlies, leading to more than doubling of the annual claim. Accordingly, (he lolal amount recoverable on account of Land License fee has
been worked oul as Rs. 14535.21 Lakh for the period 25th June 2008 1o 31st March 2016 {consider the impact up 10 31st March, 2017, the
arnount Increases o Rs. 175266 Lakh). Following past practice, lhe Company has cumnulatively provided for Rs. 6025.90 Lakhs {Previous
Year Rs. 4576 Lakh & amount of provision as on 01-04-2015 Rs. 3335 Lakh) lowards the Land License fees from the date of commercial
operation lo 31st March, 2017, based on {he pasl practice.

Besldes, Westem Railway had recovered Rs. 499.00 Lakh lowards Land License fee earlier, resulting in net balance amount payable as on
31.03.2017 at Rs. 5526,90 Lakh {Previous Year Rs. 4079.54 Lakh & as on 01-04-2015 an amoun! of Rs. 2835.85 Lakh).

As has been lhe censlsient view of the management and the prectice adopled by the Company in the past, no addilional amount is payable
before lhe Dale of Commercial Operatlon {COD). Accordingly, the totaf claim of Westem Railway in respect of Land License Fees before COD
amounting lo Rs. 4262.40 Lakh (Previous Year Rs. 3196 Lakh ) has not been admilled. Furlher. since the revised claim of Westemn Raitway is
grossly violative of the provisions in the Concession Agreement. lhe Company has sirongly represented Lo the Ministry of Railways asking for
revislon in the decision. Seeing merit in the demand of the Company, Railway Board had set up a Commillee to examine a number of issues
raised by BDRCL, Including the issue of Land License fee, and we have been advised ihal ihe maller is under consideration. Accordingly,
batance amouni of Rs. 7238.30 Lakh {Rs. 17528.6 lakh — Rs. 6025.9 lakh — 4262.4 lakh) has not been provided for. As slated, the whole issue
is currenily under active consideralion in the Minisiry of Raitway for charging of Lease License fees al nominal value, conslistent with provisions
contained in ihe Concession Agreement read along with extant policy of the Ministry applicable to Joint Venlure Gauge Conversion SPVs. The
final outcome rmay have a bearing on the capiialized and revenue expenditure values of lhe project during ihe current year.

Notae 13 : Provislons-Non Current

{INR In Lakhs}
As at J1st As at31st  As at1st April
Particulars March 2047 March 2048 2015
Employee Benefits
Graluity 1.57 0.86 0.51
Leave Encashment 267 2.19 132
Total 4.24 3.15 1.83

Note 13.1 : Provision for gratuity and Leave Encashment liability has been made lor the year 2016-17 based on Acluanial Valuation. For other
disclosures refer Note 44,

Nota 13.2: Graluily Benefit is payable 1o employees on separation from the corporation. The amounl of gratuity payable is based on pasi
service and salary at the lime of separation as per Payment of Gratuity acl, 1972. There is a vesling peried of 5 years on the benefit.

Note 14 Deferred Tax

{iNR In Lakha)
Particula As at 31st March As at 31st  As atist April
articu'ars 2017 March 2046 2015

Delemed tax llability on

Property. plant & equipment and Intangible Assels 4,635.85 4,059.12 3,263.43
Total deferrad tax liabltity 4,635.85  4,059.12 _3,263.43
Defered lax Assels

Employee benefit 1.50 1.141 0.64

Unabsorbed depreciation 2,568.22 1.575.54 1,944 .40
Total defarred tax asast 2,589,72 _1,576.66 1,945.04
Neot Defarred Tax Liability! (Assets) 204613 246246 1,318.38
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Hote 14.1 Movement In deferrad tax llabllityf {asset)

PPE& Carrlad
Particulars MAT Credit Infanglble = Rioyee Unabsorbed  forward Total
As Bensfits Depreclation Business
sots Loss
Openlng balance as at 1 April 2015 - 3,253.43 {0.54) {1,944.40}) - 1,310.39
Chargedf{crediled) during 2015-16
To Profit & Loss - 795.69 {D.48) 368.85 - 1,164.07
To other comprehensive income - 0.00 - 0.00
Closing balance as at 31 March 2016 - 4,059.12 {1.11) {1,575.54} - 2,482.46
Charged/{credited) during 2016-17
To Profit & Loss 0 576.74 (0.34) (1.012.67) - (436.28)
To other comprehensive incame - 0.04 . - 0.04
Closing balance as at 31 March 2017 - 4,635.85 {1-41) (2,588.22) - 2,046.22

In accordance with thd AS-12- "Income Taxes" notified by Minisiry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India, the Company has reassessed ihe
deferred tax laking Into consideration all the ilems, due 1o which Ihere is {emporary difference between the camying amount of the assets and
liabililies and 1heir tax base as on 31st March 2017.

Note 15 : Other Llabllitles

Note 15.1 Other Non Current Llabllilty {INR In Lakhs}
Partlculars As at :;L?It?lﬂarch P:\:n?; 32‘:]?'; As a‘tz;i;Aprll
Falr valualion adjustment of financial liapililies 601.32 515.15 357.08

601.32 515.15 357.08

It represenls unamortized porlion of the difference between the fair value of inancial Liabililies towards deffered overhead cost payable on
initial recognition/ransition date and fabllity due lowards deffered overhead charges.

Mote 15.2 : Other current Liability

(INR In Lakhs)
As at 31st March As at31st  As at 1st Aprll
Particulars 2017 March 2016 2015
Slatutery dues 6.10 6.07 8.03
Falr valuation adjustmenl of inancial liabililies 152.60 104.31 60.12
Total 158.79 112.38 66.15

Note 15.2 Statulory dues includes TDS, Service Tax and Provident Fund payable.

16.1 Trade Payables
{INR In Lakhs}

particula As at 31st As at 31st  As al 1st Aprll
culars March 2017 March 2016 2015

{1} Oulstanding dues of micre and small enlerprises
{iiy Ouislanding dues of other Ihan micro and small enlerprises

Payable to Olthers 1,295.34 1,141.76 165.32
Payable {o related parlies 33,35 - -
Total 1,328.69 1,141.76 165'3£=

Note 16.1.1 The 'Trade Payables’ includes ihe amounl payable to Weslem Raltway towards Operalion & Maintenance expendilure. The
Provisional outstanding balance amounl of Rs. 1,269.10 Lakhs [3151 Mareh 2016- Rs. 1,085.47 Lakhs (as on 01-04-2015- Rs, 130.40 Lakhs}]
Is related lo {he entire Dahej-Chavaj section.

Note 16.1.2 There are no reported Micro, small and medium enlerprises as defined in the * The Micro , Small and Medium enterprises

Development Act 2006" to whont Ihe company Owes any amount. W




16.2 Other Financial Liability

As at 31st As at31st  Asg at 1st April

Particulars March 2017 March 2016 2015
Cument malurities of Term Loans (Refer Note 12) 2,760.00 1.610.00 1.510.00
Book Overdraft - - 11.76
Security Deposils 2.84 10.63 6499
Interest accrued and due on bomowings 152.92 2282 175.23
Olher Payables 12,06 11.36 10,62

Total 2,927.92 1,654.81 1,814.60

Note ; 16.2.1 Current Maturity of Term Loan of Rs. 2760.00 Lakhs (Previous Year Rs. 1610.00 Lakhs & 1 April 2015 Rs. 1,610
Lakhs) represent the repayment to be made during next one year equivalent to 12% [31st March 2016 - 7% {1st April 2015
7%)] of total Term Loan of Rs. 23,000.00 Lakhs in accordance with the repayment schedule.

Note : 16.2.2 Other payable include a sum of Rs. 2B8.05 lakh payable to Rail Vikas Nigam Limited. Refer note 40 for related
party transaction and balances.

Note 17 : Provisions Current

{INR In Lakha)
Ag at 31st March As at31st  As at 1st April
Partlculams
articu 2017 March 2016 2015
Employee Benelils
Graluity 0.02 - -
Leave Encashment 0.08 0.07 0.05
Total 0.10 0.07 0.05
Note 17.1: For olher disclosures refer Note 44
Note: - 18
Current Tax Asset and Liability {INR In Lakhs}
Ag at 31stMarch Asat31st  As at 1st Aprll
Particulars 2017 March 2016 2015
Current tax Assets
Income Tax Refundable
AY 2010-2011 0.28 0.28
AY 2012-2013 2.16 55.54
AY 2013-2014 - 2431 24.31
Advance tax and TDS for AY 2017-18 82.28 - -
Total B2.28 26.75 8013
Current tax Liabllity
Income Tax Refundable
AY 2010-2011 0.28 - -
AY 2012-2013 216 - -
Provision [or Income Tax {Note 18.1} -2.44 52.28 18.05
Total - 52.28 18.05

Note 18.1 : Relund receivable for A'Y 2012-13 of Rs. 2,15 lakh has been adjusied wilh demand of A Y 2009-10, therefore company has
provided for provision for tax liability. However, company is conlesling the demand and submitied ils response o deparlment for non adjusiing
demand. Further, a sum of Rs. 0.28 Lakh Is receivable from Income tax depariment for A Y 2010-11, however refund is not issued since long
\herefore company has provided for provision for same during financial year 2016-17.




.;;:.’%3 Note 19 Revenue from operations

A {INR In Lakhs}
i Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31st March 2017 31st March 2016
{a) Income from Railway Operation 5,155.37 11,135.90
(b) Construction Coniract Revenue under Service concession Arrangement
(refer note 29) §4.33 426.30
Tota! 5,223.70 11,563.20

Note 19.1: Operating Income: The Bharuch-Samni-Dahej Railway line of route lenglh 61.60 kilometers became
operalional from March 8, 2012 and Bharuch-Chavaj line of roule length 5.52 Kilometers became operational from 27th
February 2014 with the complelion of the respectivo porlions of the project. The operaling income of the company has been
recognized for the period from 1st April 2016 to 31st March 2017 for Bharuch-Samni-Dahej Railway line, with the revenue
penaining to Bharuch-Chavaj being compuied on provisional basis. The share of BDRCL in the tolal revenue collecled by
the Railway at the time of loading is computed on the basis of percentage of chargeable distance Lravelled on BDRCL line
to the total chargeable distance travelled. While the QOperation & Mainienance Agreement is yet to be signed wilh Western
Railway, apportionment of revenue is being done on the basis of in-principle approval accorded by the Ministry of Railways.

Note 19.2: The Ministry of Railways has allowed the Company {o charge freight at inflated kilometers (50% inflated) for the
distance travelled over BDRCL's junisdiclion. Therefore, as against actuat distance of 67.12 kms on the Bharugch-Samni-
Dahgj section and aclual distance of 5.52 km of Bharuch-Chavaj section constructed by the company, the total chargeable
distance is taken as 100.68 kms. Revenue pertaining to Bharuch-Chavaj seclion has been accounted for on provisional
basis.

Note 19.3 : Chargeable kilomelers for freight movement on the section are 100.68 KM over Dahej-Bharuch-Chavaj section.
For Dahej-Bharuch seclion, Western Railway has, however, apportioned the share for 92 KM only, as against 92.4Km
(61.6 km x 1.5) of inflated kilometerage of Bharuch-Dahej section. The revenue aclually accounted for includes the share
pertaining to the differential distance of 0.4KM from the date of commissioning of Dahej-Bharuch section. It also includes
share in apportioned revanue from running of {reight trains on the extended section for Bharugh-Chavaj.

Note 19.4 : Revenue figures are subject 1o confirmation from Western Railway.

Note 20 Other Income
{INR In Lakhs)

Year ended31st Year ended

Particulara March 2017 315t March 2016

{a} Interest Income
Bank Deposits 707.74 626.20
Others - 26.26

(b) Other Non-operating Income
Unwinding of discount on receivable from Weslem Raitways under

Service Concession Arrangement 3.69 3.33
Reversal of Fair Value Adjustment of Financial Liabilities 104.31 60.12
{c) Miscellaneous Income 3.59 0.71
Total 819.33 716.62

Note 21 QOperation and Maintenance Expenses
{INR in Lakhs}

Pariculars Year ended3ist Year ended
March 2017 31st March 2016
(a) Operelion & Maintenance Expenses 4.871.24 4,926.03
{b) Construction Coniract Cost under Sorvice Concession Arrangement {refer 64.33 426.30
note no 29}

Grand Total 4,935.57 5,252.33
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NOTE 21.1: In terms of the draft Operations and Maintenance Agreement to be entered inte with the Westem Raitway read
logether with the Concession Agreement, the campany has to bear the expenses incurred by Weslemn Raitway on the
operation and maintenance of the Bharuch-Samni-Dahe] section and the additienal lino from Bharuch to Chavaj. The
company has recognized operating expenses of Rs. 3750.85 Lakhs {Previous Year Rs. 3370.75 Lakhs) for the period from
Apnl 2016 te March 2017 as advised by the Westem Railway on provisional basis in terns of the Operation & Maintenance
Agreement to be entered into with the Weslern Raitway. The final amount of expenses to be borme by the company could
vary.

Earlier the O&M of Civil Enginearing and S&T assets was being carried out by the Company but Westem Raitway has
partially taken over maintenanca of above menficned assets from January 2016, with a few non-safety related aclivities
remaining the respensibility of BDRCL. Accordingly, the company has recognized O8M expenses on aclivities retained by
BDRCL related te Civil Engineering and S&T assets amouniing to Rs. 1120.39 Lakhs (Previous Year Rs, 1555.28 Lakhs)
for the year ending March 31, 2017,

The above amount also includes Operation & Maintenance expenses on the exiended section of the line from Bharuch to
Chavaj for the paried from April 2016 to March 2017 on proportionate basis te the extent it was determinable.

Note 22 Employee Benefits Expenses

{INR In Lakhs}

. Year ended31st Year ended 315t
Particulars March 2017 March 2016

Salary and Allowancas 76.48 72.91

Staff welfare expenses 2571 3067

Contributions to Provident fund 16.61 22.08

Gratuity {Refer Note 44) 0.50 0.45

Leave Encashment (Refer Note 44) 0.74 0.90

Total 120.04 126.99

—

Note 22.1 : During the year ended March 31, 2017 there are only seven employees in the company who are employed on
long lerm basis. All other employees were appointed by the company for a period of six monihs only subject to further
regularizatien if required.

Note 23 Finance Cost
{INR In Lakhs)

Year ended3dist Yearended 31st

Particulars March 2017 March 2016
Interest Expenses
Termn Loan 1,820.46 2,082.50
Other Interest Expenses 0.06 -
Unwinding of discount on deferred overhead charges 82.04 43.52
Total ~1,902.56 2,126.02

MNote 23.1: Finance cost include interest paid to bank on Term Lean amounting o “1820.46 1akhs (Previous Year ' 2082.50
Lakhs) for the year ended March,31 2017,

Note 24 Depreciation and Amortisation

{INR In Lakhs)

. Year ended3ist Year ended 31st
Particuiars March 2047 March 2016

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment (refer note 3) 18.50 16.77

Amortisation of Intangible Assets {refer note 4) 1,266.66 1,258.03

Totzl 1,285.16 _1,274.80

G V= =

T Dok




Note 25 Other Expenses

{INR [n Lakhs}

Year ended31st Year ended 31st

Particulars March 2017 March 2016
Power & Fuel 2.26 272
Repairs and Maintenance 1.39 1.49
Legal and Professional Fees 17.70 20.78
Audilor Remuneration-

Audit Fees 3.84 1.70

Tax Audit Fees {Nole 25.1) 0.54 0.48

Qut of Pocket expenses (Note 25.1) 0.06 -
Internal Audit Fees 1.48 1.34
Printing & Stationery 1.57 204
Meeting & Conference 1018 14,31
Communication Expense 2.36 270
Travelling Expense 11.39 12.25
Rales & Taxes 0.36 0.33
Rent 35.64 40.80
Miscellaneous Expense B8.50 14.86
Corporata Social Responsibility 16.81 2.55
Total 114.06 118.15

Note 25.1 : Amount of Rs. 0,54 takhs towards Tax Audit Fees and Rs. 0.06 Lakhs towards is related to payment made to

previous auditor for Tax Audit of F Y 2015-15.

Note 26 : Taxes

Note 26.1 Incoma tax recognised in profit and loss

{INR In Lakhs}
. Year ended31st Year ended
Particulars March 2047 31st March 2016
Current Income Tax Expanses

Current Tax on profits for the years - 468.82

AdJusiments in raspect of current Income tax of previous year 8.57 7.58

Total Gurrent Tax Expenses 5.57 476.40
Defarred Income Tax Expense

In respect of the current year {436.28) 1,164.07

(For details Refer Note no 14)

Total Ogferred Tax Expensas -436.28 _1,164.07
lncom(_a tax axpenses aftributable to continuing 430.71 1,640.47
operations
Note 26.2 Tax ralated to items recognised in OCI during the year:

__{INR In Lakhs)
Particul, Year ended3ist Year ended3{st
ariculare March 2017 March 2016
Nel loss/{gain) on remeasurements of defined banefil 0.04 0.00
plans (Refer Nole 14)
Income tax charged to OCI 0.04 0.00
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Note 26.3 Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for 31st
March 2016 and 31st March 2017:

{INR In Lakhs}
. Year ended31st Year ended
Particulars March 2017 31st March 2016
Accounting profit before tax from continuing operalions (2,314.36) 3,281.53
Profit/{loss} before tax from a discontinued operation - -
Accounting proflt before income tax {2,314.38) 3,281.53
At India’s statutory income tax rato of 21.3416% (31st March 2016 21.3416% )" ) 700.33

Tax effect of amounte which are not deductible (taxable) in calculating
taxable income

Add: Tax effect due to transition to IndAS - 232 46
Add : Tax effoct due lo Non Deductible expenses -

0.98

Add . Deferred Tax recognised in stalement of profit and less {436.28) 1,164.07
At the effective income tax rate of 18.87% (31st March 2016 49.78%) -436.28 _1,832.89
Income Tax expenses reporied in statement of profit and loss for cumrent year (436.26) 163289
Tax expenses for previous year recognised 5.57 7.58
Income tax expenses reported in statement of Profit and loss {430.71) 1,640.47

*Presenily, the Company has been paying Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) on the book profits under section 115-JB of the
Income Tax Act, 1961 due to availing of deduclion from lhe taxable income under section 80-1A of tho Income Tax Act,
1961, Therefore, Tax rate applicable for MAT f.e. 21.3416% has been taken instead of regular rale of income 1ax 34.61%.

Note 27 Components of Other Comprehensive Income (OCl)
The disaggregation of changes to OCI by each type of reserve in equity is shown below

{INR in Lakhs})
Parficul Yearended31st  Year ended 31st
arficutars March 2017 March 2016
Remeasurements of defined benefit plans -0.13 {0.00)
Tax component of remeasurements of defined benefil cbligation 0.04 0.00
Total -0.06 {0.00)

Remeasurements of defined benefit plan includes Rs. 12.747/- (Previous Year Rs. 321/} lowards actvarial loss on

Projected benefit obligation. [\/V/,—
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‘%ﬁ Note 28 : 'Earnings per share (EPS)

. Year ended 31st Year ended
Particulars March, 2017 31st March 2016
(Rs. per share) (Rs. per share)
Basic EPS
From continuing operation (1.21) 1.06
Diluted EPS
From continuing operation (1.21) 1.06

28.1 Basic Earning per Share
Basic EPS are calculated by dividing the profit for the year atiributable to equity holders of the company by weighted
average number of equity shares cutstanding during the year

The earning and weighted average number of equity share used in calculation of basic earning per share:

. Year ended 31st Year ended
Particulars

icu March, 2017 31st March 2016
Profit atiributable to equity holders of the company (Rs. In lakhs) {1,883.65) 1,641.07
Earnings used in calculation of Basic Earning Per Share (Rs. In lakhs) (1,883.65) 1,641.07
Weighted average numbers (In Lakhs) of shares for the purpose of basic 1.651.10 1,551.10

earnings per share
238.2 Diluted Earning per Share

The earnings and weighted average number of equity shares used in caleulation of diluted earning per share:-

. Year ended 31st Year ended
Particulars March, 2017 31st March 2016
Profit attributable to equity holders of the company {Rs. In lakhs) {1,883.65) 1,641.07
Earnings used in calculation of diluted earning per share (Rs. In lakhs) {1,883.65) 1,641.07

The weighted number of equity shares for the purpose of diluted earning per share reconciles to the weighted average
number of equity shares used in calculation of basic earning per share as follows:

Year ended 31st Year ended3ist

Particulars March, 2017 March 2016
Weighte.d average numb_er (in Lakhs } of Equity shares used in 1551.10 1.551.10
calcuiation of basic earnings per share

Effect of dilution:

Share Options - -
Weighted average number {in Lakhs) of Equity shares used in calculation 1.551.10 1.551.10

of diluted earnings per share
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BHARUCH DAHEJ RAILWAY COMPANY LIMITED

Note 29: Service Concesslon amangements

Public-to-privale servica concession amangements ara recorded according 10 Appendix “A™ Service Concession Arrangements” IND-AS-11 . Appendix
"A" Servica Concession Arrangemants applies if:

a)  The Grantor controls or regulates which services lhe operalor should provide wilh 1he infrastuclura, 1o whom it must provide them, and at what
price; and

b)  The grantor conlrols- through ownarship, benaficial antitfernen|, or otherwise- any significent residuat interesl in lhe infrastruclura at the end of the
term of the amangement.

If bolh of the abave condilions era met simultanecusly, an intangible assel is recognized 1o the extenl that he operator receives the righl 1o chaige users
of Lhe public service, provided hat these charges are condilional on lhe degree to which Lhe service is used.

These intangible assets ere initiglly recognized at cost, which is understood as Lhe fair value of the service provided plus other direct costs directly
attributeble to the operalion, They era then amortized ovar the lerm of the concession.

The Bharuch Dahej Railway Company Limiled (Company) has entered into e Concession Agreemant wilh Minislry of Raitwaye {(MoR), Government of
India dated June 25, 2008 in terms of which the Ministry of Reilways {Grantor) has authorized the Company (Qperator} to develop, finance, design,
engineer, procure, consiruct, operale and mainlain the Projecd Railway and to exarcise endfor enjoy the righls, powers, benefils, privilegas authorizations
and entillements upon ils complelion. In terms of the said agreement BORCL has an obligation 1o complete consiruction of the project railway and to
weep lhe project assets in proper warking condition including all projects assets whose lives have expired.

The concession period is delermined wilh referenca to atteinment of NPV payback banchmark el the rale of return of 14%.The concession period shell
ba 30 years of operalion or till the NPV payback equal to equity investment is reached, whichever is earfier. In case ihe NPV payback is reached eertier
{han 30 years, the concassion egraement would stand terminated and tha project fine would ba re-possessed by railway.

At the end of concession penod, tha project assels shall be hand over by BDRCL to MOR end BORCL shall ba entitled (o receive and MOR shall pay to
BDRCL an amount equal to the Book velua of new assels end additional facililies created by the BDRCL. The original existing assets leasaed to BDRCL
ty MOR shall reverl beck to MOR. The fresh land acquired by MOR and leased 10 BORCL shall also reverl back to MOR on paymeni of an amount equal
to lhe cost of acquisition,

In terms of the above egreemenl upon expiry of 30 years of operziion the concession period shall be extended by an equal periad of time which
comasponds o the peried for which malerial disruplion of operation and maintenanca eccurred during the concession period. However such exlension
will be limiled to provision Lhat if NPY payback equal to equity inveslmant is reached earfier lhen the perod so exiended , 1he concassion period would
stand {erminated.

In cese of material breach in terms of lhe agreement the MOR and BDRCL bolh hava ihe righl 1o terminate the agreement if they are not able lo cure the
evenl of default in accordance with such agreement.

The Operation end Mainlanence of tha project railway is baing conducied by MOR through Wesiem Railway (WR) under its right, vide drafl agreement
undar finalisation, which is co-lerminus with the Concassion Agreement, entared into between ihe MoR and BORCL. Furthar, in tarms of Lhis agreament,
WR is in performance of Operation and Maintenanca of Project Reitway from Chavaj to Daha] via Bharuch, a total distance of 67.12 Kms. BDRCL is to
pay Q&M cost lo WR.

Sections: {a) Bharuch Siation 1o Dahej Stalion measuring approximately 61.60 kms,
{b) Bharuch station 1o Chavaj Slation measuring approximalely 5.52 kms,

For the year ended 31st March 2017, the company has recognized revenue of Rs. 5,223.70 Lakhs (31st March 2016 11,583.20 Lakhs),consisting of Rs.
64,33Lakhs (3151 March 2016 Rs. 426.30 Lakhs] on construction of inlangible assets under service concession amangement and Rs. 5,159.37 Lakhs
{31st March 2016 Rs. 11,135.90 Lakhs) {owards sharing of apportioned eamings from operetion of raitway line under service concassion emengement.
Company has recognized loss befora tax of Rs. 2,318.93 lakhs (31s1 March 2016 profit of Rs. 3,281.54 Lakhs) consisting ni! prefit on construction of
intangible assels under service concession amangemenl and a loss before lax of Rs. 2,316,93 lakhs {31st March 2016 profit of Rs. 3,281,549 Lakhs)
iowards sharing of apportioned eamings from operetion of raibway line under service concession emangement. The revenue recognized fn relation 1o
consiruction of intangible assets under service concession arrangement in F.Y.2015-16 represents the lair value of services provided lowards
construclion of intangibla essels undar service concession amangeman!. The company has recognized an inlangible asset of Rs. 237,98 lakh during F y
2016-17 and R3, 254.93 Lakhs, in F.Y.2015-16. The inlangible assel vnder development represents the freight sharing rights under development lo
receiva fraight tratfic agmings under sarvice concession agreemenl. The company has recognized receiveble under sarvice concession arrangement
meesured al the fair value al Rs. 38,03 Lakhs [3151 March 2016 of Rs, 34,34 Lakhs (et st April 2015: Rs,21.01 Lakhe)], representing the present value
of fresh fand acquired by MOR of 461.80 Lekhs { Pravious Yesr Rs. 461.80 Lakhs) feased 1o BDRCL and from GIDC amounting lo Rs. 24,16 lakhs
{Previous Year Rs. 24,16 lakhs } which is recovereble at Iha end of concession period from MOR, discounted at e cale of 10.75 percant, of which Rs.
7.02 fakhs {Previous year Rs. 3.33 Lakhs ) represents cummuiative unwinding of discount.

Mote 30: Capital menagament
The company objective 10 managa its capital in 8 manner 1o ensure and safeguard their ability 1o conlinua as a going concem sa that company can
continua to provide maximum returns to shere holders and benefil to olher stake holders.

Further, company manages ils capital siructure to make adjustments in lighl of changes in economic condilions and the requirements of lhe financial
covenanls, The company mainigin an oplimal capital siracture of Debi equity 1o reduce the cost of cepilal. The company’s debis includes intenast baaring

barmowings from banks. r_/1/£/’
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{INR In Lakhs)

As at31at  As at 31st  As at 1et April

Particulars
March 2017 March 2016 2015
Borcowing {Note No. 12.1) 16.362.44  17,792.44 19,192.44
Net debt 16,362,44 17,792.44 19,192,44
Equity (Note No. 10} 15,511.00  15,511.00 15,511.00
Olher equity {Nole Mo. 11} 831.07 2.814.81 1,173.74
Total aquity 16,442.07  18,325.54 16,684.74
Net Debt Lo aqulty ratlo 53:47 53:47 5.7:43

No changes were made in ihe objectives. policies or processes for managing capilal during 1he years ended 31 March 2017

Note 31: Fair Valus Measuremants
{i} The carrying amount of financial Instruments by Category are as follgw,
__{INR In Lekhs)

37 3172016 Olet Aprl 2015
Particul ;
acticulars FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised FVTRL FvTOCI Amortlsed
Cost Cost Cosgt

Financial Assels
{iY Recelvabla from Wastam
Railways under Sarvice concasgsion
amangemeni - - 38.03 - - 34.34 - - 31.01
(li} Trada Receivablos - - 4.462.19 - - 5,315.23 - - 3,752.07
{lii} Cash and cash equivalenis - - 2,120.94 - - 2,169.56 - - 472.25
{iv) Benk Balancas other than (fi) . ) . . . )
above 7.033.95 6,5997.88 5.12567
(v} Security Deposits - - 16.35 . - 16.22 - . 13.88
{vi) Clhars - - 873,00 - - 816.54 - - 621,82

Total Financial Assats - - 14,544.45 - - 14.549.77 . - 10,016.70
Financlal LiabHitles
(i} Borrowings - - 16,362.44 - - 17.792.44 - - 19,192.44
{ii} Trade Payables - . 8,128.14 - - 5,984.47 - - 3.406.01
{iily Olher financial liabiliies - - 167,82 44.81 204.60
Total Financlal Liabilities - - 24,658.40 - - 23,821.72 - - 22,803.035

{ii) Comparison by elass of ihe carmying amounis and fair value of the company's financial instruments, ather than those wilh carmying amounts that ere
reasonable approximates lhare fair values are nol presenled since fair value of all financial instrumen(s as on reporting date approximates Lheir carrying
value.

(i) The camying amounis of trede receivables, cash and cash equivalenis and olhar short ferm receivables and olher financial liabilities are considered
{0 the same a3 their feir values, due 1o short term nature.

{iv} Long tarm variable rate borrowings are evaluated by company on parameters such as interssl rates, specific counlry risk factors and other risk
faclors. Based on ihis evaluation lhe fair value of such payables are not materially different from lhair camying emounl.

{v} The amorlised cost of receivables from reivways under service concassion emengement were celculated based on cash fows discounted using
lending rate.

Fipanclal rigk management

The Company's principal financial liabiliies comprises lrede payables, borrowing and olher payables. The main purpose of {hese financial fiabilities is to
finence lhe company’s operalions and to provide guarantees lo supporl its operetion, Tha Company's principal financial assets include irade and other
recelvables and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operalions.

Tha Company is expose to market risk, crodil risk and liquidity risk. The company financial risk activities are governed by appropriated policies and

proceduras and Lhat financial risk era idenlified, measured and menaged in eccordanca with the companies policies and risk objectives. The board of
directors reviews and agraeas policias for menaging each of lhese risk, which are summarised below

e
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a) Market Rlsk
Market risk is the risk |hat the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instruments will flucluate bacause of changes in market prices. Market rigk
comprises Interest rate risk. Finansial instruments affecied by marke! risk includes deposits and other non darivative financial instruments.

b) Interast Rate RIsk

inlerest rate risk is the risk thai the fair value of future ¢ash lows of a financial instrumenls will fuciuale because of change in market interest rate. The
company exposure ta lha risk of changes in markat inlerast rate relates primarly to the company's exposure to change in markel interest ratas primarily
to the company's ong term dabt obligaling wilh floting interest rate nsk. The company manages its interast risk in accordance with the companies
policias and risk objective.

c) Credit risk

Credit risk is the sk of financial loss to ihe Company if & cuslomer ar counlerarty to a financla! instrument fails to meat ils contreclual obligations, and
anses principally from lhe Company's receivablas from customars. The company is axposed to credit risk from ils financial aclivilies including operaling
aclivilies {primarily trade receivable) deposits wilh banks and olher financial instrumenls.

{) Trade Recaivable

Customaer credil risk is managed by compeny's established policy, procedura and contrel relaling to cuslomer credil risk managemeni. Quistanding
customer receivabla are reqularly monitored and an impairmenl analysis is performed at aech reparting date on individual basis for major customer.
The company does not hold any collateral as securty

{Il) Financial inatruments and cash deposita
Credit sisk from balances with banks and financial instilutions is managed in accordance with the companies policy. Investmenl of surplus are made
only with approved with counlerparty on tha basis of tha financial quaotes receivad from the counierparty.

d) Liquidity risk
Ulimate responsibility for fiquidity sk managemenl resl wilh the board of direciors tha company manages maintsining adequate banking faciliias by
continucysly monitoring forecast and actual cash fiows and by matching the malurities of financial liabilities.

Note 32: Key sources of estimation uncertafnty
The followings ara ihe key assumptions congeming the fulure, and tha kay sourees of eslimation uncerteinty at ihe and of lhe reparting period thal mey
hava g significant risk of causing a material adjustment lo the cemying amount of essets and fiabilities with next financial year,

a) Falr valualion measurement and veluation process

The lair values of financial assels and financial liabilities is measured the valualion techniques including tha Biscountad cash flow model. The inpuls 1o
these melhed are taken from observable markets whera possible, bul where this is nol feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair
values. Judgments include considerations of inputs such as liquidity rigk, credit risk and volalility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could
affect tha reported fair valug of financial inslruments,

b} Useful lifa of Property, plant & equlpment

As described {n note 2.6, Useful life of property plant and equipmant are based on a8 number of faciors including ihe effects of obsolesces, demend,
compelilion, internal essessmant of user experiance and olhar economic factors and fevel ol mainlenance expendilure required ta obtain tha expectad
futura cash flows from 1he assel. The Company revigws |he uselul life of property, plant and eguipment al each reporting date.

¢} Useful life of tntanglbte Asaets

As deseribed in nole 2.7, company has estimaled iha uselul live of intengible assels (intangibla under servica concession arrangemant) is 30 years for
amorlisation of intangible assets, As per sarvice concession arrangement if NPV payback equal lo equity invastmenl @14% is reached earlier than 30
years, the concassion agreemant would sland tarminated end Ihe project line would be repossessed by railway.

As deseribed in note 2.7 - Inlengible Assats olher than freighl Sharing right .campany has estimaled vseful life of 2 years in case of compuler software.
The financial impact of the above assessment may impact the amortisalion expenses in supsequent financial years,

d) Cefined benefit plan

Tha cost of Ihe defined benefit graluity pian and olher post-emplayment banefits and lha present value of lhe gratuily obligation are determined using
acluarial valuations. An actuarial veluation involvas making various assumplions lhal may differ form actual developmenls in the fulure, These include
tha delarmination of the discount rate, future salery increeses and mortality retes. Dua 1o the complaxities involvad in the valuation and its long-term
nalure, a defined obligation is highly sensitiva 1o changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at aach reporting dala. The paremeler
most subject ta change is ihe discount rale. In defermining 1he appropriate discount rate for plans , the management considers ha inleresl rates of
government badies in currancies consisieni with the currencies of the post-employment benefil obligation.
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e) Taxes

Defemed tax assels are recognised for unused tax losses to the exdent if is probable that taxabla profit will be available against which lax assels can be
utilized. Significan manegemant judgemenl is required to detemmine the amounl of delerred tax assel that can be recognisad, based upon the fikety
tirning and laveal of future 1axable prolit fogather with fulure 1ax planning siralegies.

Note 33: Construction Contracts
In terms of the disclesure required in IND AS-11 "Construclion Contracts™ es notified in lhe compenies (Aceounting Standard) Rules 2046, the amount
considered in the financial slatements up to the balance sheet date are as follows :

{INR in Lakhs}

Particulars 31st March 2017 3st March
2016

Revenua Recognised on exchanging consiruclion services 54.33 426.30

Aggregale amount of costs incumed and recognised 54.33 426.30

MNote 34 Obligation under operaling lease
34.1 Leaee of office bulldings

The Company has taken its corporete office on leasa on payment of monthly ranlel of Rs. 1.47 lakhs plus applicable laxes, for an inilial logk-in-period of
three {3) years which is up to 10th Oclober 2017. As per lhe lerms ol ihe agreements. lhe lease can be renewed for another two lerms of three years
aach at tha option of {he lessee. In case of renswal, Lhe rent payable shall be increased by 15% for each successive three years term over the last paid
rent of prewious term.

Fulure minimum renials payable under non-cancellable operaling leases are as lollows; {INR In Lakha)
Particulars 31-Mar17  31-Mar-16 01-Apr-15
Within ona year .29 17.64 17.64
Afer one year bul nol more than five years - 09.20 26.93
More than five years - - -
9.29 26.93 44.57

34.2 Leased Assets from Western Rallways
Wastern Railway {(essor) has leased all the exisling essels as per concession egreement and Lhe Tand to be newly ecguired with el| righis, easemenls for
the praject 1o the company (lassee) for the duretion of concession agreement.

Company shall pay to ibe lessor, en ennual lease renial of Rs.1/- p.a. in cese of new land ecguired by Western Reilway and as per extanl policy of the
Ministry of Railways (es revised from lime to time) lor (ha original land of Westermn Raitway, which shall be payable in advance in |ha first week of January
every year . Upon expiry, the Gompany is required to hand over ihe leased assets to Minisiry of Railways {(MoR) frze form all encumbrancos whatsoaver.
If Ihe coneession panod is extended/renewed beyond concession panod, the lease egreement shall 21sa to be extended/renswed al tlerms 1o ba muiually
decided by the parlies.

The Company has taken lease assats from Minisiry of Raiways under non-cancellable opereting lagse.

As rent payable is depandent on lhe extan| policy of Ministry of Railwaya which chenges from time to time, therefors it is nol possible for the compeny fo
determina and present (ha future minimum lease renlals payable,

Lease Ranlel expenses during ihe year in raspect of operaling leases :

Particulars 31-Mar-17 31-Mar.16
Gross Lease Rent

{a) Delhi office 20.31 20,12
{b) Vedodara offica 12.85 12.48
{c) Resl house 0.56 312
Met Lease Rent 3362 35.72
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Note 35: Contingent Llabllities

Claims not acknowledged as debts by the company

i) M/s Rail Vikas Nigam Limited has demanded manegement fees of Rs. 1835.17 lakhs { Rs 1833.17 lakhs uplo 31sl March 2016) Upto (1s1 April 2015
1814.70 lakhs) lawards construclien of the project.

ii) Tha Company had received a Show Cause Nolice (SCN) during financial year 2014-15 from tax autherilias in lhe mattar of applicebility of service tax
on the Company in respec! of apporlicned freight received by ihe Company from Railways, The SCN covered a period of three years from linancial year
2011-12 lo Ninancial year 2013-14 and involved service lax of Rs. 1633 lakhs plus interesl and penallies. Tha Company coatesled tha SCH and
submitted its positon through a rejoinder thereon to ihe adjudicating aulhorities. pleading that no service is randared by BDRCL 1o Westem Railway that
mighl warrant liability to pay Service Tax. The Company managed te obtain relief from Llhe Commissioner of Service Tax vida her order daled 25.01.2016
and has, therelore, not provided for the amounl in 1be aforesaid claim in its books for the above period. However. (ha depariment has filed appesl wilh
CESTAT against the order of Cemmissicner for the sama period, which will be contesied on similar lines.

Subsequantly, the tax aulhorities issued another SCN 1o the Company on the same grounds involving a demand of Rs. 1638 lakhs plus interest end
penalties for FY 2014-15. The company has duly submitted ils reply te the adjudicaling authorities for wilhdrawal of the claim in the aforesaid SCN on
the same grounds as pleaded in the eadiar rejoinder. Since tha Company's sland is based on sound principies end immutable fecls, and it had received a
favorabla ruling from Commissioner Servica Tax, on the earlier occasion, it is confident that no additional liability on account of Service Tax will devolve
on il. The Gompany has nol yet received any adjudication order in lhe matier.

iti} The amount of Rs. 5526.90 Lakhs {Nole 12.2) represenls the amount payable to Western Reitway from the dale of operalion (i.a. 08th March 2012 te
31st March 2017) towards Land License feas in respect of land leased io BDRCL. The Reilway has been compuling the Lend License fees at 6% of the
markel value of land. The marke! value of land is inflated 79 each year. However, lhis is being conlestad by BDRCL as contrary lo provision in lha
Concassion Agreement,

Further, the rala cof recovery has been recently revised upwards by Western Railway by obtaining fresh circle rates for land pricas from civil aulhorilies,
leading to more lhan doubling of (he annual claim. Accardingly, the telal ameunt recoverable on account of Land License fee has been worked cul as Rs,
14535.21 Lakh for the period 25lh June 2008 io 31st March 2016 (consider ihe impact up to 31sl March, 2017, lhe amount increases to Rs. 17528.6
Lakh}. Following pasi praclice, lhe Company has cumulatively provided for Rs. 6025.90 Lakhs (Pravious Year /5. 4578 Lakh & amount of provision as
on 0i-04-2015 R, 3335 Lakh} towerds ihe Land License fees from the date of commercial operation 1o 31st March, 2017, based on the pasl practica.

Besides, Westemn Railway had recovered Rs. 498.00 Lakh lowards Land License fea earlier, rasulling in nat balance amount payable as on 31.03.2017
at Rs. 5526.90 Lakh {Previous Year Rs. 4073.54 Lekh & as on 01-04-2015 an amount of Rs. 2835.85 Lakh).

As has been the consislent view of the management and the praciice adopted by the Company in the past, no additional amount is payable before the
Dale of Commertial Operalion {COD). Accordingly, ihe lotal claim of Westem Railway in respect of Land Licanse Fees befora COD amounting 1o Rs.
4262.40 Lakh {Pravious Year Rs. 3198 Lakh } has not been admitled. Furlher, since the ravised claim of Westemn Reilway is grossly violativa of tha
provisions in the Conceseion Agreement, the Company has strongly reprasented 1o the Minislry of Railways asking for reviston in the decision. Seeing
marit in the demand of the Cornpany, Raitway Board had set up a Commitlee {0 examine a number of issues raised by BDRCL, including the issue gf
Land Licensa fee, and we have been advised thal the matter is under consideretion. Accondingly, balanca amount of Rs, 7238.30 Lakh (Rs. 17526.6 lakh
— Rs, 60259 |lakh — 4252.4 lakh} has not been provided for. As staled, the whole issue is currenlly under aclive consideration in the Ministry ol Railway
for charging of Lease License feas at nominal value, consistent wilh provisions contained in the Concession Agreement read along with extant policy of
the Minislry applicable to Joint Venture Gauge Convarsion SPVs. The final guicome may hava a bearing on lhe cepitalized and revenue axpendiiure
values of the project during the curren yaar,

iv} The O&M expenditure perlaining lo Bharuch-Chavaj section has baen provided in financial slataments to the extent information provided by Wastem
Raftway and informetion availabla wilh company, remaining O& 8 will be provided in Ihe year in which information wil! be received from Railways.

v) Company has lerminated some cenlraclual employees, due (o misconduct at work place end unauthorised absence from office, Aggrieved by tha
decision of the compeny amployaes have filed applicalion wilh Labour courl for cempensalion towards lheir termination. Howaver based on the facis of
{ha case compeny expecls favorable decision. Financial impact of same is not ascarlainable.

Note 36: In the cpinion of lhe Board of Directors and to the best of their knowledge and beliaf, the aggregate value of the Cument Assels including
Current linancial essals on realizelicn in the ordinary course of business will not be less than the amount at which thesa are staled in lhe Balance Sheet.

MNole 37: Capital commitmant
Capital commitment is Estimeled at Rs.22 Crore {3151 March 2016 5.50 Crores (April 1, 2015 Rs. 11 Crore).

MNote 38: Forelgn cummancy transactions
Expendilure in Foreign Currency Nil (Previous period Nii}
Income in Forgign Currency Nil (Pravious period Nil)

Mote 39; There are no raperied Micro, Small end Medium enterprises es defined in the "The Micro, Small & Medium Enlerprises Development Acl 2006"
to whom the compeny owes any amouni .




Note 40 : Related Party Disclosures
40.1 Partles to (he joint venture agreement

40.1.1 Related Partles held equity of company

As at 31 March, 2017 As at 31 March, 2016
Number of % holding In Number of
N a
ame of Party shares held In thatclass of mhares held In %lholdlr;g :1" that
Lakha shares Lakhs Class of shares
Rail Vikas Nigam Lig 550.00 35.46% 550.00 A5.46%
Gujarat Induslial Davelopmenl Carp, 178.80 11.51% 178.60 11.51%
Gujarat Maritime Board 178.60 11.51% 178,60 11.51%
Adani Petronet (Dahej) Port Private Lid 173.30 11.147% 173,30 11.17%
Gularat Marmada Valley Fertilizars Company Ltd 13530 8.72% 135.30 8.72%
Hindalco Indusiries Limiled 135.30 8.72% 135.30 8.72%
Dahej SEZ Lid 100,00 6.45% 100.00 6.45%
Jindal Rail Infrastructure Ltd 100.00 6.45% 100.00 8.45%
1!55 1.10 100.00% 1!551.1 0 100.00%
40.2 Key Managerial personnel of the entity
Name Oeafgnation
Mr Anirudh Jain {From 17.01.2817 to 31.067.2017} Direclor
Kr. Laj Kumar {Ceased on 31.05,2016) Director
Mr, Rajendra Kashyap (From 12.08.2014) Managing Director
Mr, Vinay Singh (From 11.01.2014) Director
Mr. A. K Singh {From 25.05,2016) Director
K. Sajal Minra (Frorn 26.11.2015) Director
Ms. Chavi Jha {From 25.05,2016) Director
Mr Afay Bhadoo (From 13.10.2018) Direclor
M. 5. P, Chalurvedi (Ceased on 11.08.2017) Independenl Director
Ms. Bela Banerjeo {Ceased on 11,08.2017) Independent Diractor
Mr, A, K. Rakesh (Ceased on 22.06.2016) Director
Ms, D Thara {From 02.08.2016 to 02.08.2017) Direclor
Mr, M. K Singh {Ceased on 25 05.2016} Diractor
Mr, Ashutosh Gangal {Ceased on 25 .05.2016) Director
Mr. Manoj Aggarwal {Ceased on 02 .08,2016) Direclor
Mr. Balkishan Sharma Chiel Financial Officer
Ms. Beena R. Shah Company Secretary
40.3 Disclosure of transaction with ralated partles:
INR 1n Lakha
Outstanding
Transactlons ::; ::::’ Transactions Oulsisnding Amount Payable/
Parilculare (Rs.) {Receivable} (Re.) (Recelvablc] (Re)
{Rs.)
Yearended As atMarch 31, Yearended As at March Ag at April 1,
March 31, 2047 2047 March 31, 2016 21, 2016 2015
Rall vikas Nigam LImited
Expenditura of Vadodara otfice apportioned - - {4.03)
Conference and Seminar Expenses reimbursed 5.00
Projecd expenditure in terms of conslruction agreement 40.04 369.311 - -
Closlng Balance 28.05 . {11.19) {180.84)
Gujarat Industrial Development Corp.
Amouni pald towards Lease Renl Water Charges 1.39 0,10 1.77 .13 0413
Adanl Petronet (Dahe]) Port Private Ltd
Installation of welgh BEridge - - 24.01 - -
Loco Hire Chames 12.96 - - - .
Closing Balanca - 530 - 23.66 -
Kay Managerial Personnel
Remuneralion 45.36 - 41.4% - -

40.4 Compensatlon of key management pergsonnel:
The remuneralion of direciors and other membera of key management personnel during the year was as follows:

INR In Lakh3
Year ended
Year ended
Pariiculara 315;‘;-::mh 218t March 2016
Short-igm benefits 45.356 41,41
Post-employment benefita 20 1.35
Other long-term benefils - - -
Total 47.36 4280
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Nole 41; Peyment to Auditors

Paymenl io the Audilors comprisea of lhe following: INR In Lakhs
Year ended

Particulars 318t March Y::r ended3 st
2017 arch 2016

Audit Fee 384 1,70

Tax Audit fees 0.54 0.48

Qul of Pocket expenses 0.08 -

Total .48 2.18

Note 42; Gorporata Soclal Responsibllity

with the enactment of the Companies Act 2013 and the Companies {Corporale Social Responsibility) Rules, 2014 read with various clarification
issued by MCA, he company has underaken aclivities as per CSR policy. During tha financial year 2016-17 the company hes incured a sum of Rs.
16.61 Lakhs lowards CSR in accomdance with Seclion 135 of companles Acl 2013, Fucther in complianca of compenies Act 2013, company has made
paymeni of Rs, 16,82 Lakhs to CSR executing agency, howevar axpanditure to the extent of funds ulilised by egency is provided in slalement of profit
and loss and balanca unulilised fund of Rs. 0.12 Lekhs is appearing as Advance for Expanses

Hote 43: The company has onty one raporiabla segment viz. oparation of freight traffic. Therefore requiramenl for segment raporling is not applicable.

Hota 44 ; The company has accounted for Lhe amployes's benefit expensas in accordance with Ind AS 19 "Employes Benefils™ notified by the Ministry
of Corporate Aflairs, Govamment of Indla. The summarised positdon of Post-employmenl benelits and long-lerm employee benefils recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss and Balance sheat as per Ind AS 19 are 85 under-

44.1 Change In present value of obligation:

{INR in Lakhs!
2016-17 2015-16
Particulars Gratulty Eamed Leave Gratulty Eamed Leave
Rs.
Opening Balance D.86 2.26 0.51 1.37
Interast Cosl 008 018 004 0.11
Curren! service cost 043 0.72 0.4 098
Banefit paid - -0.26 - -
Acluarial (Gain)f Loss on obligatlon 0.13 -0,16 .00 {0,189}
Closing Balance 1.59 2.74 0.98 2.26
44.2 Change In falr value of Plan Assels (INR in Lakhs)
201617 2015-16
Partlculars Gratulty Eamed Leave Gratuity Eamed Leave
Falr value of Flan Asseta at ihe beginning of the year
Expected return on Plan Assets - - - .
Employer's contributicn - - - .
Banefil Paid - . - -
Acluadial {loss)/ gain on Qbligalions - - - .
Closlng Balance - - - -
44.3 Amount Recognlsed in Balance Sheet ~ (INRtin Lakhbs)
2016-17 2015-16
Particulars Gratulty Eamed Leave Gratulty Eamed Leave
Eslimated Presant Value of obligations as at the end af 1.59 274 0.96 226
the year
Falr value of Plan Assets as at the end of the Year N " - -
Net Assels/ {Nst Llablllity} recognized In Balance 1.58 274 0.98 2.28
Sheet
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44.4 Expendlture recognised In the Statement of Profit & Loss

{INR in Lakhs)

Sensitivities due ta mortality & withdrewals are not material & hence impact of changs nel calculaled,

Sensitivilies as 1o rate of Inflation, rate of increase of pensions in payment, reta of increase of pensions bafore retirement & lite expeclancy are not

applicable belng a lump sum banefit on relirement

44.9 Mortallty Rates for specimen ages

Mortality rate for both Compensated absences end pratuity are as under-

201617 2015-16
Parllculars Gratulty Earned Leave Gratulty Eamed Leave
Current Service Cost 043 072 0.a1 0.e3
Inlerest Cosl 0.08 o018 0.04 0.11
Net Actuarial (Gain) / Loss recognized in Ihe year : -0-16 . -0.19
Total expenses recognized In the Statement of 0.50 0.74 0.45 0.90
Profit and Loss
44,6 Expenditure recognised in Other Comprehensive Income {INR in Lakha)
2016-17 201516
Particulars Gratulty Eamed Leave Gratulty Eamed Leave
Net cumulative unrecognized actuarial galn/ (loss) - - - -]
opening
Actuarial galnf (loss) for the year an PBD {0,13} - {000} -
Actuarial gain/ (Toas) for Lhe year on the asseils - - - -
Unrecognlzed Actuarial galn/ (loss) et the end of the {0.13) - (0.00) -
aar
44.6 Prncipal actuardal agsumption at the Balance Sheet Date
{INR in Lakh3s}
Parttzulars 2016-17 2015-16
Graltulty Eamed Loave Gratulty Eamed Leave
Discouni Rate 7.54% 7.54% 8% B%
Expected rala of etum on Plan Assats - - - .
Expected mta of Salary Increase 5.50% 5.50% 5.50% 5.50%
Mathod used Project Unil Credit
44.7 Maturity profile of defined banefit obligation Is as follow:
({INR in Lekhs}
Effect on
Period Gratulty Effect gn Earmed
Leave
— wbligation
April 2017 to March 2018 0.02 0.07
April 2018 to Manch 2019 0.01 0.06
April 2018 o March 2020 0.03 0.06
Apnil 2020 to March 2021 0.02 0.45
April 2021 to March 2022 0.30 0.05
April 2022 to March 2023 0.03 004
April 2023 onwards 1.18 2.02
448 Sensitvity Analysla For the year ended 31st March 2017
{INR in Lakhs)
Effect on
Partr iy | Gtary  |Sfecon Eames
P abligation
Discount Rata 0.50% {012 {0.24
-0.50%! 0.13 0.24
Satary Greawih 0.50% 0.14 0.24
-0.50% (0.12) {0.22

Aps Mortality rate Aps Mortality rale__ [Age Mariality rate
15 D.000614] 45 o.002874| 75 0.039637
20 0.000888) 50 0004946 B8O 0.060558
25 0.000884| 55 0007888 85 0.091982
30 0001058 80 0.011534| 80 0.126895
35 0001282 65 0017009 95 0.208585
40 0,001803] 70 0.025855| 100 0.311628]

4410 The estimsles of futumo salary Increase, consgidered L poluadal valuation, ke accounl of infalion, serlorty, prometion and other relevant fectors, such as

supply and demand in employes markel.




44.11 The Comparry provides for Gratuity for employees s per lhe Paymenl of Grahuity Acl 1972, Employeaa who arm in conltinuous sarvica for a perkd of Tve {5)
years are eligible for graluity, The amounl of gratully payeble on raimmenttemnination of lhe employeas Is last drawn basic salary pec month compuled propodionataly
for 15 days salary mullplied for e number of years of service.

44.12 The amouml of Lebliles Is as per tha report of 8 qualified Actuary

Note 45 : Impalrment of Assets
On the basis of revlew, lhe management i3 of Ihe oplinion lhal the economic performance of non financial assats of lhe Company is not lower than
axpecied and therefore there |s no impaiment of any assels as on lhe Balance Sheet date.

Nole 46 : Speciiled Bank Note
The compary did not hold cash in hand in the form of $BNs and there were no transection of cash during Lhe period from 8th November 2016 o
30th December 2016. Thersfore, there are no repartable transection for nolification no.GSRI0S(E) daled 30th March 2047.

Mote 47 : Cbligetion to Restere project assets to speciled level of aerviceablilty

In terms of Concession agreement, thare is an obligation on the Company to keep Lhe project easets in working condition, including making
replacemnent, as per laid down standards of MOR, of ell project assals whose codal lives expire during the concassion period Accordingly,
Company is required to provide for In respect of replacemanl obligalions arislng durng tha remaining concession paricd as per requiremeni of
Appandix A of tha Ind AS 11 for best eslimata of expenditure required 1o setle obligation. However, at present there reliable estimate for resiomlion
obligation ia not available, therefore provision for same is not provided in financiel statements, the same will be provided in the year in which
estimata becomes reliable,
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Note 48 Firsi-time adoption of Ind AS

The financial statements for the year ended 315! March 2017 are the firsl Ind AS compliant financial slatements of the Company. The
transition 10 Ind-AS has been made in accordance with Ind AS 101-First Time adoplion of Indian Accounling Siandards. For all perigds, up
to and Including the year ended 315t March 2018, the Company prepared its financial slatements in accordance with aceounting slandards
notified under seclion 133 of the Companies Acl 2013 read with paragraph 7 of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014 (hereln afier
referred lo as "previous GAAPT).

In preparing these flinancial stalemenls, the company's opening batance sheel was prepared as at 1st April 2015 i.e. dale of lransilion {0
Ind-AS. Accordingly, financial statemenls for the year 31st March 2016 and the opening Balance sheel as at 1st April, 2015 have been
restated In accardance with Ind AS for comparative information purpose.

This nole explalns the principal adjustmenis made by the Company in reslating ils Indian GAAP financial slalements, including the balance
sheel as al 151 April 2015 and the financlal statemenls as at and for the year ended 31st March 2016.

4B.1 Exemptlons applied

Ind-AS 101 allows first lime adopiers cerlain oplional exemplions and mandatory exceplions from the relrospeclive application of creatton
requiraments under Ind-AS

Company has applied the (ollowing exemptions:-

48,11 Estimates

The estimates al ¥ April 2015 and al 31 March 2016 are consisteni with those made for the same dales in accordance with Indian GAAP
(after adjustmenls lo refllect any differences in accounling policles). The eslimales used by the enlity 1o presenl these amounts in
accordance with Ind AS refiect condilions al 1 April 2015, the dale of fransilion to Ind-AS and as of 31 March 2016.

48,1.2 Deomed Costs

The Company has elecled to conlinue with the previous GAAP camying value of al! Property Plant and Equipmeni and Intanglble Assel as
recognlsed in the previous GAAP financial stalemenls as deemed cost at {he {ransilion date, as there is no change in Ibe funclional
cumency of lhe Company.

48.1,3 Service Concesslon Armangement

Appendix A to Ind AS 11 applies 1o the Company in respect of the Project Raiway, The Company has opled to camy previous GAAP
camying amounl as at date of lransition to Ind AS as the managemenl does not find it praclicable lo apply this appendix retrospectively.

48.1.4 Classificetion and measurement of Flnanclal Assets and Liabllities
The company has ¢lassified and measured the financlal instruments In accordance with the Ind AS 109, on the basis of facls &

circumstances (hat exist at the date of iransition to IndAS.
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48.2 Reconciliation of Equity (Balance sheet} as at 1st April 2015*

INR In Lakhs
Partleulars ;;';ls Provious GAAP* Ad|ustments IND AS
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
{a) Property, Plant and Equipment 1 33.870.60 (33.790.51} 80.08
{b) Other IMangible Assets 1 1.30 33.759.51 33,760.81
{c) Capital Work in Progress <] 8.87 (8.87) -
{d) Intangible Assels under Development <] - 887 8.87
{e) Finandial Assels
(i) Others 1 1045 31.01 4146
{fy Other Non-Curren Assets 185.07 - 185.07
34,076.29 - 34.076.29
Currant assots
{a) Financial Assels
{1} Trade Receivables 3,752.07 - 3.752.07
{ify Cash and cash equivalenis 472,25 - 472.25
{iiy Bank Balances other than {ii} above 5125.67 - 512567
{iv) Others 625.25 . 625.25
{b) Current Tax Assel (Net) 80.13 - 80.13
{¢) Other Cumrent Assels 27.68 - 27.68
10,083.08 - 10,083.05
Total Assals 44,159.34 - 44,155.34
. |EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
{a) Equity Share Capital 15,511.00 - 15,511.00
(t) Other Equity 1,173.74 - 1,173.74
16,684.74 . 16,6B4.74
Liabllities
Non-current lfabllitles
{a) Financial Liabllites
(i} Borrowing 20,452 .44 - 20,492 .44
{ih Trade payables 3 3.857.89 -417.20 3,240.69
(b} Provisions 1.83 - 1.83
(c) Delerred Tex liabilities {Net} 1,318.39 - 1,318.39
{d} Other non current Liabililies 3 - 357.08 357.08
25.470.55 {60.12) 25,410.43
Currant llablltles
(8) Financial Llabilities
{ii} Trade payables 1685.32 - 165.32
(i) Other financial liabilities 1.814.60 - 1,814.60
{b) Other Cutrent Liabllities 3 6.03 60.12 66.15
(c} Provisions 0.05 - 0.05
(d) Curmrent tax Liability (Net) 18.05 - 18.05
2.004.05 60.12 2,054.17
Tatal Equity and Llabllitles 44,159.34 0.00 44,158.34

| &8)

* The previous GAAP figures have been reclassified to cenform to Ind-AS presentation requirements for this purpose of lhis note
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BHARUCH DAHEJ RAILWAY COMPANY LIMITED
< 48,3 Reconciliation of Equify (Balance sheet} as at 31st March 2016 *

=
o
P

INR In Lakhs
Particulars :;‘;ts Previous GAAP" Adjustments IND AS
I. [ASSETS
1 |{1) Non-Current Assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 1 31,765.20 {31,685.41) 79.79
(b) Other Intangibles 1 0.39 32,723.83 32,724.22
{c) Capital work in progress 6 213.73 {213.73} -
(d) Intangible Assets under development 6 - 213.73 213.73
{e) Financial Assels
(i) Others 1 10.55 34.34 4489
{f} Other Non-Current Assets 11.39 - 11.39
32,001.26 1,072.76 33,074.02
2 |Current assets
(a) Financial Assets
(i} Trade Receivables 5,315.23 - 5315.23
(i} Cash and cash equivalents 2,169.56 - 2,169.56
{iii} Bank Balances other than (ii} above 6,597.88 - 6,597.88
(iv) Others 822.21 - 822.21
{b) Current Tax Asset (Netl) 26.75 - 26.75
(c} Other Current Assets 7.37 - 7.37
4,939.00 - 14,939.00
Total Assets 46,940.26 1,072.76 48,013.02
Il. [EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 |Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital 15,511.00 - 15,511.00
(b) Other Equity 2,104.42 710.39 2,814.81
17,615.42 710.39 18,325.81
2 [Llabllities
{l) [Non-current |labilitles
{a) Financial Liabilities
(i} Borrowing 18,882.44 - i8,882.44
(i} Trade payables 3 5,478.76 -636.05 484271
(b} Provisions 3.15 - 3.15
{c) Deferred Tax liabilities (Net) 4 2,103.50 378.98 2,482.46
{d} Other non current Liabililies 3 - 515.15 515.15
26,467.85 258.06 26,725.91
{ii) |Current llabilities
{a) Financial Liabilities
(i} Trade payables 1,141.76 - 1,141.76
{ii} Other financial liabilities 1,654.81 - 1.654.81
{b) Other Current Liabililies 3 8.07 104.31 112.38
{c) Provisions 0.07 - 0.07
(d} Curreni tax Liability (Net) 52,28 - 52.28
2,856.99 104.31 2,961.30
Total Equity and Liabllities 46,940.26 1,072.76 48,013.02

* The previous GAAP figures have been reclassified to conform to Ind-AS presentation requirements for this purpose of this note
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BHARUCH DAHEJ RAILWAY COMPANY LIMITED

48.4 Reconciliation of profit and loss for the year ended 31st March 2016*

INR In Lakhs
Foot R
Partleulars N Previous GAAP AdJustments IND AS
olas
{ |Revenue:
Revenue from operalions 2 11,136.90 426.30 11,563.20
1l |Other income 1.3 633.17 63.45 716.62
1l Total Income {i + 11} 11,750.07 489.75 12,279.82
N |Expenses:
Operation and maintenance 2 4,925.03 426,30 5.352.33
Employes benefits expenses 126.99 0.00 126.99
Finance costs 3 2,082.50 43,52 2.126.02
Depreciation and amortization 1 234422 {1,069.42) 1,274.80
Cther Expenses 118.14 - 118.15
Total Expenses (IV} 9,597.88 {599.60) 8,998.29
¥V |Profit/loss Before exceptlonal [tems and Tax (1l - V) 2.192.19 1,089.35 3,281.53
VI |Exceplional ilems - -
VIl (Profity{Loss) before tax {V - VI 2,192.19 1,089.35 3,201.53
VIl |Tax expense:
{1} Current tax
- For the year 468.82 - 468.82
- For earlier years (net} 7.58 - 7.56
{2) Deferred tax (nel) 4 785.11 378.96 1,164.07
Total Tax Expense (VIII) 1,261.61 378.96 1,640.47
IX | Profit/{loss} for the perlod from continuing operation (VI - VIll} 930.66 710.39 1.641.07
X | Profit/{loss) from discontinued operations - -
Xl |Tax Expense of disconlinued operalions - - .
Xl |Prefil{loss) from discontinued operations (after Lax} {X-XI) - - -
Xl |Profit{loss) for the perlod (IX+XI1) 930.68 71038 1,641.07
XIV | Other Comprehenslve Income
A. (i) llems Lhal will not be reclassilied o prolil and loss 5 - {0.00} 0.00
{ii) Income Tax refating 1o ltems that will nol be reclassified (o profit 5 B 0.00 (0.00)
and loss
B. (i) ltems that will be reclassified lo profit and loss - - -
{ii) Income Tax refating 1o Items ihat will be reclassified to profit and . } .
loss
Total Comprehensive Income for the period (X{II X1V}
XV |{Comprehensive profit and other comprehensive Income for 930.68 710.29 1,641.07
the perlod)
X¥| |Eamings Per Equity Share:
{For Continuing Operation}
{1) Baslc 060 0.46 1.06
{2) Diluted 0.60 046 1.06
Xl |Eamings Per Equity Share:
{For discontinuing Operalion)
{1) Basic - - .
{2) Diluled - - -
XVIll|Eamings Per Equity Share:
{Far disconlinued and contnuing Operelion}
{1} Baslc 0.60 046 1.06
{2) Dlluted 0.60 046 1.06

* The previous GAAP figures have been reclassified [0 co

-AS praseniation requirements for this purpose of this note




BHARUCH DAHEJ RAILWAY COMPANY LIMITED
48.5 Reconciliation of Total Equity as at March 31,2016 and April 1,2015

INR Igp Lakhs
:Parti;::ulars o o ' Notes 31 March 2016 01 April 2055 ,
Total Equity (shareholder's fund) as per previous GAAP 17,615.42 16,684.74
Adjustments
Unwinding of discount on deferred overhead charges 3 (43.52) -
Reversal of Fair Value Adjustment of Financial Liabilities 3 60.12 -
Unwinding of discount on receivable from Western 1 333
Railways under Service Concession Arrangement ' }
Changes in deferred tax obligation 4 (378.96) -
Depreciation and Amortization 1 1,069.42 -
Total Equity {shareholder's fund} as per Ind-AS 18,325.81 16,684.74
48.6 Reconciliation of Total Comprehensive Income for the year ended March 31,2016

INR In Lakhs
Particalars.. ' SR : Notes 31 March 2016
Profit as per previous GAAP 930.68
Adjustments :
Construction Contract Revenue under Service concession Arrangement 2 426.30
Unwinding of discount on receivable from Western Railways under
Service Concession Arrangement 1 3.33
Construction Contract Cost under Service Concession Arrangement o) (426.30)
Remeasurements of defined benefit obligation recognised in other 5 (0.00)
comprehensive income ’
Depreciation and Amortization 1 1,069.42
Unwinding of discount on deferred overhead charges 3 (43.52)
Reversal of Fair Value Adjustment of Financial Liabilities 3 60.12
Changes in deferred tax obligation 4 {378.96)
Profit after tax as per Ind-AS 1,641.07
Other comprehensive income for the year (net of tax) 0.00
Total Comprehensive income as per [nd-AS 1,641.07

48.7 Impact of Ind-AS on the Cash flow for the year ended March 31 2016

There are no material adjustments to statements of cash flows as reported under previous GAA r—4//
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48.8 Notes to the reconciliation of equity as at 1st April 2015 and 31st March 2016 and total
comprehensive income for the year ended 31st March 2016

Note 1 : Bharuch Dahej Railway Company Limited (BDRCL) has enlered in to service concession arrangement with
Ministry of Railway for development, maintenance and operation of railway line which is covered under appendix A of
Ind AS 11-"Service Concession Arrangements”. As per such appendix A of Ind AS-11 development of project assets
of BDRCL, cperation and maintenance of railway line under service concession arrangement is defined as intangible
assets whereas as per lhe previous GAAP (Accounling Slandards} such project assels are recognised as tangible
assets. Accordingly closing balance of project assets of Rs. 31,685.41 Lakhs as at 31 March 2016 (01 April 2015: Rs.
33,790.51 lakhs) recognised as tangible assels is recognised as intangible assets as "Revenue Sharing Right" and
financial assets. In addition to reclassification from tangible to intangible the depreciation on project assets is
recomputed over the life of concossion poriod of project assets. It is resulting in decrease in deprecialion by Rs.
1069.42 lakhs charged during F.Y. 2015-16 as per previous GAAP and is added to the Intangible Assets (Revenue
Sharing Right).Therefore intangible assets as "Revenue Sharing Right" is recognised at Rs, 32,723.82 Lakhs (01
April 2015: Rs. 33,790.51 lakhs} and fair value of land of Rs. 34.34 Lakhs (01 April 2015: Rs. 31.01 Lakhs) as
financial assets. Buning F.Y. 2015-16 "Unwinding of discount on receivable from Western Railways under Service
Concession Amrangement’ of Rs. 3.33 Lakhs as other income is recognised, this has resulted in increase in
Receivable from Western Railway under service concession arrangement by corresponding amount.

This has resulted in increase in equity by Rs 1072.75 lakhs as on 31st March 2016 and profit by corresponding
amount for the year ending 315t March 2016,

Note 2 : As per Appendix A to Ind AS-11 "Construction Contracts" , Construction Contract Cost under Service
Concession Arrangement incurred during the Financial Year, 2015-16 of Rs. 426.30 lakhs on projecls assets under
construction has been recognised as coniract cost under the Service Concession Arrangement, Contract revenue 1o
same extant has been recognized.

Note 3: As per Ind AS 109 Overhead Cost Payable to Western Railway of Rs. 822.04 Lakh as at 01 April 20151s
covered under the definition of financial liabilities, thereflore it is recognized at fair value of Rs, 404.84 Lakhs as at 01
April 2015 and the difference in camying value and fair value of Rs. 417.20 Lakh as at 01 April 2015 is deferred and
presented as "Fair Value Adjustment of Financial Liability” in financial statement and will be provided in statement of
profit and loss account as "Reversal of Fair Value Adjustment of Financial Liabilities” on straight line basis over the
period of re-payment of overhead costs payable. There is no Impact on equity as on 01st Apnl 2015.

During lhe F Y 2015-16, additional deffered overhead charges of Rs. 577.18 lakh has been recognised at fair value of
Rs. 314.80 Lakh and difference of Rs. 262,37 lakh is deferred and presented as "Fair Value Adjustment of Financial
Liabilities.

During the F.Y. 2015-16, Rs. 43.52 Lakhs has been recognised as finance cost as "Unwinding of discount on
deferred overhead costs charges" and out of total deferred liability of Rs. 417.20 Lakhs, an amount of Rs. 60.12
Lakhs has been recognised as Other Income as "Reversal of Fair Value Adjustment of Financial Liabilities". This has
resulted in net increase in equity as on 31st March 2016 and profit & loss for the year ending 31st March 2016 by Rs.
16.6 Lakhs.

MNote 4 : Ind AS-12 "Income Taxes" require the recognilion of deferred tax using the balance sheet approach, which
focuses on temporary differences between lhe carrying amount of an asset or Gability in the balance sheet and its tax
base. Various transitional adjustments lead to temporary differences. This has resulled in increase in net deferred tax
liability of Rs. 378.96 Lakhs have been recognised during the F.Y. 2015-16. This has resulted in decrease in equity
for F Y 2015-16 by corresponding amount.

Note 5 :- Under Ind AS, remeasurements i.e. actuarial gains & losses of Rs. 321 and related tax Rs. 111, on the net
defined benefit liability are recognised in the olher comprehensive income which was earfier recognised in profit and
loss under previous GAAP, However, due to reclassification of this items of Profit and Loss as Other Comprehensive
income, there is no impact on total equity.

Note 6 : As per appendix A of Ind AS-11 Service Ceoncession arrangements , ¢losing batance of project assets under
development of Rs.213.73 Lakhs (01 April 2015 - Rs.8.87 lakhs) recognised as Capital Work in Pregress (CWIP) as
per previous GAAP is recognised as Intangible assets under development as “"Revenue Sharng Right" under
development and financial assets. it has resulted in decrease in value of CWIP by Rs. 213.73 Lakhs (01 April 2015
Rs. 8.87 lakhs) and the comesponding increase in intangible assets under development {Revenue sharing right under
development) for Rs. 213.73 Lakhs {01 April 2015 : Rs. 8.67 lakhs).

Note 7: Other equity has increased by Rs. 710.39 Lakhs as at 31st March 2016 (Nil as at 1st April 2015) consequent
to the above Ind AS transition adjustments. .
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF BHARUCH DAHEJ RAILWAY COMPANY LIMITED
Report on the Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Bharuch Dahej
Railway Company Limited. (“the Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at
March 31, 2017, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including the statement of Other
Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flow and the Statement of Changes in
Equity for the year then ended and a summary of the significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information. (herein after referred to as “Ind AS financial statements”).

Management’s Responsibility for the Ind AS financial statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these
Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes
in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rules issued thereunder.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies, making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudenf; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ind AS financial statements based
on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing
standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing as specified
under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the Ind AS financial statements are free from material misstatement.




An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and the disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. in
making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant
to the Company's preparation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair
view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company's Directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the Ind AS financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Qualified Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion section of our report, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the
information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2017 and its loss, including other comprehensive
income, its cash flows and changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

a. Reference is drawn to Note No. 12.2.1 of the Ind AS financial statements. Western
Railways has raised a claim towards recovery of Land License fees in respect of
land leased to the Company for Rs. 14635.21 Lakh for the period 25th June 2008
to 31st March 2016 (consider the impact up to 31st March, 2017, the amount
increases to Rs. 17526.6 Lakh} along with interest thereon. Qut of the aforesaid
claim, the company has accrued Rs. 5526.90 Lakhs (previous year Rs. 4,079.54
Lakhs) and has classified the same under Financial Liabilities — Non Current in the
Ind AS financial statements. As per information and explanations provided, the
company has contested the claim as violative of the provisions in the Concession
Agreement and the matter is currently under consideration in the Railway
Board. Considering the pendency of matter as on date of signing of this report, we
are unable to ascertain the actual liability that may eventually crystalize in the
case and consequently the impact if any, of the above on the Ind AS financial
statements of the company is not ascertainable. Further it is noted that
subsequent to raising the demand, Westem Railways has not apportioned and
remitted the share of Revenue to the company till the date of signing of this report.
However, in absence of any confirmation from Western Railways on the recovery
made so far, the impact of same on the Ind AS financial statements of the
Company could not be ascertained.

b. Reference is drawn to Note No. 19 and Note No 8.1 to the Ind AS financial
statements. The Income from Railway Operations of Rs 5159.37 lakhs (previous
year 11136.90 lakhs) includes revenue amounting to Rs. 418.98 lakhs (previous
year Rs. 2296.97 lakhs) pertaining to Bharuch-Chavaj section computed on
provisional basis. The revenue recognized is outstanding as Trade Receivable of
Rs. 271595 lakhs as on the balance sheet date. As per information and
explanations provided, the revenue apportionment by Western Railways does not




include the apportionments for share of revenue towards the Bharuch - Chavaj
section and that there is no written confirmation on account of Revenue from the
Western Railways for support the above claim. Further, the company has also
recognized the 'Intangible assets’ pertaining to this section as the freight sharing
rights of the company. However, the concession agreement executed with the
Ministry of Railways dated 25th June 2008 does not include the said section as it
was not envisaged at the time of agreement. Based on the audit procedures
performed and queries made, we are unable to ascertain whether the company
should recognize the corresponding revenue and Intangible asset in accordance
with Ind AS 18 — Revenue and Ind AS 11- Construction Contracts respectively.
Accordingly, we are unable fo ascertain the amount of the consideration that will
be derived from the above claim, the extent of recoverability of the same and
consequential impact of the same on the ind AS financial statements.

c. Reference is drawn to Note No. 47 of the Ind AS financial statements on
Obiligation to Restore project assets to specified level of serviceability. In terms of
Concession agreement, there is an obligation on the Company fo keep the project
assets in working condition, including making replacement, as per laid down
standards of Ministry of Railways, of ali project assets whose lives expire during
the concession period. Accordingly, Company is required to provide for in respect
of replacement obligations arising during the remaining concession period as per
requirement of Appendix A of the Ind AS 11 at the best estimate of expenditure
required to settle the obligation. However, the company has not estimated and
provided for the aforesaid obligation in the financial statements. In the absence of
information, we are unable to ascertain the impact of the above on the Ind AS
financial statements of the company.

d. Reference is drawn to Note No. 4 and Note No. 48 to the Ind AS financial
statements. The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017 are the
first Ind AS compliant financial statements of the Company. in preparing these
financial statements, the company's opening balance sheet was prepared as at
i1st April 2015 considered as date of transition to Ind AS. Appendix A to
Ind AS 11 applies to the Company in respect of the Project Railway service
concession arrangement. The Company has opted to apply this appendix from the
fransition date prospectively as the management does not find it practicable to
apply this appendix retrospectively. Based on audit procedures and queries made,
we are unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to ascertain that
retrospective application of Appendix A to ind AS 11 is impracticable as defined in
Ind AS 8 to avail the exemption of ind AS 101. Consequently, we are unable to
ascertain the impact, of the above on the Ind AS financial statements of the
company.

Emphasis of Matter

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note No. 19 & Note No. 21 to the Ind
AS financial statements, The Operation and Maintenance Agreement with the Western
Railway that defines among others, right & obligations, the share of Income & Expenses
to be apportioned to the Company arising out of the operation of the Bharuch Dahej
Samni Railway Line by the Company has not yet been signed. The Company has
however recognized the operating income and expenses arising out of this arrangement
which is yet to be formalized.




We further draw aftention to Note No.19 and Note No. 21 to the Ind AS financial
statements. The Operating Income & Operating Expenses accounted for by the
Company are based on provisional figures made available by the Western Railway and
the final figures could vary. Our Opinion is not qualified in respect of this matter

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

a)

b)

c)

d)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, including the Statement of
other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Cash Flow and Statement of
Charges in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of
account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Relevant
Rules issued thereunder

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on
March 31, 2017 taken of record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on March 31, 2017 from being appoinfed as a director in ferms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate Report in "Annexure A". Our report expresses an unmodified opinion
on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company's internal financial
controls over financial reporting.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in
our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us:

i. The company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its
financial position.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeabie losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the
investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. the Company has provided requisite disclosures in its Ind AS financial
statements as to holdings as well as dealings in Specified Bank Notes
during the period from 8 November, 2016 to 30 December, 2016 and
these are in accordance with the books of accounts maintained by the
Company. Refer Note-No 46 fo.the Ind AS financial statements




2. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order"), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013, we give in "Annexure B" a statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 3and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

3. As required by the direction issued by the comptroller and Auditor-General India, in
terms of sub section (5) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the compliance in the
“Annexure C"

For D. Singh & Co.
Chartered Accountants

it Registration No. 001351N
- __ﬁ
I QQ ‘ .

&d er
Membership No. 98641

Place: New Delhi
Date: 20-09-2017
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Annexure - A to the Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Bharuch Dahej
Railway Company Limited ("the Company") as of 31 March 2017 in conjunction with our
audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Intemal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('fCAI’). These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the
“‘Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial
Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of intemal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's infernal financial conirols system
over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the




preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1} pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of
the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such intemal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2017 based on the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India.

For D. SINGH & CO
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration Number : 1351N

=

Membership Number: 098641

New Delhi
Date; 20-09-2017
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(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

V)

(vi)

Annexure - B to the Auditors’ Report

The Annexure referred to in Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of the Company
on the Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017,

We report that :

(@) The Company has maintained proper records showing fuli particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed Assets.

(b) According to information and explanations given to us, the fixed assets are physically
verified by the management and discrepancies identified if any, on such verification have
been properly dealt with in the books of account.

{c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the titie deeds of immovable properties are
held in the name of the Company.

The Company does not hold any inventories. Thus, paragraph 3(ii) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company and hence not commented for.

The Company has not granted any loans secured or unsecured to companies, firms or
other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(iii}(a), (b) and (c) of the order are not applicable to
the company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
the company has not given any loan, made any investment, given any guarantee, and
provided any security which is covered by Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act
2013. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(iv) of the Companies (Auditor's Report)
Order, 2016 are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public. Accordingly, the provisions
of clause 3(v} of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable to the
Company.

As per information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not
prescribed the maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the Act, for any of the
services rendered by the Company.

(vii) (@) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of thé company

examined by us, in our opinion, the company is regular in depositing with appropriate
authorities undisputed statutory dues including income-tax, service tax, provident fund
and other material statutory dues applicable to it. The provisions relating to employees’
state insurance, sales-tax, wealth-tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax
and cess are not applicable to the company. No undisputed amounts were outstanding
in respect of Statutory dues as at March 31, 2017 for period of more than six months from
the date they became payable.




(viii)

(ix)

()

(xi)

(i)

(xiil)

(xiv)

(b)

According to the information and explanations given to us, the following are the
Statutory dues pending on account of disputes :

Name of | Nature of Dues | Amount (Rs. | Period to | Forum where
Statute in lakhs) which the | the disputeis
amount relates pending
Service Tax Service Tax, 1633 20111210 | CESTAT
interest and 2013-14
penalty
Service Tax Service Tax, 1638 2014-15 Commissioner
interest and Service Tax
penalty

Based on our audit procedures and as per the information and explanations given
by the management, we are of the opinion that the Company has not defaulted in
repayment of dues to bank.

Based on our audit procedures and as per the information and explanations given
to us, the Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further
public offer (including debt instruments) and term loans during the vyear.
Accordingly, paragraph 3 (ix) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud by the
Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or
reported during the course of our audit.

According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has paid/provided for
managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by
the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V {o the Act.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is not a nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii} of the Order is not
applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties
are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details
of such fransactions have been disclosed in the Ind AS financial statements as
required by the applicable Indian accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible
debentures during the year.




(v} According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-
cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

{xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-|A of the Reserve
Bank of India Act 1934.

For D. SINGH & CO
Chartered Accountants
FRN : 1351N

Membership No. 098641

New Delhi
Date: 20-09-2017
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Annexure — C to the Auditors’ Report

are maintained for
inventories lying with
third parties & assets
received as
gift/grant(s) from
Government or other
authorities.

hence the provisions
of this clause are not
applicable.

S No.|[ CAG’s Directions Our Report Action Taken Impact on
thereon accounts and
financial statements
of the company
1. Whether the company | According to No action Not applicable
has clear title/lease information required
deeds for freehold and explanations given
and leasehold land to us and based on our
respectively? If not examination of the
please statethearea | records of the
of freehold and company, the ftitle
leasehold landfor deeds of land being
whichtitle/lease immovable property are
deeds are not held in the name of the
available. Company.
2. Whether there are any | According to No action NIL
cases of waiver/ write | information required
off of and explanations
debts/loans/interest given to us and based
etc., if yes, the on our examination of
reasons there for the records of the
and the amount company
involved. there are no cases
of waiver/ write off
of debts/
loans/interest etc.
3. Whether proper The company does not No action NIL
records have any inventory, required

For D. SINGH & CO
Chartered Accountants

New Delhi
Date; 20-09-2017

(1e3)
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA
UNDER SECTION 143 (6) (b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF BHARUCH DAHEJ RAILWAY COMPANY
LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017.

The preparation of financial statements of Bharuch Dahej Railway Company Limited for
the year ended 31 March 2017 in accordance with the financial reporting framework
prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 is the responsibility of the management of the
company. l'he Statutory Auditor appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of
India under Section 139 (5) of the Act is responsible for expressing opinion on these
financial statements under Section 143 of the Act based on independent audit in
accordance with the standards on auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act

I'his is stated to have been done by them vide their Audit Report dated 20 September 2017.

I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have decided not to conduct
the supplementary audit of the financial statements of Bharuch Dahej Railway Company

Limited for the year ended 31 March 2017 under section 143 (6) (a) of the Act.

For and o the behalf of the
Comptroller & Auditor General of India

=T

(B.R. Mondal)
Place: New Delhi Principal Director of Audit
Dated:#\ September, 2017 Railway Commercial, New Delhi
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